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Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. is an international financial services company providing consulting
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services, management services, product access, and reinsurance solutions to independent matk;t1§‘1g
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oﬂrgadiz\gtriﬂc;ns (IMOs) and life insurers. Through Global Preferred, IMOs and insurers are __ial_bﬂlé tod, L

benefit from’ mutually rewarding relationships based on parallel interests, a dedication to quali

business, and a focus on managing insurance and distribution risk for long-term economic rewards'and™=—g—— < ——

e e, e =

increased revenues. —— L—

Principally through the development of profit sharing arrangements and delivery of more competitive=
products, Global Preferred has developed substantial intellectual capital in the area of IMO-insurer \ﬁl

relationships. In the simplest case, Global Preferred matches IMOs with companies willing to offer . I

insurance and annuity products designed to meet the IMO’s specific needs. In these situations, Global r-
Preferred’s experienced professionals, with decades of insurance and product development knowledge,

ensure the IMO is appropriately represented through the negotiation processes of product design

and pricing,

Global Preferred offers simple, effective solutions to organizations that want to improve the value of
their distribution system relationships by sharing the profitability of the products sold. In situations
where an IMO wants to maximize its profit potential, Global Preferred can offer a variety of profit
sharing options, from enhanced commissions to stand-alone IMO-owned reinsurance facilities. Global
Preferred's seaff is expert at all phases of profit sharing arrangements, from assessing initial feasibility to
managing all aspects of the business.

While other firms offer a limited range of services and experience, Global Preferred differentiates icself
by working with IMOs and insurers throughout the entire process, providing a fully integrated package
of services. With minimal time investment and distraction for the IMO, Global Preferred can plan,
negotiate, implement, and manage various profit sharing structures.

IMOs and insurers benefit from the depth of our knowledge base. Global Preferred is a publicly held
company; our staff focuses exclusively on IMO profitability; and we are one of the only firms that is
positioned to provide advisory services and manage the day-to-day operations of an IMO owned life
reinsurance company. Since commencing operations in mid-1996, we have more than doubled our book
value per share and have accumulated over $7.6 billion in face value of life insurance and over $250 million
of annuity policy account values. These successes represent the economic value created by and for the
producers who are Global Preferred’s stockholders.

Global Preferred was founded by producers for producers and, as a result, we are uniquely qualified

to help producers and insurers achieve their goals.

Global Preferred is Redefining Reinsurance, Redefining Relationships.



finamnocial h igh ol ights
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
INCOME STATEMENT
Total revenues $ 22,659 $ 30,043 $ 31,334 $ 33,015 $ 30,689
Total benefits and expenses 16,114 23,089 23,480 30,708 27,757
Net income 4,320 5,133 5,462 1,518 1,934
Diluted earnings per share 1.15 1.30 1.32 0.37 0.47
BALANCE 'SHEET
Invested assets $ 5,530 $ 10,172 § 20,276 $ 18,656 $ 29,348
Deferred acquisition costs 39,750 42,752 42,800 49,850 45,608
Total assets 49,008 56,617 67,853 74,274 79,284
Total Liabilities 20,600 20,028 25,884 30,952 33,978
Stockholders” equity 28,408 36,589 41,969 43,322 45,305
SUMMARY OF POLICIES REINSURED
Face value of life insurance reinsured  $ 8,030,219 $ 9,378,075 $9,082,204  $ 8,451,310 $ 7,606,281
Number of life insurance policies
and riders reinsured 260,356 296,674 287,303 265,384 239,201
Annuity policy benefits reinsured $ 324,827 $ 310,063 $ 266,305 $ 224,710 $ 252,180
Number of annuity policies reinsured 24,483 43,819 48,007 48,889 48,285
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Dear Stockholder,

l d e r s

During 2003 we focused on a number of initiatives to grow our business and capital position, many

of which you have been apprised of during the year through our quarterly communications. The

following is a brief overview of some of the results of these efforts:

e A 27% increase in earnings from 2002, which, to a certain extent, is the result of several
2

encoufaging events and economic trends that began to emerge late in the year;
* A 94% increase in the statutory surplus of Global Preferred Re, from $11

.7 million to $22.7

million, much of which is supported by the strong cash flows from our reinsured business;

* A 40% increase in policies reinsured from Pacific Life over 2002, along
reinsurance of newly issued variable annuity policies from Western Reserve;

with the continued

* An extension of rights from Western Reserve to reinsure certain variable universal life policies issued
in 2002, which would have otherwise expired at the end of 2003, and the continuation of our rights

to reinsure annuity products introduced in 2003 and 2004; and

* The development and cultivation of many new distribution relationships, some of which

are the result of increased branding and awareness of Global Preferred throu

gh publications and

presentations on the benefits we can bring to life insurance marketing organizations.

While there were many other successes during 2003, we are continuing to focus on one of our key

objectives: helping our stockholders achieve some liquidity for their investments

in Global Preferred.

This objective is, and continues to be, a significant goal for Global Preferred’s board of directors.

The capital finance committee, the most active of our board committees,
management activities in seeking viable options for stockholder liquidity. The cap-
ital finance committee and management are continuing to evaluate and assess a
number of such options, some of which include (a) paying dividends on our stock,
(b) seeking a strategic transaction, potentially resulting in a sale or merger of
the company, (c) listing the stock on an exchange, or (d) developing a tender offer
program to repurchase stock. While these are only a few of the options under con-
sideration, each has its own merits and disadvantages.

As expressed to you through prior communications, these considerations
require a delicate balance as we seek to identify viable liquidity alternatives for
stockholders while, at the same time, continuing to focus on enhancing overall
stockholder value. So, while we will continue to focus on growing value for you
through our day-to-day business activities, in the months ahead we may be able 1o
announce new developments in our efforts to enhance stockholder liquidity, which
will most likely require your approval to proceed with any recommended course of
action.

In closing, I wish to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to our stockholders, employees,

and business partners for their continuing support. 'We are excited about the future
its business, the opportunities to create value for our stockholders and our efforts
tions of those of our stockholders who may be seeking liquidity.

Sincerely,

:d McKernan
*resident and Chief Executive Officer

steers and oversees

"In the months
ahead, we may
be able to
announce new
developments
in our efforts
to enhance
stockholder
liquidiry."”

Ed McKernan
President and Chief

of the company and Executive Officer

to meet the expecta-
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION\? B

Washington, D.C. 20549 A CLEOFVED NG

Form 10-K/A e &S
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ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) : \\V/ a
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 R
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O TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
_Commission file number 0-23637
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{Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter)
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(State or other Jurisdiction of - (LR.S. Employer
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Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act: '
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

None ‘ None
Securities registered under Section 1.2-(g) of the Exchange Act:
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{Title of class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes & No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of ‘delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or

information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of thls Form 10 K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as.deﬁned in Exchange Act
Rule 12b-2). Yes O  No :

The aggregate market value of the véting common stock, held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of
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At March 15, 2004, there were 4,141,684 shares of common stock outstanding.
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Item 1. Business

Overview

Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in 1995 as a holdmg company and owns
all of the outstanding capital stock of Global Preferred Re Limited, Global Preferred Solutions, Inc.,
Global Preferred Resources, Inc. and Preferred Advantage Insurance Services, Inc. (“Preferred :
Advantage”). Global Preferred Re Limited is a Bermuda company registered as a long-term insurer under
the Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 (“Global Preferred Re”). and was formed during 1995. Global Preferred:
Solutions, Global Preferred Resources and Preferred Advantage were formed during 2003. References in- -+

this report to “Global Preferred,” “we,” “us,” “our” and “our company” refer to Global Preferred
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries unless the context otherw15e requires or is expressly stated.

Global Preferred was formed principally to provide an opportunity for the independent agents »
associated with an independent marketing organization to participate indirectly in the reinsurance of the
policies they sold. An independent marketing organization (“IMO”) is an organization.of independent
agents that contracts with one or more insurance companies to distribute and market securities and
insurance products. These organizations include: insurance agencies, insurance brokers, broker-dealers,
banks, savings and loans and any other group or institution that markets life insurance and annuities.

Global Preferred, through its subsidiaries, provides reinsurance solutions for the hfe 1nsurance and
annuity industry. Through our subsidiaries, we prov1de » ‘

* A reinsurance development program for IMOs utilizing proprietary strategies that ‘pe‘fmits the
members of the IMO to share in the economics of the business reinsured, thus aligning the long-
term interests of the-life insurance companles with the interests of the marketing organlzatlons :

« Life insurance management and actuarial adv1sory services to IMOs and life insurers to aid clients
in their assessment of the strategic and structural benefits of establishing a: profit sharing program
through their distributor-insurer relationships, such as producer-owned reinsurance;

« A management support structure to leverage our core competencies and provide economies of scale
to IMOs and insurance companies who already have formed, or are con51der1ng formirig, a
producer-owned reinsurance enterprise; and

+ A managing general agency structure that facilitates product distribution relatlonshlps between
IMOs and life insurers, primarily as a value added service to our clients. -

Both the TMOs and insurers benefit from mutually rewarding relationships based on parallel interests,
a dedication to improving the quality of business written, and a focus on managing insurance and
distribution risk for long-term economic rewards. Through these collaborative relationships:

» IMOs can share in the profits of the business they sell, enhance their recruiting and retention
programs, increase their role in product development and better assess the quality of business they
write;

» Insurance companies can benefit from secure, stable growth in distribution, increased attention to
the quality of business written, lower marketing costs due to continuity in dlstnbutlon and renewed
focus on long-term goals; and

* Global Preferred can share in the economic benefits derived from fee income for managing the
reinsurance risk -and administering the reinsurance structure, and also from our participation in a
portion of the reinsurance of the products sold by the IMOs.

Our core business consists of providing reinsurance on business that has resulted from a relationship
with the independent agents of an IMO member of the AEGON Group. Although our reinsurance
business is directed to us through these independent agent relationships, the life insurance and annuity
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policies that we currently reinsure are underwritten and issued by various ceding life companies. In the
insurance industry, the term “ceding” -refers to the use of reinsurance to transfer from one .insurance
company to another some or all of the nsks assoc1ated with one or more insurance policies. We often refer
to the life i msurance companies that reinsure life i insurance and annuity poheles through us as the “ceding’
life companres The cedmg hfe companles who 1ssue the pohcles we reinsure are: ’

. Westem Reserve Llfe Assurance Co of Ohro a subs1d1ary of AEGON USA Inc. (“Westem
Reserve”), ' ,

. Amerrcan Skandla L1fe Assurance Corporatron, a subsidiary of Prudential Flnanmal Inc.
(“American Skandia”); :

» Pacific Life- Insurance Company (“Pa01ﬁc L1fe”) and
. Federal Kemper Llfe Assurance Company, a sub51dlary of Bank One Corporation ( Kemper”)

Currently', our largest reinsurance relatronshlp is with Western Reserve, which accounted for 92% of
-our reinsurance premlums and reinsured pohcy revenues as of December 31, 2003.

When we reinsure a pOlle for a life i 1nsurance company, we continue to reinsure that pohcy for as
long as the:policy remains in effect. Although the life insurance company may have the right to cancel the
reinsurance on one or more policies, this right can generally occur only upon certain. defaults or after a
period of 10 years or longer, depending on, the particular reinsurance agreement. By, maintaining a
continued financial interest in these policies, we share the ongoing revenue streams associated with the

policies. Addltlonally, as we reinsure new policies, we expand.the base of policies in which we mamtaln an,
economic interest.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we earned net. income of $1.9 million on revenues of
$30.7 million. Our total assets and stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2003 was $79.3 million and
$45.3 million, respectively. As of December 31,-2003, we reinsured over 239,000 life insurance policies and.

riders with-an aggregate face value of-over $7.6.billion and over 48,000 annuity policies with aggregate
contract beneﬁts of over $250 million. :

New Initiatives

During the first quarter of 2003, Global Preferred formed two wholly owned subsidiaries, Global
Preferred Solutions, Inc. and Global Preferred Resources, Inc. Global Preferred Solutions provides
actuarial and management advisory services to marketing organizations and life insurers. Global Preferred
Solutions’ principal focus is to evaludte the strategic and structural benefits of establishing a profit sharing

- . program such as producer-owned reinsurance. Global Preferred Solutions also offers consulting services

such as distribution effectiveness, product desrgn and development msurance company due dlhgence and
capacny utilization. ’

Global Preferred Resources offers 1ts management support structure to marketing organrzatlons
banks, broker/dealers, and insurance companies who already have formed, or are considering the formation
of, a producer-owned relnsuranee enterprise. The objective of Global Preferred Resources is to leverage the
core competencies and economies of scale of Global Preferred Holdings and enable. companies to bring
best practices and independent objectivity to their reinsurance enterprise. Global Preferred Resources’
services include operations’ management», financial reporting, accounting, claims management, reinsurance
admlmstratlon and actuarral serv1ces

In late 2003, Global Preferred formed Preferred Advantage, which operates in the capacity of a
managing general agency that facilitates product distribution relationships between IMOs and life
.insurance companies. Through Preferred Advantage, Global Preferred is posmoned to introduce new
products to IMOs and present new d1str1but10n to insurers. :
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Life Insurance Overview -

Life insurance products typ1cally fall w1th1n a spectrum rangmg from 1nsurance protectlon products .,
that pay a sum of money upon the death_of the 1n}sured to asset accumulation products that offer the
insured a tax-advantaged investment vehicle for long- term’ savmgs and retirement income. At the i insurance
protection end of the spectrum is term life insurance. Term life insurance is often renewable on a yearly
basis and pays-a sum of money upon the death of the insured. .In general, as you mioye along the insurance
product spectrum, the investment component becomes increasingly more meaningful, with the end point
being a variable annuity product, which is an asset accumulation product. Variable annuities provide the
policyholder the opportunity to vary benefit payments depending on the investment results of the assets
held in the account. ‘

We currently reinsure two types of insurance products: variable universal life-insurance and variable
annuities. We have the capability, and it is our intent, to expand the scope of our reinsurance to include
other life insurance products, such as’'term life, whole life, univéfsal life and fixed annuities.

Variable Universal Life.’ Variable universal life is an investment-oriented insurance product that
combines an investment product with a death benefit. This product enables the policyholder to -vary the -
timing and amount of premium payments, the level of death benefit protection and the investment
allocation of policy funds. Premiums paid by the policyholder, which comprise-a separate pool of assets,
are placed in"the insurance company’s fixed account or separate accounts. For'the funds in the separate -
accounts, the pohcyholder may choose among alternative investment vehicles; usually including stock
funds, corporate or government bond funds, and 'money-market accounts. The-death benefits and cash
values in variable universal life policies vary to reflect the investment experience of the policy’s fixed or
separate accounts: The policy may have a guaranteed minimum death benefit’ whlle cash values vary w1th '
the investment performance of the fixed or separate account. S

Variable Annuities. Variable annuity policies provide for flexible premium payments and: guarantee
that the pelicyholder will receive periodic benefit payments beginning on: a specified date. Prior to the *
specified date, premium payments made and resulting income earned ‘accumulate .on‘a tax-deferred basis.
Similar to.variable universal life, variable annuity policyholders may allocate their account balances among
a variety of investment vehicles. Accordingly, the resulting benefit payments to the annuity policyholder -
will vary depending on the performance of the invested assets. Variable annuity policies may provide a
guaranteed minimum death benefit prior to the commencement of annuity benefit payments.- -
Reinsurance Overvrew o L g o

.Life i 1nsurance companles spread the rrsks they assume by purchasmg insurance, known as
reinsurance, from other insurers, known as reinsurers. A reinsurer agrees to indemnify another insurance
company, commonly referred to as the ceding life. company, for all or a portion of the insurance risks
underwritten by the: cedmg life company under one or more of its own insurance polices. Accordlng to
Standard & Poor’ s, the percentage of new life insurance business written in the United States that is
reinsured has risen from 34% in 1990 to almost 70% in 2002. During 2002, the American Council of Life
Insurers reported that purchases of individual life insurance .totaled $1.7 trrlhon of face amount.

Cedmg hfe compames receive a number of dlrect beneﬁts from relnsurance 1nc1ud1ng

. Reduced net habrhty on mdrvrdual nsks A

o

. Catastrophe protectlon from large events or.an aggregatlon of multlple small clalms

¢ Reduced fluctuations in profit and loss margins that are inherent to the insurance 1ndustry;

e Ass1stance in mamtalnlng acceptable leverage ratlos and v

Add1t1onal underwrltlng capacuy by permlttlng them to assume larger r1sks and underwrlte a greater
number of policies without being required to increase their capital and surplus. e
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In addition fo. the direct benefits of reinsurance;:a ceding life company that reinsures through an
organization that has a relationship with the distribution channel that sells.the product that is reinsured -
may receive a number of indirect benefits that more closely align their economic interests with those of the
distribution channel. These indirect benefits may mclude hrgher quality, more proﬁtable business, longer-
term relatronsh1ps and h1gher sales volumes '

H

In exchange for assuming a: portron of the r1sk assocrated with: a reinsured policy, the reinsurer
receives a portlon of the revenue stream assoc1ated with the pollcy 0 long as the remsurance remains in
effect.

Reinsurance can be written on either a proportional, also known as quota share or pro rata, basis or a
non- proportional referred to as excess share or excess of 1loss, basis, Under quota share reinsurance, the
reinsurer indemnifies the céding life company dgainst-a predetermmed percentage or share of the benefits
paid by the ceding life company under p011c1es it has'issued. In reinsurance written on an excess share
basis, the reinsurer indemnifies ‘the ceding life company agamst that portlon of beneﬁts pa1d on the ongmal
policy i in excess of a specrﬁed dollar amount. '

.

Types of Remsurance

We currently write three- types of; reinsurance on a quota shiare basrs renewable term, coinsurance and
modified coinsurance. For additional information pertaining to-the types of reinsurance, we write, refer to
“Item. ‘7 Management’s Discussion arid Analysrs of: Fmancral Condition and Results of Operatlons —_
Types of- Remsurance B U FCR P R SN N P o :

Industry Trends~~' A

We believe that over the last few decades the product1on and distribution of llfe insurance has .
experienced several fundamental trends ’ '

,i{\“"" - e ; N . Kl

Trends in the Productton of sze Insumnce Products

’ '- Product Proliferation. The life instirafice market has ¢volved from one offering a han/dful_of
industry-standardized products to one with products that are highly differentiated across the
_industry and even within a particular company. This has been driven primarily by, the market s
demand for more complex, investment-oriented products, as well as technological 1mprovements
that-have enabled the support. and admmrstratlon of such products

. Demutualzzatzon A ‘number of large mutual life’ inisurance compames have converted into publicly
traded stock compani¢s. We beliéve that this conversion has caused those compariies to focus more
on maximizing product profitability. and stockholder value.

oy

* Consolidation’ among sze Insurance Compames Industry pressures on profitability and the desire
to achieve economies 'of scalé have diiven consdlidation of life insurance companies. "Although we
. believe that larger,. stronger insurance companies have a-more, focused approach to distribution
channels it has also created a greater degree of competltlon among fewer insurers for access to
. those. drstnbutron channels. Th1s increased competition has pressured insurance companies to
increase agent comm1ss10ns thereby lowermg their profit margins, and increasing the insurers’ focus
" on securmg stable reliable access to d1str1but1on channels

T rends in the Distribution of sze Insurance Products
* Diversification of Dzstrzbutzon Channels H1stoncally, most llfe insurers drstnbuted therr products
through their own captive agency sales force. Although this traditional distribution channel is still
utilized, insurers are now increasingly selling their products through IMOs (mcludmg 1ndependent
agents, brokerage firms, banks.and .other alternative distribution channels), enabling the insurers to
. - focus their resources on their principal:expertise: product development, underwriting, investment
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management and policy. administration. As a rcsult insurers 1ncreasmgly rely on IMOs for agent
. recruitment, training and sales support. : '

. Increa;vingly Complex Regulatory Env,ironm'eht“ . Regulatioh of insurance sales has become more
" extensive as products have become more complicated and the distribution systems have become
.more diverse. As a result, the cost of compliance with such regulations has risen dramatically and

has made it more difficult for IMOs to manage a diverse portfolio of products.’

o Consolidation among Distribution Channels and the Emergence of National Distribution Franchises.
In order to achieve economies of scale and increased bargaining power, a number of IMOs have
grown and dcquired other, smaller IMOs,

We believe that these trends have led to a rmsahgnment of 1nterests between the IMOs that distribute
the products and the life insurance companies that create those products The separation of life insurance
companies from distribution channels, followed by the growing strength of those distribution chahncls
creates an environment where the distributors control access to the life insurance consumers. The
independent distributors’ ability to select the products to sell to the public has given them significantly
greater influence over product development. Often, product selection decisions are driven by a desire for
immediate commissions rather than on the value provided by long-term relationships focused on writing
persistent, high quality business. Addmonally, this short-term focus has inhibited the product development
process, as life insurance companiés are reluctant to invest in the development of products.for distribution
relationships that'may not be long lasting. We believe that these trends have created an environment in

- which life insurance companies seek more stable and reliable distribution networks in which distributors

have long-term incentives to write persistent, high quality business and the insurance companies have less
pressure to pay higher commissions to the distributors solely to gain and maintain access to the consumers.

The Global Preferred Value Proposition

We strive to align the interests between life insurance dlstnbutors and hfe insurance companies by
developing long-term, collaborative reinsurance relationships. The: foundation for these relationships is our
ability to provide IMOs meamngful ﬁnanc1al mcentlves through proﬁt sharing structures, such as producer-
owned reinsurance.

Benefits to Distributors.

« Participates ini Benefits from Reinsurance. Through the financial incentives we provide; distributors
receive financial benefits in addition to traditional commissions. Alternatively, we provide focused
advisory services to IMOs 1nterestcd in establishing thelr own reinsurance structure..

u

-« Increases in Net Operating Margins. ~Similarly, to‘the extent that the feceipt of financial incentives
results in a recognizable item for income statement purposes, distributors will be able to
substantially increase their net operating margins w1thout incurring addmonal costs.

» Enhances Ability to Assess Quality of Business. As the overall economic package to- the distributor
is increasingly influenced by the long-term performance of the business they sell, distributors will be
driven to gain more information regarding the dnvers of proﬁtablhty and they will seek to enhance

- the quality of business they produce. =~ - ;

»" Increases Involvement in Product Development. As distributors become increasingly focused on
long-term product success, they will want to become more involved in product development
decisions to improve sales volume and profitability within the products they sell.

Beneﬁts to Insurer

_» Stabilizes Product Dtstrzbutlon “Reinsurance-driven. partnerships with distribution channels inter-
ested in performance-based incentives should result in more stable relationships with the channels.
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_ As the financial benefits of a profit-sharing program are realized over a number of years, a long-
term relationship between the distribution channel and the insurer develops.

« Motivates Distributor to Focus on Quality of Business. - As. distributors’ economic interests become
‘more aligned- with those of the insurers whose policies they sell, they will become more focused on’
the quality of that' busmess

e Helps Allevzate Downward Margzn Pressure By complementmg commission dollars w1th the other
financial incentives we provide, distributors should be less inclined. to seek continual commission
" increases fyom insurers; resulting in measurable improvements in the insurers’ margins.-Further,
i,_nsurersshoﬁld realize expense savings otherwise expended to maintain stability and growth in sales.
As insurers recognize ‘the long-term benefits we are creating for them with the distribution channels
and improvéd margins, those insurers will be more hkely to choose us for remsurance to help assure
contmued 1ong-term distribution relatlonshlps '

. Focuses Dlsmbution System on Speczﬁc Products.  Since the financial incentives paid by us will be
linked to the sale of specific products; distributors w111 place an emphasis on selhng those products
in order to recelve the additional financial benefits. -

In addmon to collaborative reinsurance relat-1o‘nsh1ps, through our subsidiaries we offer life insurance
management and actuarial advisory services, and administrative services to both IMOs and insurers
engaged in reinsurance or related activities. Our independence and objectivity, coupled with depth of
experience and expertise associated with distribution systems and insurers, offers value added business
solutions from a single source entity that can be essential in today’s environment. By providing these
benefits to both the IMO and the insurer, we are able to develop long-term relationships with both parties,
thereby contributing to our growth opportunities.

Growth. Strategy =

Our objectives are to build strong financial performance, loyal independent marketing organization
relationships, and stockholder value. We aim to achieve these objectives through the following growth
strategles S : :

. Broadening Existing Relationships We will seek to grow our business by (1) broadening the pool
of products that we reinsure for the ceding life companies with which we have existing reinsurance
arrangements and (2) establishing new reinsurance arrangements with other life insurance
companies that sell products through our existing IMO relationships.

. Forming New Relationships with Other IMOs and Ceding Life Companies. We intend to form new
relationships with other IMOs and ceding life companies by: (1) marketing directly to IMOs and
life insurance companies; (2) leveraging our existing IMO relationship to gain access to other
ceding life companies and IMOs; and (3) utilizing our relationships with our ceding life companies
to establish relationships with additional IMOs.

» Continuing to Expand Reinsurance Coverage of Current Business and New Business Under Existing
Agreements. We have contractual rights under our existing agreements with Western Reserve to:

" (1) expand the scope of our reinsurance coverage on certain existing policies and (2) subject to
certain minimum sales volume thresholds, increase our reinsurance participation of new policies and
expand our reinsurance to include new products offered by Western Reserve that are sold through a
leading IMO of the AEGON Group

Distribution Relationsh_ips and Sales_Strategies

Our strategy is to generate reinsurance business through strong, incentive-based relationships with
IMOs that have the desire and ability to establish long-term reinsurance relationships with ‘the life
insurance companies whose products they sell. Further, through our new subsidiaries, we offer advisory and -
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management services to IMOs that desire to establish a reinsurance structure or may have an exrstmg
reinsurance structure. : ' .

We believe that IMOs that develop long-term relationships have a greater incentive to .place profitable
and persistent business with those life insurers that reinsure through their reinsurance partner: This three-
party relationship creates positive economic opportunities for each party, as the IMO may benefit above
and beyond commissions, and we and the life insurance company beneﬁt through 1ncreased sales and
incremental profitability of the business.

All of the policies we currently reinsure have resulted from the marketing efforts of the independent
agents who have been associated with World  Financial Group, Inc., a subsidiary of the, AEGON. Group,
and its predecessor, World Marketing Alliance, Inc. (“WMA Agency”). Our relationship with World
Financial Group was formed in June 2001, when certain assets of WMA Agency were sold to World
Financial Group. As a result of the asset acquisition, substantially all of the agents of WMA.Agency
became associated with World Financial Group. Our relationship with WMA Agency dates back to our
founding in 1993, when we were principally formed to provide an opportunity for its agents to participate
indirectly in the reinsurance of the business they produced. Many of those individual agents purchased an
equity ownership in our company through a private sale of common stock in 1995 and a subsequent sale of
preferred stock in 2000. Many of these agents still own a 51gn1ﬁcant portlon of the outstanding common
stock of Global Preferred :

Reinsurance Relationships

Current Reinsurance Business

We currently provide reinsurance for variable universal life and variable annurty policies 1ssued by four
large life insurance companies. Our reinsurance agreements with these ceding life companies provide for
our assumption of a portion of defined risks associated with specified products sold by agents of the IMO
with which we have a relationship. Reinsurance under these agreements is automatic, meaning we are -~
required to accept the business ceded to us so long as the ceding life companies satisfy the terms of the
reinsurance agreements L o

The following table indicates, by ceding life company, the types of policies we are: currently rernsurmg
and the type of rernsurance applicable to each

a . - -Type of Reinsurance ;
Ceding Life Company ‘ . ~ Renewable Term Coinsurance:  Modified Coinsurance

-Western Reserve R L t - Lo <
Variable umversal hfe T .V , v A
Variable annuity . e .. ........... Co A v

American.Skandia ' _ ) | .
Variable annuity............... e : P 4

Pacific Life o ' '

Variable universal life :................. L

Kemper L

Variable un1versal life .........0 ..., S

. We.‘ha\-’e four separate reinsurance agreements with Western Reserve that cover variable universal life
insurance and variable annuity policies issued by Western Reserve on- or after January 1, 1992 which are
sold by the agents of World Financial Group and its predecessor. These agreements were entered into on
July 1, 1996, January 1, 1998, April 1, 1998, and October 1, 1999, respectively. The agreement with
American Skandia began on January 1, 1997 and covers policies on an American Skandia variable annuity -
product issued between January 1, 1997 and December 31, 2002 sold by those same agénts. The Kemper
agreement was effective September 1, 1996 and covers all policies on a Kemper variable universal life
product issued between September 1, 1996 and- March 31, 2001 sold by those agents: Our agreement with.
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. Pacific Life was signed on June 25, 2001 and covers policies on a variable un1versal life product 1ssued on
" or after January 1, ~2001 sold by those agents

Eﬂectrve May 29 2003 Kemper Investors ere Insurance Company (“Kemper Investors”) Eederal
"Kemper Life Assur_ance Company (‘“Federal Kemper”) and Global Preferred Re Limited entered-into-a. -:
Novation Agreement, whereby Federal. Kemper became a party to our Kemper reinsurance agreement -
replacing Kemper Investors. The Novation Agreement substitutes Federal Kemper for Kemper Investors,
binds Federal Kemper by all of the terms and conditions, allows Federal Kemper enjoy all of Kemper
Investors’ rights and instructs Federal Kemper to perform all of Kemper Investors’ duties, obligations and
liabilities under the above referenced Kemper agreement. Concurrent with the novation, Federal Kemper
was acquired by, and became a busmess "unit of, Bank One Corporation. -

. We belleve that the terms of our reinsurance arrangements are favorable for our mdustry and that we.
were able to-obtain these terms in part because of our strong relationship with the agents associated with -
World Financial Group. Qur right to reinsure new business under our reinsurance agreements generally

“extends for an initial term of 3 to 5 years, with automatic renewals and one-year notices of termination
following the initial term. Termination of our right to reinsure new business does not, however, affect our
right to continue to reinsure the policies reinsured at the time of termination. Under our agreements, we
have: the right to continue to reinsure‘a policy for as long as.it remains in effect or until the ceding life
company otherwise Tecaptures it. A’ ceding life company may have the right to'recapture a reinsured policy
only upon ‘certain defaults or after:a perrod of 10 years or longer dependlng on the terms of the relevant
reinsurance agreement T - ' ’

sy

First Right Agreemént -

Following World Financial Group’s purchase of certain assets of WMA Agency in June 2001 we
entered 1nt0 a First Right Agreement with Western Reserve that provrdes us a first’ r1ght to remsure
certain new products issued by Western Reserve or its U.S: affiliates that are sold by agents ‘associated
with World F1nanc1al Group Pursuant to thrs agreement we possess the following contractual nghts to

.+ Commence reinsurance of Freedom Ehte Builder variable universal life insurance policies and nders

issued from January l 2002 through December 3l 2002 up to 20% on'a coinsurance and mod1ﬁed
- coinsurance basrs ! . R -

i Commence reingurance of any. srngle hfe varrable universal life insurance pol1c1es and nders 1ssued
from January 1, 2003 through March 31,,2005 up to 20% on a coinsurance and: modified -
coinsurance basis. Thrs contractual right is sub]ect to certain prem1um productron requrrements

. Prospectlvely reinsure all new single life variable unrversal life insurance pol1c1es up-to 20% on a

- monthly renewable term basis at 105% of premium rates otherwise available from certain

+ commercial reinsurers. This right extends through March 31; 2006 and is sub]ect to certain-
premium production requrrements and

« Commence or increase reinsurance on certaln vanable annuity pohc1es issued from January l 2003
through December 31, 2004 up to 40% on a coinsurance and modified coinsurance basis, subject to
certain premium production requirements

These rights automatrcally extend for one- year renewal periods unless either party gives. notrce of
termination 180 days prior. to the expiration of the applicable initial or renewal term. Certain of these ]
rights ‘would have expired at December 31, 2003 and thereafter, but have been indefinitely extended to a
date 90 days. following receipt of written notice by either paity. For the coinsurance and modified. -
coinsurance of variable universal life ‘and variable annuity products, rights under the First Right Agreement
are subject to- minimum sales.volume thresholds. Western Reserve has indicated to us, through informal -
repoits,.that total premium production requirements were not met for.the reinsurance. of variable unrversal
life policies issued in 2003 and 2004 and for variable annuity policies issued in 2004. - .
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Global Preferred’s decision to reinsure these products is based on a number of relevant factors,
including the attractiveness of the reinsurance rates prescribed by the agreement, the volume of business
and our available capital. So far, we have chosen not to commence reinsurance of this business because
(a) deferral of the election will maximize our return on such business reinsured; (b) continued increases
in our capital may result in opportunities of securing additional financing at a favorable cost, and
(c¢) deferral allows us to maintain ﬂex1b111ty to invest in new business initiatives for dlver51ﬁcat10n and
future growth

Directed Remsurance A greement

Global Preferred entered into a Directed Remsurance Agreement w1th World F1nanc1a1 Group. in July
2001 that extends through June 8, 2008, which requires World Financial Group to use its commercially
reasonable best efforts to help us attain the opportunity to reinsure all insurance products sold by its agents
for insurance companies with which it has selhng agreements other than Western Reserve and Western
Reserve’ s affiliates. » :

Reinsurance of New Business with Other Insurance Companies

We intend to enter into reinsurance agreements with other insurance companies: from time to time .
and such decisions will be based on a number of relevant factors, including the attractiveness of the
reinsurance rates prescribed by the agreement, the volume of business, our relationship with the insurance
company and/or the IMO, and our available capital capacity. We intend to enter into agreements with . -
other IMOs similar to our directed reinsurance agreement with World Financial Group.

Investments

Our investments are selected with the objective of - achieving favorable investment returns consistent
with approprlate credit, diversification, tax and regulatory considerations, while providing sufficient liquidity
to enable us to meet our obligations as a reinsurance company on a timely basis. We have developed
specific investment guldehnes that stress diversification of risk, conservation of principal, and liquidity. Our
investments, however, will.be subject to.market risks and fluctuations, as well as to the risks inherent in -
particular securities. Qur board of directors has established an Investment Committee to periodically
review the guidelines and investment portfolio and to make recommendations to the board of directors
regarding any changes. The board of directors reviews the guidelines annually. For additional information
pertaining to our investment portfolio, refer to “Item.-7. Managcment s Dlscussmn and Analy51s of
Financial Condmon and Résults of Operations — Investments.” '

a

We utilizé an lndependent investment manager to invest our assets in accordance with our investment
guidelines. Connlng Asset Management Inc., a subsidiary of Swiss Reinsurance Company, has been our
investment manager since June 1998. The Investment. Committee of the board of directors periodically
reviews the performance of, and the fees paid to, Conning. We are not aware of any affiliation by.us with
Conning other than through our pool retrocession agreement with Swiss Re Life & Health America, Inc.
The fees paid to Conning for services rendered during 2003 totaled $63,747.

Underwriting and Policy Administration

As an automatic reinsurer, we rely upon the underwriting of the ceding life companies on policies we
reinsure. We review and monitor the underwriting standards and procedures of the ceding life companles
including rules for pohcy continuations, changes, re- entrles remstatements and conversions.

The cedlng life companles administer policies we reinsure and provide us with all 1nformation
necessary for processing the reinsurance. We have conducted only a limited review of the administrative
practices of our ceding life companies. Therefore, we may not have sufficient information to properly
evaluate the administration of the business we reinsure or the accuracy of the information provided by the
ceding life companies. '
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Our reinsurance agreements give us the right to periodicaily audit the books and records of the ceding
life companies to ensire that- all business is being properly ceded and administered. Management also
¢communicates frequently with the ceding life companies regarding the administration of the business,-
‘business policies and practices, underwntlng procedures quality of business consrderatrons, and reinsured:
pohcy expenence - -

Retentlon

Our proﬁtabrhty depends, in part, on the volume and amount of death claims incurred. While death
claims are reasonably predictable over a period of many years, -claims become less predictable over shorter’
periods and are subject to fluctuation from period to period. Actual mortality experience in a particular -
period may be greater than expected mortahty experience and consequently, may adversely affect our
operatmg results for such period.

As a partral hedge agamst the unpredlctabrhty of claims experience, we have entered 1nto a pool

" retrocession agreement covering certain life insurance policies we reinsure. Under the pool rétrocession
agreement, multiple reinsurers participate in the risks ceded by us. Standard mortality risks in excess of
our life insurance retention limit of $100,000 per life are retroceded to pool participants, which include:
ERC Life Reinsurance Corporation, -Swiss Re Life & Health America, Inc., The Lincoln, Nat10na1 ere
Insurance. Company, and Transamerica Occidental Life Insurance Company

It equrty markets decline sufﬁcrently, we may incur a claim expense on certain annuity policies in’
excess of our hfe insurance retention limit of $100,000 per life. Currently, eight annuity pohcres or 0.02%,
~of our annuity policies in'force exceed our life insurance retention limit by an aggregate exposure of
approximately $264,000 with an average excess exposure of approximately $33,000 per life. Increases in
the equity market may result in fewer annuity policies exceeding our life insurance retention limit while
_ decreases in the equrty market may result in more annurty policies exceeding our life insurance retentlon
hmlt ‘

Regulation of Global Preferred Re
Bermuda ' o
The Insurance Act 1978.and. related regulations of Bermuda (the “Insurance Act’ ’), which regulates
the insurance business of Global Preferred Re, provides that no person shall carry on any insurance
business-in or from within Bermuda unless registered as an insurer.under the Insurance Act by the

Bermuda Monetary. Authority. (the “Authorrty”) Under the Insurance Act, insurance business includes
reinsurance business. o A

The Insurance Act imposes solvency and hqurdrty standards and auditing and reporting requirements
and grants to the Authorrty powers to:

fé ' grant and revoke regrstratlon

+ require statutory financial statements;

+ limit the amount of dividends and other payments;
+ regulate transfer of business and winding-up; and

* supervise, investigate (as well as assist on investigations by certain foreign regulatory authorities),
requisition information and intervene in the affairs of Bermuda insurance companies (mcludmg
hmrtatrons on new business and regulating mvestments)

The Authorrty may appoint an' inspector with extensive powers to’investigate the. affairs of an insurer
if the Authority believes that an investigation is required in the interest of the insurer’s policyholders or
persons who may become policyholders. Further, Global’ Preferred Re, as a long-term insurer registered

under the Insurance Ac't, may only be wound-up or liquidated by order of the applicable Bermuda court.
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. Independent Approved Auditor. Every registered insurer must appoint an independent-auditor who
'w111 annually audit and report on the statutory financial statements. and the statutory financial return.of the
insurer, both: of which, in the case of Global Preferred Re, are required to be filed annually with the: . . -,
Authority. The independent- auditor of the insurer must be approved by the Authority and may be the
“same person or firm that audits the insurer’s financial statements and reports for presentation to its- "
shareholders. Global Preferred Re’s independent auditor is Deloitte & Touche.

Statutory Financial Statements. An insurer must prepare annual statutory financial statements. The
Insurance Act prescribes rules for the preparation and substance of such statutory financial statements,
Wthh 1nclude .in statutory form .a balance sheet, an.income statement, a statement of «capital and surplus.'
and notes thereto The insurer is:required to give detailed information and analyses regardlng premiums, .
claims, reinsurance, and investments. Global Preferred Re as a long-term insurer, is required to submit to,
the Authonty the annual statutory ﬁnan01al statements as part of its annual statutory financial return

Minimum Solvency Margin, Restrzctlons on Dividends. The Insurance Act also regulates the .
payment of d1v1dends and the minimum solvency margin. For addmonal 1nformat10n refer to Note 9, to
the- Consohdated Financial Statements. :

-

Principal Representative. An insufer is requlred to maintdin a principal oﬂice in Bermuda and to
appoint and maintain a principal representative in Bermuda. For the purpose of the Insuratice Act, Global
~ Preferred Re’s principal representative is International Advisory'Services, Ltd. (“IAS”) and its principal
office is located at 44 Church Street, 3rd Floor, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. Without a reason acceptable
to the Authorrty, Global Preferred Re may not terminate the appointmient of its prlncrpal representatlve,
and the pnncrpal representatrve may not cease to act as such, unless 30 days’ notrce in writing to_the }
Authority is given of the intention to do so. It is the duty of IAS, as Global Preferred Re’s principal - ,
representatrve, ‘within 30 days of reaching the view that there is a likelihood of it becoming insolvent or
that a reportable event has, to the pnnc1pa1 representative’s knowledge, occurred or is believed to have ~
occurred, to make a report in writing fo'the Authority setting out all the particulars of thé case that are
available to the principal representative.

United States

In general, reinsurers domiciled outside the United States (referred to as “alien reinsurers”) are not
subject to substantial direct regulation in the United States..The insurance laws of each ‘state of the..
United States generally do not regulate the sale of reinsurance within their jurisdictions by - e
non-U.S. insurers. However; alien reinsurers, such. as. Global Preferred Re, that provide: reinsurance to
insurance companies domiciled or licensed in United States jurisdictions are indirectly regulated: by'state
“credit for reinsurance” laws. These laws operate to deny statutory financial statement credit:to ceding
insurers unless the unauthorized alien reinsurer posts acceptable security for ceded habrlmes and agrees to
certain contract provisions. :

The state insurance laws in the United States restricting the investments of insurance companies are
not applicable to Global Preferred Re. Unlike insurance regulations in the United Statés, Bermuda law
does not limit or regulate investments of Global Preferred Re as a.long-term insurer provided that such
investments are made for its potential benefit and the mlmmum solvency ratlos prescnbed under the
Insurance Act are not breached. : ' : -
Competition -

' 'Reinsu'rance and insurance companies compete based on manyufact_ors, including:

* Premium charges; '

. -Abrhty to structure 1nnovat1ve terms and. condltlons in product offerings;

* The general reputatlon and percelved ﬁnancral strength of the relnsurer or 1nsurer;'

-. Relatlonsh1ps with reinsurance and insurance mtermedlanes PRI

12




» Ratings assigned by independent rating agencies;
» Speed of claims payment and administrative activities; and
.« Experience in the particular risk to be underwritten.

While we compete with numerous nat1onal and international reinsurance companies, primary
insurance companies, underwrmng syndicates and other financial services providers, many of which are
well established, have significant operating histories and substantially greater underwriting, marketing and
administrative resources than we do, we believe that our focus on building relationships with IMOs can be
" a distinguishing feature.

Distinguishing us from other companies in our industry, our growth'strategy includes the expansion of
our relationships with IMOs through the formation of reinsurance structures specific to their business or
through the use of financial incentives, which may include stock, warrants and other forms of equity in our
company. We believe our core strengths and experusc ‘will result in:

+ Fee income assoc:1ated w1th administrative services and from actuanal and management adv1sory
semces L it ‘

. Remsurance revenues resulting from favorable agreements.with IMO . reinsurance structures; and

» Reinsurance revenues resulting from favorable agreements with ceding life companies, beneﬁtmg
IMOs that are ﬁnanmally motivated to 1nﬁuence cedmg company relatlonshlps with us.

Our ablhty to compete w1th other potential reinsurers in thls market will depend upon our ability to. :
‘successfully develop and maintain strong relationships with' IMOs. In additien to our continuing focus on ..
our current independent agent relationships, we commenced 1mplemcntmg marketmg programs in late
2002 to develop new IMO relatlonshlps oo ' o

Direct insurance companies who are licensed to underwrite insurance are also hcensed to underwnte
reinsurance, making commercial access into the reinsurance business relatively uncomplicated. In addition;
over the last several years, capital markets participants, including exchanges and financial intermediaries,
have developed financial products intended to compete with traditional reinsurance. We are unable to
predict the extent to which new, proposed or potential initiatives may affect the demand for our products.
Barriers to entry to the reinsurance industry for non-insurers are chiefly the time, capital, and talent
necessary to attract, underwrite, and manage the business.

. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully, and the inability to do so could
have a material adverse effect upon our ability to implement our strategies.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we had ten full-time employees. None of our emﬁloyees are covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.

We believe our future success will depend in large part on our ability to recruit and retain qualified
employees experienced in insurance and underwriting. The competition for such personnel is intense, and
there can be no assurance that we will be successful in retaining or recruiting key personnel.

Ttem 2. _ Properties

In October 2002, we entered into a lease agreement for office space in Duluth, Georgia. The initial
lease term, as amended, is twenty-four months, with the option to extend the term an additional thirty-
nine months, expiring in January 2008. Payments under this lease are $122,177 annually through October
2004. The lease payments are subject to an annual increase of approximately 3%. We do not own or lease
any other properties. '
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any material legal proceedings.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
During the fourth quarter of 2003 no matters were submitted to our securlty holders for a vote
PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrani’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

No public trading market exrsted for our common stock during 2003.

At March 15, 2004, we had 4,141,684 shares of common stock outstanding and apprommately 850
stockholders.

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock during 2002 or 2003 and our
board of directors does not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We
anticipate that all of our earnings and other cash resources, if any, will be retained for the purpose of
financing Global Preferred Re’s reinsurance business and will be available for other strategic opportunities
that may develop. Future dividend policy will be subject to the discretion of our board of directors, and
will be contingent upon our results of operations, financial position and capital requirements, general
business conditions, restrictions imposed by financing arrangements, if any, legal and regulatory restrictions
on the payment of dividends and other factors that our board of directors deems relevant. .

As a holdrng company with no ) direct operanons the payment of d1v1dends by us in the future w1ll be
largely dependent on our receipt of dividends from Global Preferred Re. For a discussion of restrictions on
the payment of dividends. by Global Preferred Re, refer to Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements: . .
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Item 6 Selected Fmancml Data

The following table sets forth selected ﬁnan01al data and other operating information. The selected
financial data have been derived from our consolidated financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” including elsewhere herein.

' Year Ended December 31, '
1999 . . 2000 2001 - 2002 ' 2003
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of Income _

Data: - ol ‘ .
Premiums ....... e $ 9692 § 16618 $§ 19240 $ 17985 § 17,401
Reinsurcd policy revenues. . ... 13,506 12,864 11,238 .. 13,859 © 12,7197
. Net investment income .......... 350 o528 . 8l 742 407
"Net realized gain (loss) on ‘ o A o
~ investments........... B (66) ' 34 428 21
Other Income ... ..... e S — — ' ,"— — © 63
Loss on recapture of business. . ... (823) — — — C o —
Total revenues ........ r:‘«:-' . 22,659 . 3Q,043 31 334A 33,014 30,689
Total benefits- and expenses il 16,114, 23,089 23480 30,708 27,757
Income before income tax ....% = 6545  '6954. 7854 2306 " 2932
Income tax expense...,.{., ..... (2 225) 'j(1 821)°  (2,392) (788) . (998)
Net iicome . ................. (4320 5133 5,462 1,518 1,934
Preferred dividends ........... L= ~T1ss o267 — —
Net income available to common R o o e
stockholders e i s e % 4320 $ 4978 $ 5195 0§ 1,518 . § 0 1,934
Ba_su’:‘ e'grmngs per4s‘har'é‘ O 115 $ 133 ¢ | 139 % 037 § "_0.47
Diluted earnings per share .....:. $ - 115, '$ 130 . $ 132 § 037 §$ 047

Weighted-average common shares. 3,742,610 3,742,610 - 3,742,610 4,141,684 4,141,684
Total weighted-average common L ' _ .
“and comimon equivalent shares.. 3,742,610 - 3,943,897 - 4,141,684 4,141,684  4;141,684

December 31, L
1999 © 2000 2001 2002 2003
(Dollars in thousands). :

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: B o -
Cash and cash equivalents ....... $ 3,476 $ 4259 $ 8,062 $ 15858 $ 11,580

Fixed maturity and equlty _ : '

securities ............... P . 2,054 - 5912 12,214 2,798 17,768
Deferred acquisition costs ... .. ... 39,750 T 42,752 42,800 49,850 © 45,608
Total assets . .............. ceee. o 49,008 . 56,617 - 67,853 74,274 79,284
DEbt. .ttt . 9,179: . - 5000 5000, .  5000. 5000
Total liabilities ............. e 20,600 20,028 25,384 v 30,952 33,978

~ Stockholders’ equity.. . . .. . I 28,408 36,589 41,969 43,322 "_ 45,305
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December .31, . o
1999 2000 2001 2002 .. 2003
e (Dollars in thousands) o

* Summary of Policies Reinsured:

Number of life insurance pollCles S o ‘ :
and riders reinsured ......... 260,356 296,674 287,303 265,384 239,201

Number of annurty pohcles R , |
“xginsured ...l L .. © 724,483 © o 43,819° 48,007 48,889 48,285
Face value of life insurance NS 1 ’

reinsured .. ....... ...l $8,030,219  $9,378,075  $9,082,204 - $8,451,310  ..$7,606,281

Annuity policy benefits reinsured .. $§ 324,827 $ 310,063 $ 266,305 $ 224,710 $ 252,180

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following analysis of our consolidated financial condition and results of oper:a'ti?ons should be read
in conjunction with “Selected Financial Data” and the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes included elsewhere in this report. " o

Overview..

- ‘Global Preferred provides reinsurance solutions for thé lif‘e insurance and annuity industry. ‘Our
principal business objective is‘to align the long-term interests between independent marketing: organizations
and life insurance companies. Through these collaborative relatlonshrps we believe both the IMOs and
insurers beneﬁt from mutually rewarding relationships based on parallel interests, a dedlcatlon to quahty
business, and & focus on managing insurance and- dlstnbutlon risk for long-tetm economic rewards

Although our reinsurance business is directed to us through these independent agent relatlonshlps, the
life insurance and annuity policies that we currently reinsure are- underwritten and issued by various ceding
life companie‘s In the insurance industry, the term ceding refers to the-use of reinsurance to #ransfer’
from one‘insurance company to another some or all of the nsks assocmted with one or more:insurance
policies. We often refer.to a life i 1nsurance _company. that reinsures life insurance and annuity policies
through us as a cedmg life company.” The strength of our current reinsurance business is based on our
historical. relatlonshlp with the 1ndependent agents of World Financial Group, which is an ‘indirect
subsidiaty of AEGON USA, Inc’ and an IMO that markets the products we currently reinsure.

. Under a reinsurance agreement, the economic consequences of certam 1nsurance nsks are transferred
from the ceding life company to the reinsurer. Depending upon the type of reinsurance agreement, these
risks may include mortahty, pers1stency, investment and expense. Key considerations in evaluating the risks
1nc1ude ; U

. 1ndustry e)-(perience'»” r
. the ceding life company s pricing and assumptrons
. the type of product
. ; "+ the ceding life cornpany""sf underwrit_ing practices. and procedures;
. the type ‘of distribution system' . . e , ' | . | .
« "+ the ceding hfe company s recent expenence and -

‘. . the market for the product

The ceding life companies retain responsibility for the payment of all claims, surrender values,
commissions, and expenses involved in issuing and maintaining the policies we reinsure. In addition, the
ceding life companies administer the reinsurance contracts and, on a monthly and quarterly basis, provide
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~ us with information regarding premiums, reserves and benefits and the amounts we owe to the ceding life
company for elarms and settlement expenses on the pol1c1es we remsure

_ Types of Réinsurance - -

We currently write three types of re1nsurance on a'quota share basrs renewable term comsurance and

modified coinsurance.. L IS

Renewable Term. Renéwable term, also referred to as risk’ premium remsurance which- includes -
monthly renewable term and- yearly renewable term, is a-plan of reinsurance in which the premium rates
are.not directly related to the_premium rates on the .original plan of insurance.. Under renewable term’
reinsurance, the, cedmg l1fe :company. reinsures a portion of the mortallty risk with us.. The amount ,
reinsured in any one perlod is not based on the face amount of the policy, but rather on- .the portion of the
net amount at risk we reinsure. The net amount at risk is typlcally defined as the difference between the
death bénefit and the cash-value of a policy. The ceding life’company establishes the policy reserves,
which are’reduced for the mortalrty risk réinsured’ with us, and pays all policy-benefits, comirnissions and
expenses involved in issuing ‘and’ mamtam1ng the bus1ness Correspondlngly, we establish: reserVes specrﬁc
to the- mortahty tisk remsured - e :

Under renewable term re1nsurance ,we may, also, be subject to the eﬁ"ects of persrstency risk.
Persistency risk is the risk that a pohcyholder either stops paying premiums, which would, cause the pohcy
to lapse, or chooses to surrender the policy for the cash surrender value. The effect of persrstency nsk on

us is that: poss1ble future revenue wrll be reduced pOtent1ally reducing proﬁts . s

Comsurance Under a comsurance arrangement the ‘insured risks are ceded to us on. essentlally the
same basis as underwntten by the cedmg life company. “The- ceded risks. include- -mortality, persrstency,
investment, and expense. We share the risks- pro. rata w1th the ced1ng life company. We receive a
proportronate share of gross prermums from the ced1ng life. company and provide. contractual expense
‘allowances to the cedmg life company. to. pay for.the expenses- assomated with the reinsured pol1c1es
Expenses include commissions and. costs assocmted w1th underwntmg, marketing, pohcy issue, and . |
maintenance. We also pay our proportronate share of death beneﬁts and other pohcy benefits to the cedmg
life company. The reserves on the ceded portion of the pollcy are held by us and are our obhganons
Correspondingly, we invest the assets related to the reserves and receive investment income from those
assets

Modtﬁed Coznsurance Mod1ﬁed cornsurance is s1mrlar to comsurance except the cedmg llfe
company does not transfer the reserves or the, 1nvested assets related. to the reserves. Modified - co1nsurance
is used pnmanly for products that’ develop cash values and allows the cedlng life company to reta1n the .
associated assets for investment, purposes S .

Critical Accountmg Policies and Estimates .- - o L iy

The. preparatron of ﬁnancral statements in conform1ty w1th accountlng pr1nc1ples generally accepted 1n
the United States requ1res management to make’ éstimates and assumptlons regardmg uncertainties that
affect certaln amounts in the consohdated ﬁnan01al statements and related’ footnotes. Accounts, that we '
deem to be sensitive to changes in estimates 1nclude “deferred acquisition costs and future pol1cy benefits.
In all mstances actual, results could differ from’ est1mates A summary of s1gn1ﬁcant accountmg pohcles is
included i in- Note 2 to, the Consohdated Fmancral Statements

AR w Lo Lo L
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Income Statement -

[N

Reinsurance Revenues. For renewable term reinsurance, we record as “premiums” the amount of
reinsurance premiums we receive over the payment periods of the reinsured policies. For policies reinsured
on a coinsurance or modified coinsurance basis, we record as “reinsured policy revenues” our proportionate -
share of the gross revenues received by the ceding life company over the payment periods of the reinsured
policies. These revenues represent the policy mortality and expense charges, asset-based allowances and
"deferred sales, charges that have been assessed against the reinsured policy account balances. .

" Upon election to convert certain reinsured policies from a renewable term basis to a coinsurance or
modified coinsurance basis, the associated premium revenues for those policies will discontinue, and our
proportionate ‘share of the associated mortality and expense charges, asset based allowances and deferred
sales charges wrll be recorded as reinsured policy revenues : -

Remsurance _Expe_nses Regardless of the type of remsurance our related €xpenses may include:
(1) benefits, claims and. settlement expenses, which represent our share of the payments made under the
reinsured policies during the period, the change in claims in course of settlement, and the change in claims
incurred but nat reported; (2). expense allowances paid to the ceding life company for expenses associated
with the reinsured policies, including commissions and costs associated with underwriting, marketing,
policy issue and maintenance; and (3) amortlzatlon of deferred acqulsmon costs which are discussed in
more detail below ' :

' Net Income. Our profitability, in part; depends on the volume of policies reinsured and experience of
the reinsured policies. Factors that affect the experience of the business include reinsured policy
persistericy, death’ claims, and investment performance of the separate-account balances. While death
claims are ‘reasonably predictable over a period of years, claims become less predietable' over shorter
periods, and ‘are subject to fluctuation from' quarter. to quarter and year to year Slmrlarly, separate account:
mvestment returns, upon which a significant portion of our revenues depend, may have relatxvely stable-
returns over a period of years but can be volatile over shorter periods. A considerable amount of separate
‘account balances i is invested in equities; therefore prolonged detenoratron in the equity markets wrll result
ina decrease in our current and future 1ncome :

Balance Sheet

Deferred Acguisition Costs. We caprtahze and defer costs that vary with and are primarily related to
the acquisition of the reinsured policies.” These expenses are’ deferred to'the extent that such costs are
deemed recoverable from future policy revenues and are recorded as deferred acqursrtlon costs on the -
balance sheet. Such costs include reinsurance expense allowarices paid to ceding life compames and may
include other underwriting costs such as actuarial, legal and accounting fees.

Deferred acquisition costs are amortized over the lives of the underlying policies,:in conformity. with
the terms of the reinsurance agreement. Under the renewable term agreements, deferred acquisition costs
are amortized in ‘proportion to the premium revenue related to the mortality risk reinstred. Such premium
revenue is-estimated using the same assumptions used for computing liabilities for future policy benefits.
Such assumptions include estimates of expected investment yields, mortality, persistency and expenses
applicable at the time the policiés are reinsured. Ongmal assumptions on renewable term business contmue
to be used in subsequent accounting periods to determine changes in the deferred acqulsltlon costs unless a
premium deficiency exists. Under the renewable term agreements, the amortization is-in proportion to the
ratio of premiums collected during the then current period to total anticipated premiums and is adjusted to
reflect actual ‘persistency of the insurance in force.

Under the coinsurance and modified coinsurance agreements, the amortization of the deferred
acquisition costs is in proportion to the ratio of gross profits recognized during the then current period to
total anticipated future gross profits. During each accounting period, assumptions used in calculating the
amortization of the deferred acquisition expense reflect actual experience for the then current accounting
period. We also review, on a periodic basis, our evolving experience with regard to our assumptions
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concerning future experience as.to mortality, persistency, investment yields, and expenses in determining

our estimate of anticipated future gross profits: This periodic review is commonly referred to as
unlocklng Cur normal period of observation. is from October 1 of the previous calendar year through

September 30 of the current calendar year. If we believe variances from expected assumptions are

permanent, we will change the assumptions we use with regard to future experience. Upon adoption of any

change in assumptions used:with regard to future: experience, the amortization of the deferred acquisition
cost will be recalculated and reﬁected during the then-current accounting period.

A material component of vanable life. and annurty product revenues is denved from the asset-based

© fees that have been assessed against the palicy account balances, of which a considerable portion is
invested in the equity markets. The. volatility of ‘equity market returns over the short-term’can be
significant without materially impacting long -term equity market returns. Historical equity market
performance shows equity market volatility is miich higher-over short term horizons as compared ‘to long-
term horizons. The short-term volatlhty of the policy fund'value would result in a proportional adjustment
" to all future expected gross proﬁts if no other adjustments were made to account for the differences
between long—term and short-term volatility. We utilize a “credibility approach” to account for the
differences between long-term and short term volat1hty Under this approach, the estimates of future
expected gross profits are revised to recognize the effects short-term Volatlhty and market yields have upon
long-term yield expectations. We. review our approach annually to determine if additional adjustments to
amortization are necessary as a result of prolonged and/ or severe negative or positive equity market
performance. In such instances, the equity market performance must be sufficiently high or low to justify a
belief that the effect of current market condrtlons on future expected gross profits should be more
permanently reﬁeetcd ' e » ‘ - }

" In addition, ceitain vanable anfiuity pohcles wé reinsure include a death beneﬁt typically equal to a
return of premium or the highest level the fund values had accumulated over certain prescribed periods
under the annuity policy. Upon the death of an annuity pohcyholder we will incur a claims expense equal
to the excess, if ‘any, of the amount guaranteed under this provision over the then current policy fund
value. Fhis expense 1ncreases when equrty markets decline and decreases as equity markets incredse. We
utilize ‘an impli¢it approach to account for the" expense associated with these’ guaranteed minimum death -
benefits. Under this approach; future expected gross profits are decreased to acount for future expected
claims expenses. The short-term volatility of the policy fund value will result in significant volatility in the
expected claims expense if no recognition is made to acknowledge-differences between long-term yields
and short-term volatility. Our implicit approach recognizes the effect of long-term versus short-term
volatility when accounting for guaranteed minimum death benefits. In conjunction with the implementation
of Statement of Position (“SOP?"). 03- 1, (refer to Note -2 to the- Consolidated Financial Statements), we
will be converting from an implicit approach.to -an-explicit approach in first quarter 2004. We do not
: expect these. changes. to have a material.impact on our ﬁnan01al statements.

' Future Policy Beneﬁts L1ab111t1es for future benefits on hfe insurance policies are established in an
amount we estimate is adequate to meet the estimated future obligations on the policies in effect. Policy
reserves are included in “future pohcy benefits” on the consolidated balance sheet.

Liabilities for future policy benefits under the renewable term agreements include prov1s10ns for °
claims in the course of seftlement, claims incurred but not reported, and expected future claims: The
liability 1s estimated using.assumptions such' as estimates of expected investment yields, mortality,
pers1stency and expenses apphcable at the tlme the reinsurance contracts are executed.

L1ab1ht1es for‘future policy benefits under coinsurance and modified coinsurance agreements equal
reinsured policy account balances on the underlying life insurance and annuity policies. With regard to the
separate ‘account benefits reinsured on.a modified coinsurance basis, we record the liabilities as an offset to
related assets as our intentions and rights under the agreements with the ceding life companies meet the
appropriate conditions governing rights of setoff.. The nature of separate account benefits under variable life
insurance or variable annuity policies do not permit us to reinsure those benefits on a coinsurance basis.
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We currently reinsure the fixed account portion of life insurance and annuity policies only on a
coinsurance basis and, accordmgly, the liabilities for that portion of the relnsurance are recorded as future.
policy benefits. :

L1ab111t1es for future pollcy beneﬁts reﬂected in the consolidated ﬁnanc1a1 statements are based on
information provided to us by the ceding life companies. Reserves established by. us with respect to
individual risks or classes of business may not be the same as those established by ceding life companies
due to differing risks and assumptions regarding mortality, persistency, investment, and expenses.

y

Fair Value Disclosure

Investments. We class1fy all fixed: matunty secuntles and equity secuntles w1th readlly detemunable
fair values, as “available for sale.” Such securities are reported at fair value. Fixed maturity securities
available for sale are so classified based upon the ‘possibility that such secuntles could be sold prior to
maturity if that action enables us to execute our investment philosophy and appropnately match
investment results to operating and liquidity needs. Equlty securities are classified as available for sale
because we do not intend to actively trade such securities, Unrealized gains and losses on marketable
equity securities and fixed maturity, securities available for sale, less apphcable deferred income taxes, are
reported as a separate component of ¢ accumulated other cornprehenswe income” within stockholders’

equity.

Investment income is recognized as it accrues or becomes legal_l}';ldue. Realized gains or losses on
sales of investments are included in income, as are write-downs of securities where declines in value are
deemed to be other than temporary. The cost of investment securities sold-is determined based upon the
speciﬁc.identiﬁcation method. —— R : y e

Other Fmanczal Assets and Lzabzlmes The carrylng value of cash and cash equ1valents relnsurance':‘
recelvables and payables, short-term debt, accrued expenses and accounts payable approximate their fair
values.due to, the short- -term nature of these accounts. The“_carrymg value of future policy benefits .
approximates its fair value as credited interest approximates current market rates.

Our Current Reinsurance Agreements:

The life insurance and’annuity policies that we have reinsured to ddte are underwritten and issued by
Western Reserve, American Skandia, Kemper, and Pacific Life. The following-table indicates the
percentage of our reinsurance rcvenues denved from our ceding life companles o '

o ‘ " Year Ended December 31,

C . 2001 2002 2003
‘Western Reserve..;;:7.....'....';.-1...'.‘, ..... 89% 1 91% .. 92% -
American Skandia. ... ....... SR i 9 8 T
Kemper ........... PR REUUUN N 2 1 ]
Pacific Life(1) ............ P =@ = =@

Total.. ... . P S e T T S 100% . .100% 100% ..

W

(1) This agreement was effective as of January 1; 2001
(2) Less than 1%. i cooa
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The following table indicates, by ceding life company: (1) the names and types of insurance products
we currently reinsure; (2) the type of reinsurance agreement applicable to each; (3) policy issue dates
reinsured under each agreement and (4) the commencement date of the reinsurance.

Reinsurance
e - Product  Reinsurance : Commencement

Cedmg Llfe Company ey 'Reinsured Product Name Type(1) Type(2) Policy Issue Dates Date
Western Reserve e Freedom Equity Protector VUL ~ MRT o 1/92t0 12/99 - 7/96
~Western Reserve ~  Financial Freedom Builder VUL MRT  7/97 to 3/98 . 1197
Western Reserve  Financial Freedom Builder VUL~ Co/Modco  4/98 to 12/ 98 "4/ 98
Western Reserve  Financial Freedom Builder VUL MRT 1/99 to 3/01 10/99

Western Reserve finuncial Freedom Builder VUL  Co/Modco  4/01 to'12/01 C o102
‘Western Reserve  Financial Freedom Builder” VUL MRT 1702 t0'12/02 10/ 99
Western Reserve  Freedont Elite Builder © * VUL Co/Modco  7/01 to 12/01° ~ ~ 1/02
Kemper " Power VUL = VUL MRT 9/96 t0'3/01 - ' 9796
Pacific Life -- - Select Exec II - VUL YRT 1/01 to present _' 1/01
American Skandia Imperium - VA . Modco 1/97 to 12/02¢ “ =~ “1/97
Western Reserve - Freedom Wealth Creator - VA Co/Modco 1/98 to 12/01  5..1/98

Western Reserve Freedom Premier - o VA . Co/Modco: . 10/00 to present. ... 10/00

t

(1) “VUL” means vanable universal life product. “VA” means vanable annulty product

2) “MRT” means monthly renewable term. “YRT” means yearly renewable term “Co/ Modco means
coinsurance and modified comsurance \

. Under our reinsurance agreements w1th the ceding hfe companies, we currently remsure vanable life
insurance and variable annuity pohcres on either a renewable term basis or-a coinsurance and modified
coinsurance basis. The policies we reinsure on a renewable term basis represented 58% of our reinsurance
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. The policies we reinsure on a coinsurance and modified
coinsurance basis represented 42% of our reinsurance revenues for the same period. Of the 42%, 25%-
relates; to vanable life i insurance pohcles and 17% relates to varlable annuity p011c1es

Followmg World Flnan01al Group’s purchase of certain assets of WMA Agency in June 2001 we

. entefed into certain agreements with Western Reserve that provides us a first right to reinsure certain new

“products issued by Western Reserve or its U.S. affiliates that are sold by agents associated with World
Financial Group. Concurrently,”we entéred into-a best efforts agreement with World-Financial .Group.in.
July 2001 to help us attain the opportunity to reinsure all insurance products sold by its agents for
insurance companies other than Western Reserve and Western Reserve’s affiliates. Refer to Note 5 ‘to the
Consolidated . Financial Stater_nents for further drs_cussmn e e

£l
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Results 'ofv Operations :

The followmg table sets. forth certam operatlng data as a percentage of total revenue for the periods
indicated:
o ' . ‘ U ‘ , : } Year Ended December 31,
Co- T e o : 2001 . 2002 2003 -
i - ‘ - ¥ ' - IR . (As a percentage of total
: : revenue)

‘ Copsolidatedlst‘atements of Incom‘e‘ Data:

_Revenues: » . N ; P »
] Premiums.....'.....v....‘ ............. e P R 61% 55% . 57%

. Reinsured policy revenues .................. e .36 2 . a2

- .. Net investment income e ‘ 3 ‘ 2 ‘ ) 1

" Net realized gain on investments ......... e [P T — . 1 —

Otherir‘xcome.v........................5 ...... PR — o L —
‘Total revenues . .....:..o...onen... S e PO 100%  100%  100%

Benefits and expenses: ‘

- Benefits, claims and settlement :expenses . .......... e [ .. 20 26 . - 30.
Change in future policy benefits ... ... e P 8 57 4
Reinsurance expense allowances, net .. . ... P 27 26 27

* Amortization of deferred acquisition costs . ........... P, .o 13 ‘ 21 18
Operating eXpPenses . ... ...vvvreerrenrenneaneenenn.. A 6 9 11
Interest expense. ..ol i e L RS 1
Costs of withdrawn oﬁ'enng....‘._.",'. ..... = 5 =

.T,etal beneﬁts and expenses_ ....... e e 75 93 91

Income ‘béfore income tax ......:......ooveii.... P 25 79 '

Income tax expense ............ P P T ) 2y 3
~ Net income ... SOPRR I s 1% 5% 6%

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues

Premiums. Premiums decreased $584,000, or 3%, from $18.0 million for the year ended
December 31,2002 to $17.4 million for the same period in 2003. The majority of the premium decrease
was due to the decreasing business in force under our renewable term agreements, which is partially offset
by an increase in the average premium per policy. Policies in force are decreasing because the number of-
policy surrenders and lapses currently exceeds the number of new policies reinsured. Average premiums
per policy increase as the insured grows older.

'Reinsured Policy Revenues. Reinsured policy revenues decreased $1.1 million, or 8%, from
$13.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 to $12.8 million for the same period in 2003. This
decrease was primarily attributable to a decline in mortality and expense charges and asset-based
allowances resulting from a decline in average account balances in 2003 as compared to the same periods
in 2002 and the effect of policy surrender activity for our variable annuity business.
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Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gain on Investments. Net investment income decreased
$335,000, or 45%, from $742,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 to $407,000 for the same period
in 2003, primarily due to the decreased size of our fixed maturity securities portfolio. during 2003 as
compared to 2002. The decrease in our fixed maturity securities portfolio resulted from the sale of
$9.9 million of fixed maturity securities in 2002, with $8.5 million of such amount being sold in December
2002. The proceeds from these sales were predommantly held in cash and cash equlvalents during 2003.
The purchases and sales actlvmes by quarter are shown in the table below:

Investment Purchases and Sales

. C Quarter Ended - :
Dec. 31, 2002 Mar. 31,2003 June 30, 2003  Sept. 30, 2003 Dec. 31, 2003

Fixed maturity and equlty

secuntles )

Balance, beginning of quarter '$ll,73l,349 £2,798,190  $2,325,836 $3,196,467 $ 9,310,881
Purchases ................. 499,550 - - — 1,054,615 6,568,300 9,208,384
Sales ........... R . (8,484338) . . — - - (421,282)
Other activity .............. _ (948371) .(472,354) _ (183,984) - (453,886) (330,315)

Balance, end of quarter........ $ 2,798,190  $2,325.836 -$3,196,467  $9,310,881  $17,767,668

Net realized gain on investments decreased $406,000, from $428,000 for the year ended December 31,
2002 to $21,000 for the same period in 2003. The decrease was due to the sale of $9.9 million of fixed
" maturity securities in 2002 as compared to sales.of only $421,000 of securities in 2003. Net realized gains
are caused by a decline in market yields, which resulted in an increase in the fair value of the fixed
maturity securities in our portfolio.

Benefits and Expenses

Benefits, Claims and Settlement Expehses Beneﬁts clalms and settlement expenses increased
$840,000, or 10%, from $8.4 million for the year, “ended December 31, 2002 to $9.3 million for the same
period in 2003. The increase was primarily associated with a lower incidence of life insurance death claims
in 2002 compared to the incidence of death claims in 2003, an increase in the average death claim size,
and the increasing age of the policies reinsured, partially offset by a decline in the aggregate face value of
insurance. The aggregate face value of insurance underlying the polices we remsured at December 31,

2002 was $8.5 billion comparéd to $7.6 billion at December 31, 2003.

Change in Future Policy Benefits. Change in future policy benefits decreased $471,000, or 31%, from
$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 to $1.1 million for the same period in 2003. The
decrease resulted from the aging of the policies and the decrease in business in force reinsured on a
monthly renewable term basis. '

Reinsurance Expense Allowances, Net. - Net reinsurance expense allowances decreased $382,000, or
4%, from $8.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 to $8.1 million for the same period in 2003.
These amounts reflect the decrease in business in force due to policy lapse and surrender activity. The
decrease was also due to lower average account balances in 2003 as compared to the same periods in 2002
because of equity market performance.

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs. ~Amortization of deferred acquisition costs decreased
$1.5 million, or 21%, from $7.0 million for the year'ended December 31, 2002 to $5.5 million for the same
period in 2003. The decrease in amortization primarily resulted from additional amortization in 2002 due
to the then higher than expected surrender experience, including “unlocking” our near term surrender
assumptions to reflect the increase in our surrender expenence (akin to industry-wide surrender
experience).
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Under current assumptions, and all else being equal, we do not expect that there would be increased
amortization in 2004 from “unlocking” due to lower than: expected equity market performance unless '
separate account fund yields were to decline by 20% or more in 2004. - - F '

Opcrating Expenses. Op’cratlng expcnscs increased $267,000, or 9%, from $3.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 to $3.4 million for the same period in 2003. These expenses include salaries and
benefits, professional fees for legal, actuarial and accounting fees and other operating expenses. The
majority of the increase was attributable to an increase of $572,000 resulting from directors’ and officers’
insurance premiums, office operating expenses, professional fees, marketing expenses, taxes and licenses,
and shareholder communications. These increases were partially offset by a $301,000 decrease in salaries,
bonuses and recruiting expenses 'due to the reductions in staffing and employee bonuses.

Costs of Withdrawn Offering. ~During October 2002, we withdrew the registration statement for our
proposed initial public offering of 9.5 million shares of common stock. Offering costs related to our
withdrawn offering were $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. These costs, which consisted
primarily of legal, printing, accounting, and actuarial fees, were expensed during ‘thé quarter ended
Septemiber 30, 2002. We did not incur any similar expenses in 2003.

Interest Expense. Interest’ expense decreased $5,000, or 1%, from $380,000, for the year ended
December 31, 2002 to $375,000 for the comparable period in 2003. The decrease was due to the interest
associated with the $7.2 million settlement paid to Western Reserve on April 2, 2002 to fund the
reinsurance amendments that were effective January 1, 2002.

Income Taxes. Due to highér levels of income before income taxes, income taxes increased
$209,000, or 26%, from $789,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 to $998,000 for the same period
in 2003. Income before income taxes is comprised: of income subject to taxes that is recoghized and due in
the current period and income subject to taxes that is recognized during the current period but is due in
future periods. The “small life' insurance company deduction” available under Section 806 of the Internal
Revenue Code for qualifying life insurance companies can reduce the effective federal income tax rate
from 34% to less than 20% depending upon the amount of current taxable income. For the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2003, we had no current taxable income and, as a result, we were unable to take
advantage of any of the small life insurance company deduction. For 2003, however, we were subject to
alternative minimum tax. Qur effective tax rate was 34% in both 2002 and 2003.

In accordance w1th Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, Accountzng
for Income Taxes, we have $2.4 million of net operating loss carryforwards, which begin to expire in 2018.
These net operating loss carryforwards at a 34% effective tax rate are included as an offset to the deferred
tax liability. It is our belief that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized as an
offset against future taxable income, however, if we do not have sufficient taxable income in the future to
utilize this asset; a write-off may result; thereby reducing our net income.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenues

Premiums. Premiums decreased $1.2 million, or 6%, from $19.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001 to-$18.0 million for the comparable period in 2002. The majority of this decrease was -
due to the conversion of all Western Reserve Financial Freedom Builder variable universal life policies and
riders, issued from April 1, 2001 through December 31, 2001, which had been reinsured by us on a
monthly renewable term basis, to a coinsurance and modified coinsurance basis, effective January 1, 2002.

Reinsured Policy Revenues. Reinsured policy. revenues increased $2.7 million, or 24%, from
$11.2 million for the yedr ended Decémber 31, 2001 to $13.9 million for'the same period in 2002. This
increase was due to: (1) the conversion of certain Financial Freedom Builder variable universal life
policies and riders, as described above; (2) the reinsurance, at a quota share rate of 20%, of the Western
Reserve Freedom Elite Builder variable universal life policies sold by the agents associated with World
Financial Group and issued from July 1, 2001 through December 31, 2001; (3) the increase in our
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reinsurance on a coinsurance and modified coinsurance basis, from a 10% quota share rate to-a 14% quota
share rate, of all Western Reserve varjable annuity policies sold by those agents and issued from
January 1, 1999 through.December 31,.2001; and (4) an increase in revenues from surrender charges in
2002 compared to 200%- These increases were partially offset by a decrease in mortality and expense
charges and asset- based allowances rcsultlng from the decline in variable annuity separate account
balances. C ST i e

Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gain on Investments. Net investment income decreased

+ $69,000, or 8%, from $811,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $742,000 for the same period in
2002, primarily due to the decreased size of our investment portfolio. The decrease in our investment
portfolio resulted from the $7.2 million reinsurance expense allowance payment to Western Reserve in
April 2002, relating to the amendments of our reinsurance agreements effective January 1, 2002, and a
greater portion of our assets being invested in cash and cash equivalents in 2002. Net realized gain on

- investments increased $383,000, from $45,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $428,000 for the
same period in 2002. The increase was due to the sale of fixed maturity securities dunng fourth quarter
2002. We sold $9.9 miillion of securities in 2002 compared to $1.7 million of securities in 2001. These
gains were caused by a decline in market ylclds whlch resulted in an increase in the fair value of the ﬁxed
maturity securltles in our portfoho '

Beneﬁts and E. xpenses

Beneﬁts Claims and Settlement Expenses Benefits, claims, and settlement expenses increased
$2.1 million, or 33%, from $6.3 million for the_yean ended December 31,:2001 to $8.4 million for the same
period in 2002. The increase was primarily associated with.a lower incidence of life insurance death claims-
in 2001 ceompared to the incidence of death claims in 2002, the increasing age of the policies reinsured and
an increase in-variable annuity death claims. The aggregate face value of insurance underlying the polices
we reinsured at December 31, 2001 was $9.1 billion compared to $8.5 billion at December 31, 2002. .

Change in Future Policy Benefits. Change in future policy benefits decreased $886,000, or 37%, from
$2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $1.5 million for the same period in 2002. The
majority. of this decrease was due-to the conversion of all Western Reserve Financial Freedom Builder
variable universal life policies and riders, issued from April 1, 2001 through December 31, 2001, which
had been reinsured by us on a monthly renewable term basis, to a coinsurance and modified coinsurance
basis, effective January 1, 2002. :

Reinsurance Expense Allowances, Net. Net reinsurance expense allowances increased $17,000, or
less than 1%, for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to the same period in 2002. These amounts
are reflective of the increase in business in force primarily attributable to the amendments to our
reinsurance agreements effective January 1, 2002, offset by the decrease in business in force due to lapse
and surrender activity.

Amortization of Deferred Acquisition Costs. Amortization of deferred acquisition costs increased
$3.1 million, or 79%, from $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $7.0 million for the same
period in 2002. Higher than expected surrender experience, including “unlocking” our near term surrender
assumptions to reflect the increase in our surrender experience (akin to industry-wide surrender
experience), and lower than expected equity market performance of the separate account balances
contributed to $2.8 million of the increase in amortization for the year ended December 31, 2002, as
compared to the same period in 2001. In addition, amortization increased due to new business reinsured,
including the amendments to our reinsurance agreements with Western Reserve effective January 1, 2002.

Under current assumptions, and all else being equal, if separate account fund yields exceed 5% for
2003, we do not expect.that there would be increased amortization in 2003 from “unlocking” due to lower
than expected equity market performance. If separate account fund yields are 0% for 2003 we would
expect additional amortization of approximately $500,000 for 2003 from “unlocking” due to lower than
expected equity market performance.
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Operating Expenses. Operatmg expenses increased $1.1 m11110n or 60%, from $2.0 million' for the
year ended December 31, 2001 to $3.1 million for the same period in 2002. These expenses include
salaries and benefits, professional fees for legal, actuarial and accounting expenses:and other operating .
expenses. The majority of the increase for the year ende‘d'- December 31, 2002 was attributable to a -
$752,000 increase in salaries, bonuses, benefits and recruiting expenses due to the. employment of
additional staff, a $221,000 increase in our directors’ and ofﬁcers insurance premiums, and a $128,000
increase in legal fees.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $2,000, or less than 1%, from $378,000, for the year
ended December 31, 2001 to $380,000 for the comparable period in 2002. The increase was due to the
interest associated with the. $7.2 million settlement paid to Western Reserve on April 2, 2002 to fund the .
reinsurance amendments that were effective January 1, 2002.- . .

Costs of szhdrawn Offering. During October 2002, we withdrew the registration statement for our
proposed initial public offering of 9.5 million shares of commion stock. Offering costs related to our -
withdrawn offering were $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. These costs, which consisted
primarily of legal printing, accounting, and actuarial fees, were expensed during the quarter ended
September 30, 2002. We did not incur any similar expenses in 2001.

Income Taxes.. Due to lower levels of income before income taxes, income taxes decreased
$1.6 million, or 67%, from $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to $789,000 for the same:
period in 2002. Income before income taxes is comprised of income subject to taxes that is recognized and
due in the current period and income subject to taxes that is recognized during the current period but is
due in future periods. The “small life insurance company deduction” available under Section 806 of the
Internal Revenue Codé for qualifying life insurance companies can réduce the effective federal income tax *
rate from 34% to less than 20% depending upon the amount of current taxable income. For the year ended
‘December 31, 2002, we had no current taxable income dnd, as a result, we were unable to take advantage
of any of the small life insurance company deduction. During 2001 our effective tax-rate was 30%, as -
compared to 34% in 2002.

In accordance with SFAS No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes, we have $8.4 million of net
operating loss carryforwards, which begin to expire in 2018. These net operating loss carryforwards at a*
34% effective tax rate are.included as an offset to the deferred tax liability. It is our belief that it is more
likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized as an offset against future taxable income,
however, if we.do not have sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize this asset, a write-off may
result thereby reducing our net income. :
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Quarterly Results of Operaﬁons

The following table presents certain unaudited quarterly consolidated statements of income data for
the eight-quarter period ended December 31, 2003, as well as the percentage of total revenue represented
by each item. The information has been derived from the unaudited consolidated financial statements. The
unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared on substantially the same basis as the
audited consolidated financial statements contained herein and all adjustments, consisting only of normal
recurring adjustments, which we consider to be necessary to present fairly this information when read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere herein. The
‘results of operations for any quarter are not necessanly indicative of the results to be expected for any

future period.

Revenues:
Premiums................... 4
Reinsurance policy revenues ...
Net investment income . .... i

Net realized gain (loss) on
investments ............... .

Other income................ :

Total revenues . ................

Benefits and expenses:

Benefits, claims and settlement
EXPEMSES L .\t vurrt e

Change in future policy benefits

Quarter Ended

Mar. 31

June 30 - Sept. 30

Reinsurance expense allowances, . .

Amortization of deferred
_acquisition costs ... :.........

Operating expenses . ..........
Interest expense. .. ... o
Costs of withdrawn offering . . ..

Total beénefits and expcnse‘sv ......

Income (1oss) before income

Income tax (expense) benefit .. ..

- Net income (loss) ......... e

Dec. 31 Mar. 31  June 30  Sept. 30 Dec. 31
2002 2002 © 2002 2002 2003 2003 2003 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

$4,557  $4533 $ 4485 $4410 $4,388  $4364  $4,332 ~ $4,318
3,596 3,559 3,442 3,263 3,232 3,258 3,200 3,106
214 188 168 172 83 88 95 141

8 (1) — 420 — — — 21

- = — — — 5 10 48
8,375 8,279 . - 8,095 8265 7,703 7,715 7,637 7,634 -
2,034 2,638 ‘ 2,135 1,622 2,276 2,455 2,213 2,325
447 411 353 315 311 196 309 239
2,209 2,1'25 © 2,101 2,082 2,074 2,082 2,002 1,978
1,119 1,072 2,484 2,349 1,375 1,281 1,566 1,314
727 694 813 884 877 945 765 800
94 .97 95 95 92 94 95 94

— —_ 1,712 — — — — —
6,630 7,037 9,693 7,347 7,005 7,053 6,950 6,750
1,745 1,242 (1,598) 918 698 662 687 884
(593) (419) 535 (312) (237) (225) (235) (301)
$1,152  $ 823 $(1,063) $ 606 & 461 $ 437 $ 452 $ 583.
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The following table sets forth, as a percentage of total revenue, certain line items in the consolidated
statements of i income for the pcrlods indicated: o : ‘

Quarter Ended

Dec. 31

Mar 31 Jume 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30
2002 2002 2002 2002 2003 2003 2003 ’ 2003
: ' . (As a percentage of total revenue) . R
Revenues: ‘ ' o
Premiums .. 5 ... C54% 55%  55%  53% 57% 57% 57% - 56%
Reinsurance policy revenues. . . . 43 43 43 40 42 42 42" 41
Net investment income. . .. .. .. 3 3 2 1 1 1 ) ‘
Net realized gain on investments 0 0 ( 5 0 0 0 0’
Other income. . .............. L= — = — — — — 1
Total revenues ’ ................. " 100% 100% -~ 100% . 100%  100% 100% 100% 100%
Benefits and expenses: ‘
_ Benefits, clalms and settlement . . ;
EXPENSES . ... 24 32 26 20 30 32 29 30
Change in future policy benefits 5 S 5 4 4 2 4 V 3
Reinsurance expense allowances, ‘ o 4 )
Bet. oo 27 26 26 25 27 27 126 © 26
' Amortization of deferred ' - )
acquisition costs . ... .. R 13 13 31 28 18 17 .21 17
. Operating expénses ............ 9 8 - 1o . 1 11 12 10 11
-Int-e.rest exbeﬁse ............. . 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 D
Costs of withdrawn offering .. .. 0 0 21 0 0 0 0 -0
Total benefits and expenses ... ... " 7% 85% 120% - 89% 91% 91% 91% 88%
Income (loss) before income ’ ‘ ‘ - ) ‘
tax ... .. S ) 21 15 (20) 11 -9 9 9 712
Income tax (expense) benefit .... = (7) =~ (5) 7 (4) (3) (3) 3 (4)
10%  (13)% 7%. 6% 6%, 6% <. 8%

Net income (loss) .. ...: S 14%

Historically, our operations and related revenues and operating results have varied substantially:from
quarter to quarter, and we expect variations to continue. Qur quarterly operating results will continue to -,
vary significantly depending on a number of factors, including fluctuations in demand for reinsurance
products and variable-life insurance and annuity products, as well as the sales price and resulting gross
margin for specific reinsurance contracts. A high percentage of our operating expenses, particularly-
personncl markctlng and rent are relatlvely fixed in advancc of any partlcular quarter.

Investments

As of December 31, 2003, we had invested assets totaling $30.6 million with an unrealized gain of
$132,331, net of taxes. The table below shows the aggregate amounts of fixed maturity securities, equity
securities, cash and cash equivalents, and reinsured policy loans comprising our portfolio of invested assets:

At December 31,

2001 ] 2002 2003
Fixed maturity Securities . .. ..................... $12,214,279  $ 2,798,190  $15,267,477
Equity securities. ..........o ... P —_ . — 2,500,191
Cash and cash equivalents ...................... 8,062,110 ~ - 15,858,256 11,580,045
Reinsured policy loans............ e 1,013,629 1,115,994 1,270,711

$21,290,018  $19,772,440

Total invested assets ..............covnvrnn.. $30,618,424 o




~ As of December 31, 2003, the fixed maturity portion of our invested asset portfolio had a dollar’
weighted average Moody’s rating of Aa3, an average duratlon of 3.3 years and an average y1eld to matunty
of 4. O% before 1nvestment expenses.

The followmg table summarizes the falr value of our 1nvested assets at the dates 1nd1cated

At December 31, :
2001 L2002 © 2003

U.S. government agency ........ 8 216,308 $ — 3 4,0_32,»18}8-’
Corporate ............. et TR - 7,434,498 1,237,450 10,849,743
Asset-backed securmes ........ e 1,661,456 » 416?559 —
Mortgage-backed securmes ...... L ;'Q e 2,9,02,017 © 1,144,181 385,546
Total fixed matunty secuntles o e . $12,214,279  § 2,798,190 -. $15,267,477
Equity securities.". . . .. R D o — _ — 2,500,191
Cash and cash equivalents ....,...:.......0.00.. 7 8,062,110 15858256 ~ 11,580,045
Remsured policy 10ams . ..o .o , 14,0113,629 1,115,994 7 1,270,711
Total invested assets ......... PR .. $21.290018  $19.772.440 . $30,618,424
The following table summarlzes the fair value by contractual maturities of our fixed matunty
securities portfolio at the dates 1nd1cated . o e
s ) . ‘ . S : LAt December 31,. ‘ L
) ) L S 2001 2002 . 2003 -
Due in less than one year . 5. .. .. e e . % 615406 §$ 611,784 $ 912,255 o
" Due after one through five years ....... P L 6,825,383 © 625,666 8,891,136
_ Due after five through ten years. .. e . . L 210,017 ' - 5,078,52}0
Asset-backed securities ...... ...\ ...... ceeeeia. 1,661,456 416559 1 =
Mortgage-backed, securities.. .. ................... - 2,902,017 1,144,181 . . 385,546
Total « et Woe b $12,214279 $2,798,190 - $15,267,477-

The followmg table summanzes the composmon of the fair value of our fixed matunty secunt1es )
portfolio at the dates mdlcated by ratlng as assigned by S&P or Moody s, using the higher.of these ratings
for any secunty where there is.a split rating. ‘

JEEEE o . ) o o : At December 31,

_Rm . 2001 2002 2003
AAA/Aaa ...... e e e . 43% . .56% . 32%
AA/Aa2....,..»......‘.»...., .......... ST T 17 15, 18,
ATAZ o oo e e FRERU e, Gl 390 ¢ 290 50

"BBB/Baal ........... A P i L=
BB/BA2 ...\t Sl S, P
B/B2........ . BT P PP = = 2
CC(?,/Caa or lower, or not rated . G e, I '.'. e — — N .
Total ..o it S ST DIRRS oo 100% - 100%  100%

Segment Reporting _

We: have defined -our reportable-segments based on the nature of our reinsurance agreements and the
accounting treatment used for the various reinsurance agreements. For definitions of these segments and -
associated financial information, refer-to Note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Liquidity and Capltal Resources

To grow ‘bur life and annu1ty business, we use e cash to pay for the initial marketmg and underwrltlng
expenses of the policies we reinsure: These same policies thereafter provide cash from premiums, policy
charges and policy fees over their lifetime. We also use cash to pay for policy claims, policy benefits and
operating expenses which include: salaries and benefits, and professional fees for management, legal,
investment, custodial, accounting, tax and consulting services. In addition to operating cash flows, cash is
provided by and used in financing activities we undertake to increase our cap1ta1 posmon and through
activities associated with our invested assets. -

Our primary sources of 11qu1d1ty were $15.3 million in fixed maturity securities available for sale,
$11.6 million in consolidated cash and cash equivalents, and $2.5 million of equity securities at
December 31, 2003. The effective duration of our fixed maturity portfolio is 3.3 years with 100% of the
fixed - ‘maturity securities having an effective maturity of less than 10, years. Our fixed maturity portfolio
represents 50% of our total invested assets, and has an average Moody’s quality rating of Aa3. We have
gross unrealized losses of $16,000 and gross unrealized gains of $217,000 on our fixed maturity and equity
securities as of December 31, 2003. For additional 1nformat10n pertalmng to our mvestments refer to
Note 3 to the Consohdated Financial Statements

Our: capltal structure consists of short-term deébt and equity. Our short-term debt is comprised of a
$5 million, five-year convertible term note to Money Services, Inc. due on July 29, 2004. Money Services
is a subsidiary of AEGON USA, Inc. Proceeds of this note were used to reduce a portion of the
outstanding principal balance ‘on a line of credit with Money Services. Interest is payable on the note at
7.5% per annum (except in the‘event of redemption), on the 29th of each succeeding January and July
through and including July 29, 2004. Money Services has the right to convert the outstanding principal
balance. of this note into common stock at any time. Upon conversion, Money Services would receive
6.255 shares of common stock for each $100 of the outstanding principal amount of the note, for a total of
312,750 shares, which reflects our three-for-two stock split in 2001. We have the option to redeem the.
note, in whole or in part, before maturity. To redeem the note before maturity, we must pay all principal,
plus interest accrued from the date of the note through the redemption date at a higher effective interest
rate of 9% per annum. As of December 31, 2002 and 2003, we had an outstanding principal balance on
the term note of $5 million and accrued interest of $158,000.

Operating Cash Flows. Under the renewable term reinsurance agreements, premiums typlcally vary
in proportion. with the expected mortality claims reinsured. Our cash inflows under the renewable term
agreements are premiums for the mortality risk reinsured. Our cash outflows are reinsurance expense
allowances and'death benefit claims. The reinsurance expense allowances represent our share of acquisition
and malntenance expenses incurred by the ceding life company, that are attnbutable to the risks relnsured
by us. : :

Under the' ‘coinsurance and modified coinsurance agreements, since we are reinsuring risks on
essentidlly the same basis as that of the ongmal policy, reinsurance premiums are materially greater than
premiums received on the renewable term reinsurance. During the first year in which a policy is reinsured
on a coinsurance basis, we are required to reimburse the ceding life company for our share of acquisition
costs, 1nclud1ng first 'year commissions and issuance expenses. Thereafter, we reimburse the ceding life
company for our share of renewal commissions and maintenance expenses. Further, under modified .. .
coinsurance, the ceding life company does not transfer the reserves or the invested assets related to
reserves. in support. of reinsured policy benefits (e.g., cash values). Accordingly, because of the type of
reinsurance and the basis reinsured, the net first year cash outlays could be as much as, or more than, that
year’s premiums paid for variable universal life insurance, and as much as 10% of variable annuity
premiums. After the first policy year, our cash outlays for relnsurance allowances are 51gn1ﬁcantly lower

Net cash flows provided by (used m) operating activities were $11.1 million, (§341 000) and
$10.8 million for the years'ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. Cash flows provided by
operations in 2003 relating to new policies. reinsured. under coinsurance and modified coinsurance reflected
net payments of $156,000 to Western Reserve to.reinsure policies issued in 2003, and cash flows -provided
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by operations for policies previously in force under coinsurance and modified coinsurance and by all
policies reinsured under renewable term reinsurance of $12.0 million. Other cash flows used in operating
activities of $1 .0 million in 2003 were the result of cash payments for operating expenses and interest
expenses. : -

"Cash flows used in operating activities in 2002 relating to new policies reinsured under coinsurance
and modified coinsurance were $10.2 million and were primarily the result of the $7.2 million settlement
paid to Western Reserve in April 2002 to increase the amount of business we reinsure as a result of the
reinsurance amendments, settlements pald to reinsure policies issued in 2002 as a result of those -
amendments, and seftlements paid to American Skandia to reinsure policies issued in 2002. These were
offset by. $14. 8 million of cash flows. provided.by policies reinsured under coinsurance and modified
coinsurance prior to 2002 and by all policies reinsured under renewable. term reinsurance. Other cash flows
used in operating activities.of $4.9 million in 2002 were the result of cash payments for operating expenses,
income taxes and interest expenses. :

Cash flows provided by operations in 2001 relating to new policies reinsured under coinsurance and
modified coinsurance reflected payments of $2.0 million to Western Reserve and American Skandia to
reinsure policies issued in 2001, and cash flows provided by operations for policies previously in force
under coinsurance and modified coinsurance and by all policies reinsured under renewable term
reinsurance of $15.1 million. Other cash flows used in operating activities of $2.0 million 2001 were the
result’ of cash payments for operatmg expenses, income taxes and interest expenses. The following table
summarizes the eomponents of operatmg cash ﬂows '

Operatmg Cash Flows from
Co/ModCo . Co/ModCo

" Reinsurance Reinsurance’ Renewable Other - Total
©  -Assumed in - Assumed Term Operating Operating
Calendar Year of Reporting (CYR) - CYR . Prior to CYR Reinsurance Cash Flows. Cash Flows
' Lo (In millions)
2003.......... .. e . $(0.2) - $7.8 $4.2 $(1.0) $10.8
2002, (102) 9.5 5.3 49) . (03).
T2000........ PR R ¢ 1) B N A 6.4 (2.0) . - 11.1

At this time we are exploring financing strategies to fund transactions. The amount, timing, receipt
and cost of additional capital may determine the extent we choose to take advantage of the rights we have
under our agreements or to enter into new reinsurance transactions.

Investment Cash F lows. We generally receive premiums.in advance of paying related benefits and
claims. In addition, some policies wé reinsure require.that we credit interest on funds that are deposited
with us. We invest these assets in securities that will provide a return and cash flow stream that are
consistent with these benefits.- Investment cash flows are the result of buying, selling and holding these
securities in addition to activities relating to buying and selling fixed assets.

Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities were ($6.2 million), $9.3 million and
($15.0 million) for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. The cash flows used
in investing activities of $15.0 million in 2003 primarily related to.our purchase of $14.3 million of fixed
maturity securities and $2.5 million of equity securities. The cash flows provided by investing activities of
$9.3 million in 2002 were the primarily the result of $10.5 million of proceeds generated from the sale and
maturity of available for sale securities. The cash flows used in investing activities of $6.2 million in 2001
primarily related to our purchase of $8.1 million of fixed maturity securities. We have incurred no
significant capital expenditures during 2003.

© Financing Cash Flows. Financing cash flows relate primarily to activities associated with our capital
position. Net cash flows used in financing activities were $1.1 million, $1.1 million and zero for the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. There were no cash flows provided by or used in
financing operations in 2003. Cash flows used in financing activities in 2002 related to the withdrawal of
the registration statement in October 2002 for our proposed initial public offering of 9.5 million shares of
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common stock. The registration statement was withdrawn due to unfavorable market conditions. Cash
flows used in financing activities resulted in $1.7 million of deferred offering costs expenses in 2002, offset
by $577,000 of cash paid for deferred offering costs in 2001, which had been previously recorded as
prepaid expenses on the consolidated balance sheet. Cash flows used in financing activities in 2001 related -
to principal payments on the Money Services line of credit, dividends paid on our preferred stock and cash
paid for deferred offering costs which had been recorded as prepaid expenses. ' '

Restrictions.  Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. is a holding company with no direct ’)‘oper'ations‘, and
whose principal assets are the capital stock of its subsidiaries and $4.0 million of cash and invested assets,
as of December 31, 2003. Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. relies primarily on funds retained at the holding
company level, debt service on amounts loaned to Global Preferred Re, management service fees from its
subsidiaries and potential dividends from:Global Preferred Re to meet ongoing cash requirements. The
ability of Global Preferred Re to pay dividends to ‘Global Preferred Holdings is subject to, among other
things, regulatory restrictions under the insurance laws of Bermuda, which are discussed in Note 9 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2003, Global Preferred Re had total statutory
capital and surplus of $22.6 million, which includes up to $7.4 million available to distribute in dividends
without seeking regulatory approval. During the year ended December 31, 2003, Global Preferred Re paid
no dividends to Global Preferred Holdings, Inc.

Under our reinsurance agreements, we are required to prov1de security through a letter of credit for
the benefit of the ceding life companies. We have three letters of credit issued by Comerica Bank, our
custodian, for the benefit of Western Reserve, Pacific Life and Kemper, in the amounts of $5.5 million,
$50,000 and $300,000, respectively. We assess our letter of credit needs in support of each reinsurance
‘agreement. If determined to be necessary, we will undertake to develop facilities for future letters of credit
and trust arrangements in support of additional reinsurance 'agreements.

PERT LI

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table shows our contractual obligations and commitments 1nc1ud1ng our payments due
by period. Refer to Note 10 to thé Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

"y Total. . 2004 2005 2006 . 2007
. - - T o (In-000s) - -
Short-term debt. . .................on... $5,3750 $53750 § -~ .§ —. § —
Office lease ...........coovueuneenno.. . 489.7 976 1239 . 1321 1361
Operating leases .............. P 152 . 37 0 . 370 1.2 . — ‘
Total ...... S P $5,939.9 $5 5096 $1609  $1333 $136.1

Currency ‘

At December 31, 2003, we' had writtenball of our reinsurance business in U.S. dollars. If, in the
future, we write business in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, we intend to invest a portion of the
premiums collected on the reirisurance contract in securities denominated in the same foreign currency as
the premium received. We also 1ntend to consider and evaluate our forergn currency exchange risk and
hedge our exposure. : - x

Inflation

"The.effects of inflation have not had a material impact on our operations or the conduct of our
business. Inflationary trends are typically.countered by a tightening monetary policy by the U.S. Federal -
Reserve, resulting in increases in intérest rates.-Rapid and severe interest rate incredses could have a
significant and negative impact on the value of our fixed income portfolio. -
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements. .

We have no obligations “assets or liabilities oother than those disclosed in our financial statements, no
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts accounted for at fair value, and no relationships
and transactions with persons or entities that denve benefits from their non- 1ndependent relationship with
us or our related partres )

Recent Accountmg Pronouncements

For a discussion of certain recently 1ssued accountlng pronouncements refer to Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Forward- Lookmg Statements

Certain statements made in this report are “forward -looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform' Act of 1995 and are subject to the “safé-harbor” provisions of that
Act. Additionally, any written or oral statements made by us or on our behalf may include forward-looking
statements that reflect our current views-with respect to future events and financial performance. These
statements may include, but are not limited to statements relating to reinsurance revenues, gross profits,
cash flows, and net income in future periods.. Such statements often include the v'vords “believes,”
“expects,” “assumes,” “predicts,” “continue,” “potential,”. “should,” “could,” “can,” “may,” “will,”
“proposes,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “projects,” and varlatrons or negations of such
expressions or similar expressions. When we make forward-looking statements, we are basing them on our
management s beliefs and assumptions, using. information currently available to us. Because such forward-
looking statements involve risks, both known and unknown; and uncertainties, there are important factors
that could cause actual Ttesults to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward looking
statements 1nclud1ng but not hmlted to:

% 2y “

LI AN

.. The amount; timing, reeelpt and cost of add1t1ona1 capltal to fund our exercise of the nghts to
- -increase. our reinsurance business with Western Reserve;

¢ A decrease in the levél of demand for our reinsurance business, or increased competition in the
industry; '

» Extent to which we ~atre 'able to develop new reinsurance programs;

.. Adverse reinsurance experience, including deatﬁ claims and surrenders;
' _Est1mates of reserves; o k ‘

» Assumptions used in accountmg for deferred acqulsltlon costs;

. Negotranon of remsurance agreements

« Our cash requirements;

+ Availability of capital on acceptable terms;

. Onr ability to compete successfully;

» The passage of federal or state legislation subjecting our business to additional supervision or
regulation, including additional tax regulation, in the United States or other jurisdictions in which
we operate; and

+ Changes in economic conditions, lncludmg interest rate and equity market conditions, whlch could
affect our investment portfolio and reinsured policy revenues.

These forward-looking statements are subject to change and uncertainty that are beyond our control
and have been made based upon our expectations and beliefs concerning future developments and their
potential effect on our business. We cannot assure you that future developments will be in accordance with
our expectations or that the effect of future developments will be those we anticipate. Actual results could
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differ materially from those we expect, depending upon the outcome of certain factors, including those
described in the forward-looking statements. We caution readers not to place undue reliance on these
forward- lookmg statements, which speak only as of their dates. We have described some important factors
that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expectations in “Factors That May Affect
Future Results of Operations” included as Exhibit 99.1. You should carefully review these risks and
additional risks described in other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Excharige
Commission, including quarterly reports on the Form 10-Q. Except as otherwise required by federal
securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 7A. Qu&ntitative and Qualitativé Disclosures About Market Risk

We seek to earn a favorable risk-adjusted total return on our assets by engaging in an investment
strategy that employs strategies to manage investment risk. We attempt to maintain adequate liguidity in
our fixed income portfolio to fund operations and protect against unexpected events. We have diversified
our portfolio to reduce volatility. We seek to manage our credit risk through industry and issuer
diversification, and interest rate risk by monitoring the duration and structure of our investment portfolio
relative to the duration and structure of our liability portfolio. We are exposed to potential loss from
various market risks, primarily changes in interest rates and equity prices. Accordingly, earnings would be
affected by these changes. We manage our market risk based on investment pollc1es approved by our
board of directors.

We do not directly manage the allocatlon of our assets to strategies or underlying funds, nor do we.
control the manner in which they are invested by underlying fund managers. We utilize an independent
investment manager to invest our assets in accordance with our investment guldehnes Conning Asset
Management Inc., a subsidiary of Swiss Reinsurance Company, has been our investment manager since
June 1998. Conning has discretionary authority to manage our non- cash investment portfolio. As a result,
the performance of our aggregate investment portfolio depends largely on the ability of Conning to select
and manage appropriate investments. However, we consistently and systematically monitor the strategies
and funds in which we are invested, and we believe our overall risk is limited as a result of our selected
- strategy. ’ :

Our cash and ﬁxed income investment portfolio 1ncludes investments that are subject to changes in
market values with changes in interest rates. The impact on our cash and fixed income investment
portfolio from an immediate 100 basis point increase in market interest rates would have resulted in an
estimated decrease in fair value of 1.7%, or approximately $468,000, on a portfolio valued at approximately
$26.8 million at December 31, 2003. The impact on our cash and fixed income investment portfolio from
an immediate 100 basis point decrease in market interest rates would have resulted in an estimated
increase in fair value of 1.7%, or approximately $465,000. The foregoing reflects the use of an immediate
time horizon. Credit spreads are assumed to remain constant in these hypothetical examples.
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Item 8. Financial Statéments and Supplementary Data
- The following financial statements are attached hereto commencing on page F-1.

. Independent Auditors’ Reports e

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2002 and 2003

J Consohdated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2001 2002 and 2003

Consohdated Statements of Stockholders “Equity and Comprehenswe Income for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Consohdated Statements of Cash Flows for »the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

. Notes to' Consolidated: Financial;Statemen_ts‘for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

"On June 19, 2003; we dismissed KPMG LLP as our principal accountant. The decision to dismiss
KPMG LLP was made by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors in consultation with -
management after soliciting proposals from KPMG,LLP and other auditors. The audit reports of KPMG
LLP on our consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002,
did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modlﬁed as to
uncertainty, audit scope or accountmg pnnc1ples

In connection with the‘audrts of our two fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and the subsequent
interim period through June 19, 2003, there were no disagreements with KEMG LLP on any matter of -
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which
disagreements, if not resolved to KPMG LLP’s satisfaction, would have caused KPMG LLP to referto
the subject matter of the disagreements in connection with their report. ' ~

On June 19, 2003, the Audit Committee engaged Deloitte & Touche LLP as‘our certifying
accountants for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003. During the two most recent fiscal years "and
through the date of engagement neither we nor anyone ‘engaged on our behalf has consulted with
Deloitte & Touche LLP: on:items regarding either: (1) the application of -accounting principles:to a
specified transaction, either completed or proposed; or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on
the Registrant’s financial statements; or (2) any matter that'was either the subject of-a disagreement (as
defined in Item 304(a) (1) (iv) of Regulation S-K) with our former auditor.or reportable event (as deﬁned
in Item 304(a)(1) (v) of Regulatlon ‘S- K) ' ‘ N

Item 9A. - Controls and Procedures

~As of the most recent fiscal quarter end, ‘we carried out an evaluation of the eﬁ“ectlveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures’ (as defined by Rule 13a- 14(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)
under:the supervision and with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer.
Based on and as of the date of such evaluation, the aforementioned officers have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures weré effective, in all material aspects, to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in the reports we. file w1th the Commrssmn is recorded, processed summanzed
and reported as and when required::

There were no significant changes in our internal controls or other factors that could significantly
affect these controls subsequent to the date our chief executive officer and chief financial officer carried
out their evaluation. There were not significant deficiencies or material weaknesses identified in the
evaluation and, therefore, no corrective actions were taken.
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PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrarrt

The directors and executive officers and their ages as of the date of this report are as: follows:

Posrtron

Dlrector Chief Executlve Officer and President;

" President, Chief Executive Officer and -

Chalrman of Global Preferred Re

Chief F1nanc1al Officer and Senior VICC )
President of Finance; Senior Vice Pres1dent of
Finance of Global Preferred Re’

Chief Accounting Officer, Treasurer, Controller,
.Secretary and Vice President; Chief Financial
Officer, Vice President and Treasurer of Global
Preferred Re

" Vice President of Marketrng

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Director - ‘ :

Director; Director of Global Preferred Re e

Drrector _ -
' Dlrector; Director of Global Preferred Re

Name ) . Age
Edward F. McKernan®@® . 48
Bradley E. Barks."........ P 44
‘Caryl P. Shepherd .. ....oioeen. ... 34
Thomas Bobowski.........0........ 45
Joseph F. Barone"®@®® . . 67
Monte Holm®@®&) - ..., ATV 46
- Thomas W. Montgomerymm(s) ..., 55
" Milan M. Radomch(l)(”“) e 53
C. Simon’ Scupham(”(2 . |
(1) -Member of the Audit Committee,
(2) ‘Memiber of the Compensat_i_orr Committee
(3) Member of the Investment Comm_ittee o
(4) Member of the Capital Finance Committee.
(5) Member of the Nomination Committee

The followmg 1s addmonal mformatlon concernlng each of our’ executive oﬁicers and directors. .'

Edward F. McKernan has served as a dlrector since August 1997. Mr. McKernan has served as our
Chief Executive Officer since January 2002, and as President since December 2000. Mr. McKernan was ..
elected as President of:our subsidiary, Global Preferred Re Limited (“Global Preferred Re”), in.. ‘
December 2000, as a director in. April 2002, and as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman in February
2004. Mr. McKernan served as the Actuary for Global Preferred Re from April 1996 until October 2002,
From December 1997 until March 2002, Mr. McKernan served as Chief Financial Officer of Global
Preferred. From August 1995 until December 2000, Mr. McKernan served as Senior Vice President of
Global Preferred and Global Preferred Re. From April 1996 until June 2001, Mr. McKernan was also
Senior Vice President and Actuary of World Marketing Alliance, Inc. Prior to joining Global Preferred, he
was a Senior Manager in the Life Actuarial Consulting Practice of KPMG LLP from 1993 through 1996.:
From August 1990 through September 1993, Mr, McKernan was the Marketing Actuary of L
U.S. Operations for Seaboard Life Insurance Company. Prior to his tenure with.Seaboard Life, -

Mr. McKernan was employed as a consultant associated with Tillinghast, a Towers Perrin company, an
international actuarial consulting firm. He is a Fellow of the Society of Actuaries and a Member of the
American Academy of Actuaries. He serves on the investment, capital finance and nomination committees

of the board of directors.
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Bradley E.. Barks has.served as our Chief Financial Officer and Senior:Vice President of. Finance
since March 2002, and as Senior Vice President of Finance of Global Preferred Re since September 2002,
and Actuary:of Global Preferred Re since October 2002. Mr. Barks also served as Chief Financial Officer -
of Global Preferred Re from Septernber 2002 until February 2004. Prior to joining Global Preferred,

Mr. Barks was self-employed as an independent financial and management consultant. From 1990 to 2000,
Mr. Barks served-as Senior Vice.President — Finance of LifeUSA Holding; Inc. and-its successor
company Allianz Life Insurance Company of North America. Prior-to his tenure with LifeUSA;

Mr. Barks was employed as. a Senior- Consultant for Touche Ross & Co: from' 1981 .to 1990.. Mr. Barks is -
a certified public accountant, a Fellow of the Soc1ety of Actuaries. and a member of the Amencan -
Academy of Actuaries. . .

" Caryl P. Shepherd has servéd as Chref Accountlng Officer since February 2002, as Secretary since
December 2001, as Vice President since December 2000, as Vice President and Treasurer of Global
Preferred Re since December 2000, and as, Chief Financial Officer of Global Preferred Re since February
2004. Ms. Shepherd joined Global Preferred in November 1997 as Controller and was named Treasurer in
December 1997, _ positions she continues to hold. Ms. Shepherd held the position of Assistant Secretary )
from December. 2000 until her election as "Secretary. From April 1995 through October 1997,

Ms. Shepherd was a Senior ‘Accountant with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio (“Western
Reserve™). Prior to her tenure with. Western Reserve, Ms. Shepherd was a Senior Auditor for the pubhc
accounting firm of Ernst & Young LLP specrahzrng in life insurance. Ms. Shepherd is a certified public
accountant, a Fellow of the Life. Management Instrtute and a member of the American Instrtute of
Certified Public Accountants

Thomas J. Bobowski has served as our Vlce Presrdent of Marketmg since March 2002, Pr10r to
joining Global Preferred, Mr. Bobowski served as the V1ce President of Business Development for |
DotPlanet.com, Inc. From 1998 until 1999, Mr. Bobowski acted as Director of Global Operations for
WMA Agency. Prior to his tenure at WMA Agency, Mr. Bobowski was Vice President of Business
Development for The Midland-Life Insurance, Company from 1996 to 1998. Mr Bobowsk1 is a Chartered
Life Underwriter and Certified Fund Specialist. - ; , ;

Joseph F.} Baroie has served as a director since Jiine 1998, and as Chairman since J anuafy 2002.
Mr. Birone is-a Consultant for Firemark Investmients, a private investment firm. From July 1997 to
October 2003, Mr. Barone was’ Meanagiiig Director of Research for Firemark Investments. From January' *
1992 through June 1997, he was a Senior- Vice President with Swiss' Re Insurance Priof to his ténure- wrth
Swiss Re, Mr. Barone was a Managmg Director of Investment Bankmg for the insurance industry ‘at Bear,
Stearns & Co.;“Inc. Mr. Barone is a Chartered Financial' Analyst and a member of the New York Society
of Security Analysts and the Association of Insurance and Financial Analysts. He serves on the audit,
investment, compensation and capital finance committees of the board of directors.

Monte Holm has been an independent contractor engaged in' ‘the dlstrlbutlon of life insurance and -
securities since 1981. From 1980 until 1991, he held various positions with A.L. Williams & Associates,
and its aﬁihate ‘First American National Secuntres eventually serving as Senior National Sales D1rector
From 1991 through June 2001 he. was associated with World Marketlng Alliance, Inc. involved-in burldmg
the dlstnbutlon system, He is currently a field charrman of the financial division of World Financial
Group, Inc.,'a rnember of the AEGON group. He serves on the compensation, capital ﬁnance and
nommatron cornm1ttees of the board of dlrectors

Thomas W. Montgomery has served as a dlrector since March 1995 and as a director of Global
Preferred Re since August 1995. From March 1995 until December 2001, Mr. Montgomery served as -

" Executive Vice President and Secretary. Mr. Montgomery served as Executive Vice President of Global

Preferred Re. from-August 1995 until December 2001. Mr. Montgomery. is President of World Marketing
Alliance, Inc. and .Executive Vice President of World Leadership Group, Inc. Mr. Montgomery serves as a
director of World. Money Group, Inc., a financial services holding company. Mr. Montgomery is a certified
public accountant, member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,and a member of -
the ‘Georgia Society of Certified Public- Accountants. He serves on the investment, capital finance and
nomination committees of the board of directors. »
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Milan M. Radonich has served as a.director since July 2001. Since May 2002, Mr. Radonich has
been Chief Financial Officer of Benfield Blanch, Inc., a subsidiary of Benfield Group, a global provider. of
insurance, reinsurance and risk advisory services. From October 2001 to April 2002, Mr. Radonich was
self-employed, as an independent consultant. From September 2000 to September 2001, he was Chief
Financial Officer of Allied North American Insurance Brokerage Corp. of New York, an independently -
owned, multi-line insurance brokerage:firm. Prior to his affiliation with Allied, Mr. Radonich was with
Emst & Young LLP:for 27 years in the insurance industry practice. Mr. Radonich is a certified: public -
accountant, a Féllow of the Life Management Institute and serves as Co-Chairman of the Society of .
Insurance Financial Management’s Accounting Committee. He also holds memberships in the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the FLMI Society of Greater New York, the New York Area
IASA, and the Illinois and New York State Certified Public Accountant Soc1et1es He serves on the audit,
capital ﬁnance and nomlnatlon committees of the board of dlrectors '

" C. Simon, Scupham has served as a director since Apr11 1996, as a director of Global Preferred Re
since August 1995. Since November 2002, Mr. Scupham has been a director ‘of IAS Global Captive
Group, Ltd., a holding company for International Advisory Services, Ltd. (“IAS”). IAS provides
professional management services to international companies operating in Bermuda. Mr. Scupham founded
an insurance management company in 1991, which was subsequently acquired by and merged into IAS.
Prior to joining IAS, Mr. Scupham served as the General Manager of Bermuda operations of the Kemper
Group. He is a qualified Chartéred Accountant and Associate Fellow of the Institute of Mathematics and
its Applications. Mr. Scupham is Chairman of Shoreline Mutual Management (Bermuda) Ltd. He serves
on the audit and compensatlon committees of the board of directors.

Audit Commlttee ‘and Audlt Commlttee Fmancnal Experts

Our board of directors has estabhshed a separately des1gnated standing audlt committee for the
purpose of overseeing our accounting and financial reporting processes and the audits of our financial
statements. Messrs. Barone, Radonich and Scupham are the members of the committee. Rules of ‘the
Securities and Exchange Commlssmn which recently went into effect require that we disclose which
member of our audit committee quahﬁes as the “audit committee financial expert,” as defined b'y such
rules. The board is currently evaluating. the qualifications of an “audit committee financial expert” as they
relate to our comrmttee members and it intends to.make a final determination on this matter prior to the
date -of our proxy statement for our 2004 annual meeting of stockholders. The board believes that the |
members of the audit committee, taken as a whole, based on their experiences and backgrounds, are
qualified to eﬁ'ectlvely carry out the dutles and responsibilities of the audit committee.

Section 16(a) Beneﬁcial‘Ownership Reporting Complianc‘e‘

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act 1934 requires our directors and executive officers and
persons who own beneficially more than 10% of the common stock to file reports.of ownership and changes
in ownership of such stock with the Securities and Exchange Commission. To our knowlédge, based solely
on review of copies of such reports furnished to us and written representations that no other reports were
required, during the year ended December 31, 2003, all Section 16(a) filing requirements’ applicable to
directors, executive officers and more than 10% beneficial owners were complied with by such persons.

Code of Ethics

Rules. of the Securities and Exchange Commission which recently went into effect require that we
disclose whether our board of directors has adopted a code of ethics applicable to all members of our
board of directors, executive officers and employees. The board of directors is currently evaluating the
standards for a code of ethics prescribed by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Cemmission and -
intends.to adopt a code of ethics prior to the date of our proxy statement for our 2004 annual meeting of -
stockholders.’ : '
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

~ The following table sets forth, for the years ended December 31, 2003 2002, and 2001, the total
compensation paid by the. Company to our chief execunve officer, and our next three most highly
compensated executive officers whose salary and.bonus for 2003 exceeded $100,000 (collectively, the

. “Named Executive Officers’ ).

S_lim'mary_ Compensation Table

Annual Compensation

Long-Term

Compensation

Securities
: - All Other Underlying
Name and Principal ‘ Year Salary Bonus Compensation. Options
Edward F. McKernan ............ L.........c 2003 $326,794 $ 35,000 - -
President and Chief Executiye_,Qfﬁcer 2002 325,986 123,300 — —
‘ e . 2001 258,333 - 40,000 33,462(1) —
* Bradley E. Barks(2) et i ...i... 2003 -§250,000 $.15,000 = —
Chief Financial Officer and -.- S .2002 . 201,923 9,200 44,833 —
Senijor Vice President of Financer o 2001 R — — -~ —
" Caryl P. Shepherd .5 ... 1L L..0.. 2003 $100,000  $ 15,000 ~—
Chief Accounting Officer, Vice President, 2002 98,327 30,300 — —
Treasurer, Controller and Secretary - ..2001° 85,731 20,000 — —
Thomas Bobowski(3) ... ..o it 2003  $122,000 $ 15,000 — —
Vice President of Marketing ©2002 98,539 — — —

2001

(1) ‘Amounts shown represent payments- made ro Mr. McKemman by World Marketing Alliance, Inc.,
which may be deemed to be indirect compensation from us to Mr. McKernan based on the common
control of Global Preferred and World Marketmg Alhance Inc. by S. Hubert Humphrey until June

2001.

(2) Mr. Barks ]omed Global Preferred in March 2002.

(3) Mr. Bobowski joined Global Preferred in March 2002.
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Aggregated Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Year-End Option Values

The following table sets forth for each of the Named Executive Officers the number and value of
options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2003 as-well as the number and value of securities
underlying unexercised options that are held by the Named Executive Oﬁ‘icers as of December 31, 2003.

Shares Number of Securities Value of Unexercised
Acquired on Value Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money Options
Exercise " Realized ~ Options at Fiscal Year-End ~___at Fiscal Year-End(1)

Name (#) ' (%) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable  Unexercisable
Edward F. McKemnan ...  —  § . — 28,125 39,375 $13,500 $18,900
Bradley E. Barks ....... : — — 1,500 19,500 . $§ 720 $ 9,360
Caryl P. Shepherd ...... - - 11,250 17,250 ‘ $ 5,400 $ 8,230

Thomas Bobowski ...... — — . 938 12,938 - § 450 _ $ 6,210,

(1) Amounts disclosed in this column do not reflect amounts actually received by the Named Executive
Officers but are calculated based on the difference between the fair market value on December 31,
2003 and the exercise price of the options. The Named Executive Officers will receive cash only if
and when they sell the common stock issued upon exercise of the options, and the amount of cash
received by such individuals is dependent on the price of the common stock at the time of such sale.
The values are based on the book value of the common stock on December 31, 2003 of $10.94 per
share, less the exercise price payable upon exercise of such options.

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

The following table sets forth all individual grants of stock options during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2003, to each of the Named Executive Officers:

Individual Grants Potential Realizable Value
Number of Percent of _ _ ‘ _ at Assumed Annual Rates

. Securities  Total Options  Exercise A of Stock fPrig. .
; . Underlying  Granted to " or Base ppreciation for Option

. Options . Employees in  Price Per  Expiration Term(6)
Name 0 Granted Fiscal Year Share(5) Date 5% 10%
Edward F. McKernan(l) ............... 67,500 39.5% ) $10.46 5127713 $444,031 ) $1,125,262
Bradley E. Barks(2) ................... 21,000 123% <7 10.46 5/27/13 138,143 350,081
Caryl P. Shepherd(3) ............... e 28,500 20 167% ., . 1046 . (0 5/27/13 0 187,480 . 475,111
Thomas Bobowski(4) .................. 13,876 8.1% 10.46 5/27/13 91,280 231,320

(1) Of these options, (i} 28,125 shares were exercisable immediately on the date of grant,
(ii) 28,125 shares become exercisable in equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and continuing for two years thereafter until fully vested,. provided, however, that in the
event of a change of control, this vesting will accelerate and the option will be exercisable in full as of
the effective date of the change of control of Global Preferred, and (iii) 11,250 shares become
exercisable in equal installments beginning on the first annlversary of the date of grant and continuing
for three years thereafter until fully vested.

(2) Of these options, (i) 1,500 shares were exercisable immediately on the date of grant,
(it) 13,500 shares become exercisable in equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and continuing for two years thereafter until fully vested, provided, however, that in the
event of a change of control, this vesting will accelerate and the option will be exercisable in full as of
the effective date of the change of control of Global Preferred, and (iii) 6,000 shares become
exercisable in equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant and continuing
for three years thereafter until fully vested.

(3) Of these options, (i) 11,250 shares were exercisable immediately on the date of grant,
(ii) 11,250 shares become exercisable in equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and continuing for two years thereafter until fully vested, provided, however, that in the
event of a change of control, this vesting will accelerate and the option will be exercisable in full as of
the effective date of the change of control of Global Preferred, and (iii) 6,000 shares become
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exercisable in equal installments beginning on.the first anniversary of the date of grant and continuing
for three years thereafter until fully vested.

4) Of these options, (1) 938 shares were exercisable immediately on the date of grant, (ii) 8,438 shares
become exercisable in equal installments beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant and
cont1nu1ng for two years thereafter until fully vested, provrded however, that in the event of a change
of control, this vesting will’ ‘accelerate arid the option will be exercisable in full as of the effective date
of the change of control of Global Preferred, and (iii) 4,500 shares become exercisable in"equal
installments beginning on the first’ ann1versary of the date of grant and contlnurng for three years
thereafter until’ fully vested.: -~ * :

(5) The exercise prrce of the options granted was equal to fai’r‘market value of the underlying stock on |
the date of grant.

)

(6) Amounts represent hypothetical gains that couid be achieved for the respective options if exercised at
the end of the option term. These gains are based on the fair market value per share on the date of
grant and assumed rates of stock price appreciation of 5% and 10% compounded annually from the - .
date the respective options were granted to.their expiration date. These assumptions are mandated -by
the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and are not intended to forecast future ‘
apprecratron of our stock price. The potential realizable value computatlon is net of the applicable
exercise price, but does not take into account federal or state income tax consequences and other
expenses of option exercises or sales of appreciated stock. Actual gains, if any, are dependent upon the
timing of such exercise and the future performance of our common stock. There can be no assurance
that the rates of apprecratlon in this table can be achieved. This table does not take into account any
appreciation in the price of. our common stock to date.. ;

Employment Agreements

- . of f

Edward F McKernan our Chief Executive Officer and Pres1dent is employed pursuant to a written
employment agreement Mr McKeman s employment agreement has a term which expires December 31,
2005 and is automatically renewed for additional one- -year periods unless either party provrdes ‘written
notice of termination at least 60 days in advance of the expiration date of the current term. Mr. McKernan
will receive a base salary of $325,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. Mr. McKermnan is. eligible for
an annual bonus in an amount to be determined by the board of directors. If, within 90 days of a change
of control of Global Preferred; Mr. McKernan resigns for good reason, as defined in the--agreement, or is
terminated without cause we will pay him-an amount equal to 35 months of his then-curfent base-salary
over a twelve month period or in one lump sum payment. Upon Mr. McKeman’s resignation for good -
reason or termination without cause unrelated to a change of control, we will pay his base salary for the
greater of twelve months or the number of menths.remaining on his employment agreement, not to exceed
24 months. Mr. McKeman’s employment agreement includes post- employment restnctrve covenants not to
solicit our customers or recruit our employees.

Bradley E. Barks, our Chref Financial Officer and Senror Vrce President of Fmance _is employed
pursuant to a written employment agreement which expires December 31, 2004, and is renewable by
agreement of the partres for additional one year periods. Mr. Barks will receive a base salary of
$260,000 per year under this contract and i is eligible for an annual bonus in an amount to be determined
by the board of directors. If Mr.. Barks re51gns for good réason, as defined in the agreement, or is
termmated w1thout cause, we will-pay. his'base_salary for twelve months. Mr. Barks’ employment
agreement mcludes post-employment restnctrve covenants not- 10 solicit our customers or recruit our .
employees.

Caryl P. Shepherd, our Chief Accvounting Officer, Treasurer, Secretary, Controller ‘and Vice President,
is employed pursuant to a written employment agreement which expires December 31, 2004 and is
renewable by agreement of the parties for additional one year periods. Ms. Shepherd will receive a base
salary of $110,000 per year under this contract and is eligible for an annual bonus in an amount to be
determined by the board of directors. Upon Ms. Shepherd’s resignation for gooed reason, as defined in the
agreement, or termination without cause, we will pay her base salary for twelve months. Ms. Shepherd’s
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employment.agreement includes post-employment restrictive covenants not to solicit our customers or
recruit our employees. .

" Thomas J. Bobowski, our Vice President of ‘Marketing, is employed pursuant to a written employment
agreement which expires December 31, 2004 and is renewable by agreement of the parties for additional
one-year penods Mr. Bobowski will receive a base salary of $127,000 per year under this contract and is
eligible for an'annual bonus in an amount fo be determined by the board of directors. Upon _

Mr. Bobowski’s resignation for good reason, as defined in the agreement, or termination without cause, we
will pay his base salary for twelve months. Mr. Bobowski’s employment agreement includes post-
employment restrictive covenants not to solicit our customers or recruit our employees.

Director Compensation

. The non-employee members of the board of directors, Messrs. Barone, Holm, Montgomery, Radonich,
and Scupham, receive compensation of $1,500 per quarter for their service on the board of directors. In
addition, we pay non-employee directors $500 for each board meeting or committee meeting attended.
Directors who'are émployees do not receive any compensation for services performed in their capacity as
directors: We reimburse each difector for reasonable’ out-of-pocket expenses incurred in attending meetings
of the board of d1rectors and any of its commlttees

Non-employee directors are also eligible-to receive optlons under the Global Preferred-Holdings, Inc.
Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan, which became effective on June 17, 2003 (the
“Directors Stock Option Plan”). Under the terms of the Directors Stock Option Plan, upon initially
becoming an eligible director, a director will be entitled to receive an option to purchase 5,625 shares of
our common stock, and at the end of each completed year of service as an eligible director, a director shall
be granted an option to purchase 1,000 shares of common stock. Pursuant to the Directors Stock Option
Plan, 280,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance upon the exercised of options granted
under the plan As of April 15, 2004 options to acquire 78,625 shares have been granted under the
Directors Stock Option Plan ‘

Compensatlon Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

C. Simon Scupham is a‘director.of IAS Global Captive Group, Ltd., a holding company for
International Advisory Services, Ltd. which acts as the prm01pa1 representatwe for Global Preferred Re in
Bermuda. ‘

Item 12.- Securtty Ownershtp of Certain Beneﬁctal Owners and Management

Equlty Compensatlon Plan Information

The followmg table provides aggregate information regarding grants under all equlty compensation
plans of Global Preferred through December 31, 2003

N umber of securities

Number of _securities "~ remaining available for
to be issued upon Werghted average future issuance under
. exercise of exercise price of equity compensation plans
7. . 7 T"outstanding options, . -outstanding options, (excluding securities
Plan category v - _warrants and rights -warrants and rights ' . reflected in 1st column)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security , o S
holders................. o 245377 ' $10.46 1,534,623

Equity compensation plans »
not approved by security o
holders.............. e ' -0- _ . -0- ~ -0-

Total ... oo N L 245377 . 81046 1,534,623
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Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the ownership of our common stock, as of

April 23, 2004, by each of our directors, each of our executive officers named in the summary
compensation table, each person known to us to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding
common stock and all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

Number of Shares

‘ ' - Beneficially Percentage of Shares
- Name - ; » : . Owned(1) "Qutstanding
S. Hubert Humphrey, Jr.(2) ..«. 0 oio. oo 882,051 ' 21.3%
Monte Holm(3) ......... SN Lo 329375 7.9%
Money Services, Inc.(4) ..., 312,750 : 7.6%
Richard L. Thawley(3) ......... DU e 305,632 L 14%
Thomas W. Montgomery(6) ......... [P '35,1 12 ‘ S
Joseph F. Barone(7) . ............. SR 15,250 S *
C. Simon Scupham(8) ... ... it " 10,250 S *
Milan M. Radonich(9) ............ ... ... .... ‘ 3,750 . *
Edward F. McKernan(10) ..................... 47,813 - *
Caryl P. Shepherd(11) .. .........o0vinn. .., 16,500 *
Bradley E. Barks(12) .............. I o500 L
Thomas Bobowski(13) ............cooivi... 4876 . ok
All directors and executive officers as a group - . . "
. (O persons)(14) ...l TR 470,426 11.0% .

*°

(1)

2)

(3)

4)

(%)

Less than one percent

For purposes of calculating the percentage beneficially owned, the number of shares deemed
outstanding as of April 23, 2004 includes: (a) 4,141,684 shares of common stock: outstanding as of
April 23, 2004; and (b) shares issuable pursuant to options held by the respective person or group
which may be exercised within 60 days following April 23, 2004 -(“Presently Exercisable Options”).
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that deem shares to be beneficially owned by any person or group who has or shares
voting and investment power with respect to such shares. Presently Exercisable Optlons are deemed
to be outstanding and beneficially -owned by the person or group holding such options for the purpose
of computing the percentage ownership of such person or group but are not treated as outstandmg
for the purpose of computlng the percentage ownership of any other person or group.

This includes 32,052 shares of common stock for which World Marketing Alliance, Inc. (of which
Mr. Humphrey is the principal stockholder) holds voting proxies. Mr. Humphrey s busmess address
is 3975 Johns Creek Ct., Suite 100, Suwanee, Georgia 30024,

This number includes (a) optiens to purchase 1,406 shares of common stock exercisable within
60 days; (b) 60,000 shares held jointly with Mr. Holm’s wife; (c) 2,250 shares held jointly with

. Mr.. Steve Marx; and (d) 165,000 shares held in seven trusts created by Mr. Holm and his w1fe
Mr. Holm’s business address is 219 Garnet Lane, Mesquite, Nevada 89027.

This includes 312,750 shares of common stock issuable on. conversion of a.$5.0 million convertible
promissory note held by Money Services, Inc. that is immediately convertible. Money Services, Inc.
is a wholly owned subsidiary of AEGON USA, Inc., with an address of 4333 Edgewood Road, N.E.,
Cedar Rapids, Jowa 52499. AEGON USA, Inc. is a subsidiary of AEGON N.V,, an 1nternat10na1
insurance holding company that is publlcly traded on the New York Stock Exchange

This number includes (a) 137,700 shares owned by two trusts for the benefit of Mr. Thawley and his -
wife and (b) 30,000 shares owned by Mr.. Thawley’s children. Mr. Thawley’s busmess address is-
1110 W. Kettleman Lane, Suite 24, Lodi, California 95240.
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(6) This number includes options to purchase 15,250 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(7) This number includes options to purchase 15,250 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(8) This number includes options to purchase 10,250 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(9) This number includes options to purchase 3,750 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(10) This number includes options to purchase 40,313 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(11) This number includes options to purchase 16,500 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(12) Th1s number includes options to purchase 7,500 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.
(13) This number includes options to purchase 4,876 shares of common stock exercisable within 60 days.

(14) This number includes options to purchase 115,095 shares of common stock exercisable within
60 days.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The following sections discuss various transactions and relationships between us and parties affiliated
or related to us. We believe that each of our transactions with related parties are on terms as favorable to
us as could have been obtained from unrelated third parties.

Agreements with Money Services, Inc. and its Affiliates

We issued a $5.0 million convertible note, due July 29, 2004, to Money Services, Inc., a subsrdlary of
AEGON USA, Inc. The note bears simple interest at a rate of 7.5% per year and is currently convertible
into 312,750 shares of our common stock. If Money Services were to convert the note, it would own
approximately 7% of our outstanding common stock. We have the option to redeem the note, in whole or
in part, until July 29, 2004. In order to redeem the note before maturity, we must pay all principal, plus
interest accrued from the date of the note through the redemption date at a higher effective interest rate of
9% per annum. World Financial Group, Inc. and Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio (“Western
Reserve”). are subsidiaries of AEGON USA, Inc. and therefore are entities related to Money Services due
to the common, ownershlp

In July 2001, we eitered into an agreement with World Financial Group, which requires that World
Flnan01al Group will use its commercially reasonable efforts to assist us in attaining the opportunity to
reinsure ‘all insurance products sold by its agents for insurance companies with which World Financial
Group has selllng agreements other than Western Reserve and Western Reserve’s affiliates.

We have four separate reinsurance agreements with Western Reserve that cover variable unlversal life
insurance.and variable -annuity policies issued by Western Reserve on or after various dates after
January 1, 1992 which were sold by the agents of World Financial Group and its predecessor. Also in July
2001, we entered into the First Right Agreement with Western Reserve. The First Right Agreement
provides us the right to reinsure certain policies issued by Western Reserve or its U.S. afﬁhates which
agents associated with World Financial Group sell. .

The life insurance companies for which we provide reinsurance, pay commissions to the agents of
World Financial Group for sales of life insurance and annuity contracts reinsured by us. As a result of
such relationships, the interests of World Financial Group may conflict with our interests in negotlatmg
reinsurance agreements.

Due to the: 'relatlonships among us, World Financial Group, Western Reserve, Money Services and
AEGON"USA, conflicts of 1nterest may arise with respect to existing and future busmess dealings,
1nc1ud1ng

+ the terms of World Fmanclal Group’s selling agreements (1nelud1ng commlsswn arrangements) and
" our reinsurance relationships with life insurance compames

~».agreements among us, World Financial Group, Westem Reserve, Money Servrces AEGON USA
and their affiliates; . .
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» potential acquisitions of properties or businesses;
s potential divestitures of.pfopertiesvor.businésses; and ~ :. .0 . ut e

« the issuance of securities by us.” "~ -
LE D »"“":5"5 [ TREDLIE L L b TN s
Management Agreeinent ~ -

In 1995, Global Preferred Re entered 1nto an agreement w1th Internatronal Advrsory Servrces Ltd,
formerly CFM Insurance Managers, Ltd. and a subsidiary of IAS Global Captlve Group, Ltd., which
provides professional insurance management services to international companies operating in Bermuda.

C. Simon Scupham, a director of Global Preferred and of Global Preferred Re;-is a director of IAS Global
Captive Group. Pursuant to this agreement,vlntematlonal Adv1sory Servrces acts as the managing agent :
and the Principal Representative for Global Preferréd Re in Bermuda. This agreement is for an unlimited
duration, but may be terminated by either party upon three months prior written notice or upon 30 days
prior written notice under specified circumstances. We paid $60,000 in fees during each of the years ended -
December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 pursuant to the agreement with International Advisory Services.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees.and Services

Audit Fees

The fees for professional audit services rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of our annual financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003 totaled $177,533 and $11,166, respectively.
The fees for professional audit services rendered by Deloitte & Touche LLP for the audit of our annual
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2003 totaled $95,300.

Audit-Related Fees

There were no other audit-related services provided by KPMG LLP or Deloitte & Touche LLP
during the years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003, exclusive of the fees disclosed above.

Tax Fees

There were no tax compliance, tax consulting or tax planning services provided by KPMG LLP or
Deloitte & Touche LLP during the years ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003.

Al Other Fees

No other aggregate fees were billed by KPMG LLP or Deloitte & Touche LLP for all other services
for 2002 and 2003, exclusive of the fees disclosed in the above sections

Consideration of Non-Audit Services Provided by the Independent Auditors

The Audit Committee pre-approves all non-audit services provided by our independent auditors, but
only to the extent that the non-audit services are not prohibited under applicable law and the Audit
Committee reasonably determines that the non-audit services do not impair the independence of the
independent auditors.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this Form 10-K. _

1. The audited consolidated financial statements of Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. and the
related auditors’ reports listed in the Index to Financial Statements appearing on page F-1.

2. The exhibits filed as part of this report as required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are
1ncluded in the Index to’ Exhxblts appearing on page E-1. ,

(b) Reports on Form 8-K.

~ A Current Report on Form 8-K was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commlss1on on
November 17 2003 to d1sclose the" earnings press release of the thifd quarter Tesults. '
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SIGNATURES -

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the -
registrant has duly caused thls report to be sxgned on its behalf by the undcrsxgned thereunto duly
' authonzed

. GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.

By: s/ _Epwarp F. MCKERNAN _

B Edward F, McKernan
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 30, 2004

Pursuant to the requircnients of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signcd
below by the following persons on behalf of the Reglstrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

Signature : ' : Title ‘ Co " Date

" /s/” EDWARD F. McCKERNAN

.Edward F. McKeman

/s/ BRADLEY E. BARKS

Bradley E. Barks

s/ - CARYL P. SHEPHERD ~

Caryl P. Shepherd

/s/ ' JosepH F, BARONE' A

Joseph E. Barone:

s/ MiLaN M. RADONICH _
" Milan M. Radonich

/s/ THOMAS W. MONTGOMERY

~ Thomas W. 'Mgntgoméry

Chief Executive Officer, President and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer and Senior

Vice President — Finance (Principal

Financial Officer)

Chief Accounting Officer, Treasurer,
- Controller, Secretary, and Vice:
President (Principal Accountlng

Officer)

Chalrman of the Board of Dlrectors .

" and Director

Director

Director
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS
Exhibit .

Number = " o o . - Descnptron o
3.1 Certificate of Incorporatlon of the Reglstrant as amended (1ncorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on June 28, 1995)

3.1.1 Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, changing the name of the Company
to “The WMA Corporation” (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31, 1998, filed on May 15, 1998).

3.1.2. Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, increasing the number of authorized
shares: of common stock and creating a new class of authorized shares of preferred stock
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for

. the quarter-ended. June 30, 1999, filed on August 16, 1999).

3.1.3 Certificate 6f Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, changing the name of
" the Cempany to “Global Preferred Holdings, Inc.” (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 2001 ﬁled

on November 14, 2001). -

3.1.4 ., Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, decreasing the number of - .:*
. authorized shares of common:stock and preferred stock and reducing:the par value of the.
preferred stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on." ..
_..Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, filed on August 14,. 2003)

32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3. 2 to
o Reglstrant s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 22, 2002).

4.1 Revised Specimen Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 4.1 to Reglstrant $ 7
Reglstranon Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 22, 2002).

10.1 Reinsurance Agreement No. 1'with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, dated July 9,
‘ 1996 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended March 31, 1998, filed on May 15, 1998).

10.2* o Au-tomatlc Variable Annuity Reinsurance Agreement with Western: Reserve Life Assurance Co.
of Ohio, effective January .1, 1998 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s =
Quarterly Report on Form '10- QSB for the quarter ended June 30, '1998, filed on” August 14,

' 1998)

- 10.3* Automatlc Flexible Premium Variable Life Reinsurance Agreement Number 2 with Western

.‘ Reserve Life Assurance Co “of Ohio, effective April 1, 1998 (1ncorporated by reference to e
Exhibit 10.6 to Reglstrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter eded June 30,

' 1998 filed on August 14, 1998)

104 Management Agreement dated August 2, 1995 with CFM Insurance Managers Ltd (mcorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10- KSB/A for the year
ended December 31, 1997, filed on October 1, 1998).

10.5 Revolvrng Line of Credit Loan Agreement with Money Services, Inc dated September 30, 1998 ’
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for
the quarter ended September 30, 1998, filed on November 16, 1998).

10.6 Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note issued on September 30, 1998 to Money Serv1ces Inc.
" in the principal sum of $10,000,000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 1998, filed on
November 16, 1998).

- 10.7 Directed Reinsurance Agreement with WMA Agency, dated June 8, 1998 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended
- September 30, 1998, filed on November 16, 1998).
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Exhibit
Number

108"

109

’ "‘Description

.:First Amendment of- Revolving'Line of Credit Promissory Note with Money Services, Inc., dated

January 29, 1999 (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

“.Forim 10-QSB for the quarter-ended March 3171999, filed on May 17, 1999).

~ Amendment Number 1 to the Automatic Flexible Premium Variable Life Reirsurance -

<" Agreement Number 2 ‘with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective January 1,

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13

1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Reportion -

Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed on November 15, 1999).-

- Amendment Number 1 to the Automatic Variable Annuity Reinsurance Agreement with Western

Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective January 1, 1999 (incorporated by réference to

“Exhibit 10.1 to-Registrant’s- Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended

September 30, 1999, filed on November 15, 1999). S

t

Third Amendment of Revolving Liné of Credit Promissory Note with Money Servrces Inc., dated
July 30, 1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on .
Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended September 30, 1999, filed on November 15, 1999).

Five Year Term Note issiied to Money Services, Inc. on July 30, 1999 (incorporated by refétence
to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Repoit on Form 10- QSB for the quarter ended
September 30,1999, filed on November 15, 1999).

Fourth Amendment of Revolving Line of Credit Promissory Note with Money Services, Inc.,
effective December 31,1999 (incorporated by réference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s- Annual

" Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 1999, filed on March® 20, 2000).

10.14*
10:15*

10.16%*

. fV

10.17

10.18

+

Amendment Nurhbeér 2 to the Automatic Flexible Premium Vanable Life Relnsurance
Agreement Number 2 with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective October L,
1999 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to' Registrant’s Annual Report on = SRR

" Form 10-KSB/A for* the year ended December 31, 1999, filed on March- 30, '2000).

Autoniatic Flexible Prermum Variable Life ReinsuTance Agreement Number 3 with Western

.. ‘Reserve Life” Assurante Co.’ of Ohio, effective-October 1, 1999 (incorporated by teference to"
“Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Annual Report-on‘Form 10-KSB/A for the year ended December 31,

1999, filed on March 30, 2000).
~Améndment Number 2 to the Automatic Variable-Annuity Reirisurance Agreement with Westem

' Regerve Life:Assurance’ Coxof Ohio, effective:October 1, 1999 (incorporated by-reference to

" Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form '10- KSB/ A-for- the year ended December 31

1999, filed-on March 30, 2000). . .. - . © " . ) )
.Ameridinent Number 3 to'the ‘Automatic Flexible: Premlum Variable Life- Relnsurance L

- Agreement Number 2 with ‘Western Reserve Life:Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective: February 1,

2000 {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10:5:t0 Registrant’s Annual Report on

-Form 10-KSB/A for the year ended December 31, 1999, filed on March 30, 2000). |

Amendment Number 3 to the. Automatic Variable Annuity Reinsurance Agreement with Western

. Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective February 1, 2000 (incorporated by.reference to

10.19*

©10.20%

Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB/A for the‘year ended December 31,
1999, filed on March 30, 2000)

Amendment Number 4 to the Automatic Flexible Premlum Vamable Life Relnsurance

- Agreement Number 2 with Western Reserve, effective January 1,.2000 (incorporated by reference _
to. Exhibit 10. Ito Regrstrant s Annu_al Report on Form 10-KSB, for the year ended December 31,

© 2000, filed on March 20, 2001).

Amendment Number 5 to the Automatic Variable Annulty Reinsurance Agreement w1th Western
Reserve eﬁ“ectwe January 1, 2000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10- KSB for the year ended December 31 2000, filed on March. 20,
2001).
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Exhibit

Number-

10.21

10.22

10.23

1024

10.25*

1026

10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31

10.32

10.33 .

10.34

10.35 -

Descnptlon

Third Amendment and Joinder to the Drrected Reinsurance Agreement with World Marketmg

Alliance, Inc. and World Financial Group, Inc. dated July 12, 2001 (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB for the quarter ended June 30,
2001, filed on August 13, 2001).

First. R1ght Agreement with. Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Oh10 dated July 12, 2001
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form: 10- QSB for
the quarter ended June 30, 2001, filed on August 13, 2001).

Amendment Number 3 to the Automatic Reinsurance Agreement with Western Reserve Life
Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective as of September 18, 2001 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.33 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on February 22, 2002).

Amendment Number 5 to the Automatic Flexible Premium Variable Life Reinsurance. -
“Agreement Number 2 with Western Reserve, effective September 18, 2001 (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit-10.34.to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on
February 22, 2002). ]

‘Amendment Number 6 to the Automatic Flexrble Premium Variable Life Reinsurance
Agreément -with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective September 18,
2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form:S-1/A, ﬁled on May 8, 2002).

‘Amendment Number 2 to the Automatic Flexible Premium Vanable Life Reinsurance

Agreement Number 3 with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective September 18,
2001 (mcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to Registrant’s Reglstratlon Statement on

... Form S-1, filed on February 22, 2002).
10.27

Amendment Number 6 to the Automatic Varlable Annuity Remsurance Agreement w1th Western
Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective September 18, 2001 (incorporated by reference to

_Exhibit 10.37 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on February 22, 2002).

Global Preferred. Holdings, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan and Form of Stock Option Grant Certlﬁcatev

: (1ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Registrant’s Reglstratlon Statement on Form S-1,

filed on February 22, 2002).

Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. Directors Stock Option Plan -and Form of Stock Option-Grant
Certificate - (incorporated by reference to. Exhibit 10.39 to Reglstrant s Registration Statement on

~ Form S-1, filed on February 22, 2002):

Form .of Officer and Director Indemnification Agreement (mcorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.40.to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on February 22, 2002). .

Employment Agreement by and betweéen the Registrant and Edward F. McKernan, effective

January 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, filed on February 22, 2002).

- Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Caryl P. Shepherd, effective
February 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to Reglstrant ] Reglstratlon

Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on March 29, 2002).
Form of Stock Option Grant Certificate for S. Hubert Humphrey, Jr. (1ncorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.2 to Reglstrant s Form 8-K, filed on February 22, 2002).
“Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Bradley E. Barks, effective March 4,

2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to Reglstrant § Reglstratron Statement on
Form S-1/A, filed on March 29, 2002).

Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Thomas Bobowski, effective

“March 4, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to Reglstrant s Regrstratron Statement

on Form S-1/A, filed on March 29, 2002).
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Exhibit
Number

10.36*

10.37

1038

10.39
10.40

10.41

10.42
_ 10.43
10.44
l(l.45

10.46

1047

10.48

Description

‘Automatic Pool Reinsurance Agreement, effective April 1, 1998, with American Phoenix Life and

Reinsurance Company, Swiss Re ‘Life ‘& Health America, .Inc:, The Lincoln National Life
Insurance Company and Transamerica Occidental Life Insurance Company (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit lO 47 to Registrant’s Reg1strat1on Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on May 8,
2002).

Amendment Number 7 to the Automatlc Flexible' Premium Vanable Life Reinsurance

Agreement with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective January 1, 2002
(mcorporated by reference 10 Exhibit 10. 48 to Regrstrant $ Regrstratlon Statement on
Form S-1/A, filed on April 19, 2002)

_Amendment Number 3 to the Aufomatic Flex1ble Premium Variable Life Relnsurance

Agreement Number 3 with Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective January 1,
2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to Reglstrant s Reglstratlon Stdtemerit on
Form S-1/A, filed on Apnl 19, 2002) : .

Amendment Number 7 to'the Automiatic Variable Annu1ty Reinsurance Agreement with Western
Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio, effective January 1, 2002 (incorporated by reference to

_Exhibit 10.50 to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on April 19, 2002)

First Amendment to Employment Agréement by and between the Reglstrant and Bradley E.
Baiks, effective July 30, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly -
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed on November 14, 2002).

Lease Agreement by and between the Registrant and Metropolitan Life Insurance Company
effective September 12, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarter ended September 30, 2002, filed on November 20,
2002).

Renewal of the Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Bradley E. Barks,
effective March 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003, filed on May 15, 2003).

Renewal of the Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Caryl P. Shepherd
effective February 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003, filed on May 15, 2003).

Renewal of the Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Thomas J. Bobowski,
effective March 4, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003, filed on May 15, 2003).

First Amendment to the Employment Agreement by and between the Registrant and Edward F.
McKernan, effective April 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, filed on August 14, 2003).

First Amendment to the Lease Agreement by and between the Registrant and Metropolitan Life
Insurance Company effective July 14, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form lO -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003, filed on
November 14, 2003).

Amendment No. 4 to the Automatic Flexible Premium Variable Life Reinsurance Agreement
Number 3 Between Western Reserve and Global Preferred Re Limited effective July 1, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2003, filed on November 14, 2003).

Extension and Tolling Agreement between Registrant and ‘Western Reserve eﬂ"ectlve
December 15, 2003.
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' Exhibit
Number

16.1

23.1
23.2
311

31.2
321
322

99.1

Description

Letter of KPMG LLP to the Securities and Exchange Commission dated June 26, 2003 regarding
change in certifying accountant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to Reglstrant ¢ Current

Report -on Form 8-K filed on June 26, 2003).

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
Consent of KPMG LLP

Certification by Edward F. McKernan, Chief Executive Officer, Pnrsuant to 18 US.C.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by Bradley E. Barks, Chief Financial Officer, Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sectlon 1350, as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certlﬁcatlon by Edward F. McKernan Chief Executive Oﬂiccr ‘Pursuant to 18 U. S C
Sectlon 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley ‘Act of 2002. -

Certification by Bradley E. Barks, Chief Financial Officer, Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as

- Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of. 2002.

Safe Harbor Comphance Statement For Forward- Looklng Statements.

* Conﬁdentlal Treatment has been requested with respect to portlons of these documents. The omitted
pomons of these documents were filed separately with the Secuntlcs and Exchange Commission.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS

The Board of Directors
Global Preferred Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries (“Global Preferred”) as of December 31, 2003, and the related statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2003.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Global Preferred’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on-our audit. -

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally ac(?:cpted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the 2003 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. : ~

/s/ DeLOITTE & ToucHe LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
March' 29, 2004
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The Board of Directors
Global Preferred Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries (“Global Preferred”) as of December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of
- income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the two-
year period ended December 31, 2002. These consoliddted financial statements are the responsibility of
Global Preferred’s management. Our responsibility is to cxpress an opinion on these consolidated financial
statemnents based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States 6f America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.” An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
prov1de a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrly, in all matenal
respects, the financial position of Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002, and the results of their operations. and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year penod '
ended December 31, 2002, in conformlty with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. ‘ -

/s/ KPMG LLP

Atlaﬁt“;, Georgia
March 14, 2003
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

. Years Ended Deéembér 31,

B ] 2002 2003
L  ASSETS ‘ '
Fixed matunty securmes — available for sale (amortized cost of $2,673, 762 " S ot
and $15,057,308 for 2002 and 2003, respectively) ...................... $ 2,798,190 - $15,267:477
Equity securities — available for sale (cost of $2,009,360 for 2003) ... g — 1,998,932
Other equity investments (cost of $500,000 for 2003) e S i = , 501,259
" Cash-and cash equivalents- ................... e e cveems. o 15,858,256 11,580,045
Reinsured policy loans............... e L SN ST - 1,115,994 1,270,711
Total invested assets . ..... e A . e o 19 772 ,440  \ 30,618,424
Investment income due and accrued ......................... e . 80,882 197,020
Accounts recelvable S e T S P SO S . ‘ _215,500 44,588
'Reinsurance balances receivable. .. ........ e ..... e CL03,078949 2,112,462
Deferred, acquisition COSts ... ... vnvsen. .. S peeeie.. 49,850,309 . 45,607,865
Prepaid éxpenséé ................................................... ‘ 888,602, 519,888
Current iNCOME taX TECOVETALE . . . ..\ttt 172,500 48,152
Fixed assets {net of accumulated deprec1at10n of $240 439 and $336,817 for o
2002 and 2003, respectively) ....... e e e 215,095 135,495
Total assets . ........ e e $74,274,337  $79,283,894
S LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities: ,
~ Future policy benefits ............... S $16,923,775  $18,881,390
Reinsurance balances payable. . ................ ... S e 42,130 169,481
Accrued expenses and accounts payable ............. e e 473,636 517,078
Accrued interest payable ............... PO IR 158,219 158,219
Current maturities of long-term debt .......................... PR — 5,000,000
Long-term AEDt o . 5,000,000 —
Deferred tax Hability ... 8,354,722 9,252,250
‘Total labilities ... ...........oiiiiii i 30,952,482 33,978,418
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.001, 50,000,000 shares and 15,000,000 shares
authorized for 2002 and 2003, respectively; 4,149,074 shares issued for
2002 and 2003 . ... 4,149 4,149
Additional paid-in capital ...................... e S 23,326,026 23,326,026
Accumulated other comprehensive income............................ 82,125 132,331
Retainedearnings.....,..........;.........................‘....-.. 19,958,822 21,892,237
Treasury stock, at cost (7,390 shares)...... IR T (49,267) (49,267)
~ Total stockholders’ equity . .. ... e S 43,321,855 45,305,476
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............. ... $74,274,337  $79,283,894

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Revenues: 4
Premivms. ........... e, Sl P s
Reinsured policy revenues. .......... DT
Net investment income .............. e

Net realized gain on investments . . . .. e R

~Otherincome . .......ooviiiiiiii

Total revenues

Beneﬁts and expenses: ,
= Benefits, claims and settlement EXPENSES . ...
Changc in future pohcy benefits. . ... .. e e
*-Reinsurance expense allowances, net. ... .. e
* Amortization of deferred acquisition costs .. .........v, ..
Operating expenses . .+ [ Tieaa Vo e L.
*. Costs of withdrawn offering '

- Interest eXpense .. .. ..ouoit it I

RS

Total benefits and expenses .. ..... e, o

Income before income tax

= Income tax expense .. :............... e
Net income . ...... e e cee
" Preferred dividends

Net income available to common stockholders

}gasic carnings per share . . e R e
Oiluted earnings per share . TR b. e
Welghted average commion shares outstandmg .............
Total weighted average common and common equivalent
shares outstanding ... .. P P L

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
$19,40,551  $17,984,990  $17,401,266
11,237,610 © 13,859,540 12,796,537
810,544 741,691 406,993
44807 .. 427,823 21,476
— 530 62,786
31,333,512 33,014,574 30,689,058
6,292,392 '3,428898 - 9,268,559
2,411,335 1,525,570 1,034,256
8,501,197 8,517,836 ~ 8,135,785
3944660 7023815 5,536,839
1,951,634 3,119,932 3,386,942
— 1,712,000, . - —
378,145 380,116 375,000
23,479,363 30,708,167 27,757,381
7854149 2306407 2,931,677
(2,391,568) _ (788,730) _°(998,262)
$ 5462581 $ 1517.677 § 1933415
267,104 — ¥

$ 5,195,477

$ 1,517,677

$ 1933415

$ 0 139 0§ 037, $ - %047
§ 132 0§ 037§ - 047
3,742,610  4,141,684' 4141684
4,141,684 4,141,684 4,141,684

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows. from operating act1v1t1es : ‘
Netincome...\........... ... ... e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash prov1ded by

(used in) operating activities: A . :
Amortization and depreciation ... .............. SR
Costs of withdrawn offering ‘ s

Deferred tax expense ...... [N PR FRTTI
Net realized gam ‘on 1nvestments SR T e =

Change in: : o
Investment income due and accrued ............ RN

Accounts receivable...... ...... e P e s

Reinsurance balances receivable ........................
_ Deferred acquisition costs......... R P
Prepaid EXPEISES ...t
. Current income tax recoverable . . ... .. e P
Future -policy benefits
Reinsurance balances payable
Accrued expenses and accounts payable............... L
Accrued mterest payable... . ......... e e e

Current income ‘tax payable
"'Net cash provided by (used in) operating actxvmes .

Cash flows from investing activities:

"Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities............

4P‘roceeds from principal payments on mortgage-backed
_ securities of available-for-sale securities

Proceeds from’ maturity of available-for-sale securities . . ,..... ’

Purchase of fixed maturity “and equity secuntles
Change in reinsured policy loans-. ... .... A e
Purchase of fixed assets

~Net cash provided by (used in) mvestmg activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Preferred dividends ............... e
Proceeds from short term debt..................... O
Prepaid expenses — costs of w1thdrawn oﬂ'ermg R
Costs of withdrawn offenng ' )

Net cash used in ﬁnancmg acnvmcs ..... el .

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equlvalents B

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ..............

Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod e

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow mformatlon ,
Interest paid ........ S U PR -

“Income taxes paid .. ... il e
Change in preferred d1v1dend accrual

Non-cash financing actlvmes

Treasury shares issued for stock spht fractlonal shares ...... '

~ EEEPEEN

Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
$ 5462581 $§ 1517677 $ 1933415
3,989,418 7,072,737 5,633.217
, —_ 1,712,000 _
1,954,605 771,649 871,664
(44,807) (427,823) (21,476).
(58,497) 91,173 (116,138)
— (215,500) 170,912
(209,959) (236,041) 966,487
1(3,992,590) (14,073,855)  (1,294,395)
(51,216) (762,212) 1368,774
- (172,500) 124,348
3,385,784 5,012,243 - 1,957,615
(199,198) . (146,688) 127,351
404,565 (71,047) 43,442
(3,137) — g
7,868 (413,299) -
11,145 417 (341,486) 10,765,216
1,674,272 - 9,856,622 421,282
474,925 1,096,204 . 738,085
, — 600,000 800,000
(8,127,239)  (1,958,013)  (16,831,299)
(146,606) (102,365) (154,717)
(84,066) (219,928) (16,778)
(6,208,714) 9,272,520  (15,043,427)
(279,349) — —
©(277,285) . — —
(577,112) 577,112 —
— (1,712,000) —
(1,133,746) _ (1,134,888) —
3,802,957 7,796,146 (4,278,211)
4,259,153 8,062,110 15,858,256
$ 8,062,110 $ 15,858,256 $ 11,580,045
$ 381,282 $ 380,116 $ 375,000
$ 429,095 $ 602,880 '$ 2,250
$  (12245) $ — '3 —

935

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003
1 ,'()rganizati‘on-_jf”'.f” L ‘
Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. was formed March 9, 1995 as an insurance holding company. ‘

The consolidated financial statements include theiassets; liabilities, and results of opérations of Global
Preferred Holdings, Inc. {“Global Preferred”) and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Global Preferred:- Re
Limited, Global Preferred Solutions, Inc., Global Preferred Resources; Inc. and Preferred Advantage
Insurance Services, Inc. Global Preferred Re is'a Bermuda company reglstered as a long-term insurer
under the Bermuda Insurance Act 1978. Global Preferred together with its subsidiaries are referred to
collecnvely as “Global Preferred” unless the context otherwise requires or otherwise as expressly stated.

‘Global Preferred was formed pr1nc1pally to provide an opportunity for 1ndependent agents associated
w1th -an 1ndependent marketing organization to participate indirectly in the reinsurance of the policies they
sell. Global Preferred’s core business consists of providing reinsurance facilities and services necessary to
establish, manage and ‘maintain réinsurance relationships between independent marketing. organizations
(“IMO”) and life insurance companies. An IMO is an independent organization that contracts with one
or more insurance: ‘companies to distribute and market securities and insurance products.'‘Many of the
individual agents that purchased equity in Global Preferred are currently ass001ated with World Financial
Group, Inc., an’ affiliate of AEGON USA, Inc., and collectively own a s1gn1ﬁcant portlon of the
outstanding common stock of Global Preferred. To date, the agents associated with World. Financial
Group, and its predecessor have sold all life insurance and annu1ty policies rernsured by Global Preferred.

Reinsurance is an arrangement under which an insurance company (the “ ‘reinsurer’) :agrees to
indemnify another insurance company (the “ceding life company”) for all or'a portion of the insurance -
risks underwritten by the ceding life company. The reinsurer dssumes a portion of the underwrrtten risk in
exchange for a portion of the premium collected. Global Preferred currently assumes portrons of mortality
and other risks relating to life insurance and annuity p0l1c1es in-order to share in the net profits generated
through the sale of such polrcres by the independent agents assocrated w1th 1ndependent marketmg
-organizations. o R

2. Summary of Significant Accou;nting Policies
Consolidation and Basis of Presentation. The consolidated financial statements of Global Preférred
have been prepared in accordance with ‘accounting principles generally accepted in the Un1ted States of
America (“GAAP”) The preparat1on “of financial statements in conformlty with, GAAP requlres '
management to make estimates and ‘assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and- the reported amounts of revenues and-expenses during the reportlng period. "Accounts that Global

Preferred deems to be sénsitive to changes in estimates 1nclude deferred acqursrtron costs and future policy*
benefits: In all 1nstances, actual results could differ from est1mates . _“' i

The accompanymg “financial stateméiits consolidate the accounts of Global Preferred and its
subsrdranes All srgnrﬁcant inter- -company balances and transactions have been eliminated.

. Investments Global Preferred classrﬁes all fixed maturity securities and equity securities, with readily
determinable fair values as . avarlable for“sale.” Such securities are reported at fair value. Fixed maturity
. securities ‘available for:sale-are so classified based upon the possibility that such securities could be sold

. prior to maturity if that action enables Global Preferred to execute its investmerit philosophy and”
appropriately match investment results to operating and’ hquldlty néeds. Equlty securities are classified as
available for sale because Global Preferred does not intend to actively trade these securities. Unrealized
gains and losses on marketable equity securities and fixed maturity securities available for sale, less

_ applicable deferred income taxes, are reported as a separate component of accumulated other
. comprehensive 1ncorne within stockholders® equity.« .- .. - -« - . oL e -
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Global Preferred’s policy is to reflect an other-than-temporary impairment in securities when the fair
value of these securities is lower than the cost basis for an extended period of time. Any such impairment-
identified would result in a write-down of the cost basis of the individual security to its fair value to
establish a new cost basis and to reflect a realized capital loss in the consolidated statements’ of income.
No impairments in value have occurred which would require Global Preferred to make such an "
adjustment.

Investment income is recognized as it accrues-or is legally due. Income on mortgage-backed- sécurities
includes amortization and accretion of purchase premiums and discounts using a method that approximates
a level yield, taking into consideration .assumed prepayment patterns. The retrospective adjustment method
is used to adjust for prepayment activity. Realized gains and losses on investments using the spemﬁc
identification method are included in income. -

Fair Value Disclosure. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, reinsurance receivables and
payables, accounts receivables and payables, accrued expenses and short-term debt approximate their fair
values due to the short-term nature of these accounts. Taking into consideration the basis of reinsurance
under the reinsurance agreements, the carrymg value of future pOlle benefits approxxmates its fair value
See Note 3 for fair value mformatlon covcrmg Global Preferred’s investment portfolio.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and on deposit
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash and cash equlvalents may also 1nclude
cash i in tran51t from the sale of securities at ycar—cnd

. Deferred_ Acquisition Costs. Costs of acquiring new busmess, which vary with and are pnmanly
related to the production of new business, have been deferred to the extent that such costs are decmed
recoverable from future revenues. Such costs include reinsurance expense allowances paid to ceding life
companies,. and may include certain other underwriting costs, such as actuarial, legal and accounting fees.
Deferred acquisition costs are amortized over the l1ves of the underlying policies with regard to the terms :
of the reinsurance. agreement. . . TS

On those policies reinsured under a renewable term agreement, deferred ‘acquisition costs are
amortized in proportion to the premium revenue related to the mortality risk reinsured. Such premium
revenue is estimated using the same assumptions used for computing liabilities for future pollcy benefits. .
Such assumptions include estimates of expected investment yields, mortality, persistency and expenses
applicable at the time the policies are reinsured. ‘Original assumptions on renewable term business continue
to be used in subsequent accounting periods to _determine changes in the deferred acquisition costs unless a
premium deﬁmency exists. Under the rencwable term agreements, the amortization is in proportion to the
ratio of premiums collected during the then current period to total anticipated premiums and is adjusted to
reflect actual persistency of the insurance in force. '

For policies reinsured under a coinsurance or modified coinsurance agreement, deferred: acquisition
costs are amortized in proportion to expected gross. profits associated with mortality margins, investment
margins, surrender charges and expense margins reinsured. Management periodically reviews Global
Preferred’s assumptions concerning future experience with regard to mortality, persistency, investment
yields’and expenses in determining its estimates of future gross proﬁts Upon adoption of any change i in
assumptions used with regard to future experience, the amortization-of Global Preferred’s deferred
acquisition cost will be recalculated and will be reflected during the then current accounting period.

Reinsurance Expense Allowances. Allowances generally represent a percentage of each reinsurance
premium that is paid or allowed by Global Preferred to the ceding life company for each policy reinsured
in recognition of commissions and other expenses associated with the reinsured policies. These other
expenses relate to costs associated with underwriting, marketing, policy issue and maintenance. The
reinsurance expense allowances represent Global Preferred’s share of acquisition and maintenance expenses
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‘ GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

incurred by the ceding life company that are attributable to the risks reinsured. Allowances are shown net
of amounts deferred :as policy acqulsmon costs.

szed Assezs Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from
three to seven years.

_ Future Policy Benefits. Liabilities for future benefits on life insurance policies are established in an
amount ,beliefved to be adequate to meet the estimated future obligations on policies in force. Liabilities for
future:policy benefits under long-term life insurance policies have been computed based on estimates of
investment yields, mortality and withdrawal rates expected at the time the:policies are reinsured, and other
assumptions including estimates for incurred but not reported claims. These assumptions include a margin
for adverse deviation and vary with the characteristics of the plan of insurance, year of issue, age of
insured and other appropnate factors. The assumptions for estimated investment yields are ‘based upon
various factors including then current yields on Global Preferred’s investment portfolio and market rates
for new investments. Interest rates used in est1mat1ng future policy benefits ranged from 5.5% to 7.0% at
the time the policies i in force were teinsured. The mortality and withdrawal assumptions are based on
Global Preferred’s experience, industry experience and industry standards. Policy and contract reserves are
included in the liability for future policy benefits on the consolidated balance sheets. -

Liabilities for future policy benefits under the coinsurance and modified coinsurance agreements equal
reinsured policy account balances on the underlying life insurance policies and annuity contracts. With
régard to the separate account benefits reinsured on a modified coinsurance basis, Global Preferred records
such liabilities as an offset to related assets as its intentions and rights under the agreements with the
ceding life companies meet the appropriate conditions governing rights of setoff. The nature of separate-
account benefits under variable life insurance policies-or variable annuity contracts do not permit Global
Preferred- to reinsure those benefits on a coinsurance basis. Global Preferred reinsures the fixed account

- portion of annuity contracts and life insurance polices only on a coinsurance basis and, accordingly, the
liabilities for that portion of the reinsurance are recorded as future policy benefits.

Incomé Taxes. Global Preferred uses the asset and liability method to record deferred income taxes.
Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, _using an effective federal tax rate of 34%. Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes spe01ﬁcally excludes recognition of the “small
life insurance company deduction” avarlable under Section 806 of the Internal Revenue Code for
qualifying life insurance companies. This special deduction can reduce the effective federal income tax rate
from 34% to less than 20% depending upon the amount of taxable income. Consequently, the effective tax
rate on Global Preferred’s earnings may ultimately. prove to be less than the deferred income tax liabilities
‘and related expenses determined under SFAS No.109, at December 31, 2003.

Recognmon of Revenues and Related Experzses Reinsurance premiums received under the
renewable term agreements are recognized as revenue.over the premium paying periods of the reinsured
policies. Benefits and expenses are associated with earned premiums so that profits are recognized over the
 life of the related contract. This association is accomplished through the provision for future policy benefits.
and the amortization of deferred acquisition costs. Other revenue consists of non-recurring items other
than reinsurance premiums or mvestment earnings and is recognized upon completion of the related
earnings process. - :

Reinsured Policy Revenues. Reinsured policy revenues are recognized as earned and represent the
policy mortality and expense charges, cost.of insurance charges net of retrocession reinsurance premiums,
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO Co’NSOLID&TEi)' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

policy admmrstranon charges asset ‘based allowances and deferred sales charges that have been assessed

‘ agamst ‘the remsured pohcy account balances under the comsurance and modlﬁed coinsiirance agreements.

Earmngs Per Share Ba51c earnlngs per share is computed based on the weighted-average number of

: common shares outstandrng dunng the period, in accordance with. SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per Share.

Diluted earnings per share are computed based on the total. welghted average number of common and
common equivalent shares outstanding during ‘the period.. Outstanding stock options, all of which were
‘granted in 2003 were. anti-dilutive for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The shares used in the computation of Global Preferred’s basic and diluted earnmgs per common
share are as follows: ' :

Years Ended December 31,

20010 . 2002 2003
e . : v (Shares in thousands)
We1ghted average common shares outstandrng e e . 37426 4,141.7  4,1417
Dilutive effect of preferred stock and convertlble debenture. . 711.8 — —

Weighted-average common shares outstandmg,_ assumlng d11ut1on_~ 4;454.4 4".‘,4;141.7 4,141.7

For the year'ended December 31, 2001, weighted-average common shares outstanding, assuming

- dilution, include the incremental shares that would be-issued upon the conversion of the convertible note

issued to Money- Services, Inc. and the conversion of the preferred stock. The conversion price of the note

© is $15:99 ‘per common-share ‘based on the maturity value of the convertible note: For the years ended
. December 31, 2002 and 2003, the incremental shares issued and-the incomie impact upon the conversion of

the convertrble note, were excluded because. they would have been anti-dilutive, The outstandmg stock
optlons along w1th the convertible- note could be dilutive in the future.

’ The income available to common sharekolders used in the computatlon of Global Preferred’s basrc
and dlluted earnings per common share are as follows:

R . o Years Ended December 31, .

2001 2002 , 2003

g - . ] (Dollars in thousands) .
_Income avallable to common shareholders e $5 195.5 ~$1,517.7 | $1,9334
Income impact of assumed conversion of preferred stock and = :
convertible debenture, . ... . .. . e , 530.0 — .=

Income avarlable to common shareholders W1th assumed D : .
convers1on i e T, $5, 725.5 - $1, 5177 "$1,9334

Common Stock On July 12 2001 "the board of directors declared a three-for-two- stock split in the
form of a stock dividend, consisting of 1.25 million shares, payable to stockholders of record at the close of
business on August 24, 2001. The stock split. was distributed on September 7, 2001. Fractional shares were
adjusted up to the next share using Shares of treasury stock. Ninety-five treasury shares. were issued for the

" fractional shares Share and per-share amounts have been retroactiyely . adjusted to reflect the stock split on

the consohdated statements of income. Shares of convertible preferred stock issued in June and July 2000

were converted to common stock on January 1, 2002. No other changes to our common, stock occurred
during 2002 or. 2003. :

Stock Compensation Plan Global Preferred applies Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opin’ion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations, in accounting for stock-
based compensation plans. Global Preferred has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES. TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

_ Global Preferred’s employee stock incentive plan and directors stock option. plan (the,“stock_gption_, ,
plans”) are accounted for under the intrinsic. value recognition and measurement principles of APB
Opinion No. 25, Accountmg for Stock Issued 1o Employees, and related Interpretations, As the exerc1se
price of all options granted under-the stock ‘option plans was not 1éss ‘than the’ fair value of the underlymg
common stock on the grant date, no stock- based employee’ compensation cost is. recognlzed in nét income.
The following, table illustrates the €ffect on fiet income and earnings pet sharé if Global Preferréd had -
applied the fair value recognition ‘provisions-of SFAS No 123 Aceountzng for Stock Based Compensatton -
to the stock optron plans as of the dates reported.

For purposes of this pro-forma disclosuré, the estimated fair value of the: optlons is’ assumed to be
amortized as a stock- based compensation expense over the options’ vesting periods. S

DR ) Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
(In thousands — except

o coL . _ ‘ . e oo per share amounts)
Net income, as reported .......... S e $5,195.5 '$1,51_v7.7 $1, 933.4
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense ) '

determined under thé fair value method for all-awards, net of °

BX Lttt TR — = (161)
Pro-forma net income ................ e il $5,1955. $1,517.7 81,9173 -
Reported basw eammgs per common share S 8 1390 08 0.37 ° $ 047
Reported dlluted eammgs per common share....:.: . i .... $. 132 $ . 037 S8 047
Pro-forma basic earnings per comiori share L s 139 $ 037 S 046
Pro-forma diluted earnings per common share ... ..... ..... 8 132 0§ 037 S 046

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instriuments ahd "
Hedging Activities, as amendéd and interpreted, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. It requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on' the
balance sheét and measure those instruments at fair value. The a¢counting for changes in the’ fair value of
a derivative will be included in either earnings or other comprehensive income depending on the: intended
use of the derivative instrument. The provisions of SFAS No. 133 do not have a material impact on
Global Preferred’s financial statements. In 2003, SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on.
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, was issued. This statement amends and clarifies. ﬁnanc:lal
accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain der1vat1ve instruments embedded in
other contracts and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. The provisions of SFAS No. 149 drd not
have a material impact-on Global Preferred’s ﬁnanc1a1 statements. L e .

In April 2003 the Financial Accountmg Standards Board (“FASB”) cleared Statement 133 "
Implementation Issue No. B36, Embedded Derivatives: Modified Coinsurance Arrangements and Debt B
Instruments That Incorporate Credit Risk Exposures That Are Unrelated or Only Partzally Related to the
Creditworthiness Of the Oblzgor Under Those Instruments, which includes guidance with respect to'
modified coinsurance arrangements involving fixed account products.’ Global Preferred does not remsure ’
the fixed account of any product on a modified coinsurance basis and therefore thrs issue ‘did not have a~
material impact on Global Preferred’s ﬁnanmal statements. :
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GEOBAL.PkEFERRED‘HOL’DINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

In 2002, the .FASB issued' SFAS No: 14‘8; Accounting for Stock-Based COmpensazz’dn-Tr'ansition and
Disclosure. Global Preferred has implemented the disclosure requirement of this standard in ¢onjunction
with its reporting of. employee stock compensatron

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. The provisions of this statement provide guidelines on how
companies recognize certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It
requires certain financial instruments, which were préviously treated as equity, to be classified as a liability.
The provisions of this statement are’effective for financial statements issued on or after June 15, 2003,
with.the exception of certain mandatorily redeemablé non-controlling interests. The adoeption of this
statement did not have a material impact on Global Preferred’s financial statements.

In November 2002, FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others and in January
2003, FASB issued Interpretatlon No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, as revised by
Interpretation 46R, issued in December 2003. The issuance of Interpretation No. 45 did not have a
material impact on Global Preferred’s financial statements. The issuance of Interpretation No 46 is not
expected to have a matenal 1mpact on Global Preferred’s financial statements.

In July 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee issued Statement ‘of Position
(SOP) 03-1, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-
" Duration Contracts and Jfor Separate Accounts. The provisions of this SOP are effective for financial
statements for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003 and require, among other- thmgs that
‘liabilities be established for guaranteed minimum death benefits for certain variable annuity policies. The
guaranteed minimumi death benefit liability is established with the change in the liability included in gross
profits used to determine the amortization of the deferred acquisition costs. This change may result in an
increase in the habrhty for future pohcy ‘benefits and-an oﬁ”settmg ificrease in deferred acqulsmon costs.
Global Preferred does not expect ‘these changes to have a matenal impact on its ﬁnancral statements.

Reclassification. Global Preferred has recla551ﬁed the presentatron of certarn 2001 and 2002
information_to conform to the 2003 presentation. -

3. Investments

Major categories of net investment income consist of the following:

115

Years Ended December 31,

| ; 2000 . 2002 - .2003
Fixed maturity securities ........................ e $718,583  $716,165 $271,307
~ Equity securities R EEERERE, e = = 0 15178
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ... g .‘..’.4 . 147,447 93125 188,303
- o 866,030 809,290 474,788
Investment expenses ... .. e P (53,486) _(67.599) _(67,795)
Net investment INCOME . ... evn ettt $810,544  $741,691  $406,993
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDIN GS, INC."
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The amortized cost, unrealized gains and losses, and estlmated fair values of fixed matunty and equlty
securities at December 31, 2002 and 2003 are as follows: : :

Amortized Unrealized - Unrealized :
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2002
~ Fixed matunty securmes available for sale: _ _ . '
Corporate ................. S SLISL2I0 $ 46180 $ — S 1,237,450
Asset-backed securities . ...... wieeme. o 398,442 18,117 — 416,559
Mortgage-backed securities,... ... .. ... 1,084,050 " 60,131 . = — - 1,144,181
Total ...... e S $ 2,673,762 $124428 $  — - § 2,798,190
2003 |
Available for sale:
Fixed ‘maturity securmes
u.s. government corporations and ' :
agencies . . . .. PP EEEEE . $3993,105 . $ 39,083 $ — § 4,032,188
Corporate ..............c.oiii.an. 10,701,005 154377 5,639 10,849,743
Mortgage-backed securities.......... : 363,698 . 213848 — 385,546
Total .0l . e 15,057,808 215,308 5,639 15,267,477
Equlty secuntles ......... P 2,009,360 19 10,447 1,998,932
Total ﬁxed matunty and equlty : o L | . L : |
securities, available for sale ..... P $17,067,168 - $215,327 . § 16,086 $17,266,409

There were no mvcstments in any entlty in excess of 10% of stockholders’ equlty at December 31,
2002 and 2003. leed matunty securities are valued based upon quoted market pnces

At December 31 2003 the contractual maturmes of 1nvestments in fixed maturity securities were as
~ follows: . - :
Amortized Cost . * Fair Value

Avéilablc for sale: A .
Due in one yearorless ................cooiiiiiiiiii $ 893,726 $ 912,255

Due after one 'yeatr throughi five years ................... e 8,808,822 8,891,136
Due éfter five years through tenyears . ...................... 4,991,562 5,078,540
Mortgage-backed securities . ... ... ... e 363,698 385,546

Total............. e e e e e e e e $15,057,808 - $15,267,477

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because some issuers have the nght to call
or prepay- obhgatlons w1th or w1thout call or prepayment penalties.

F-14




GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC. ,
NOTES .TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity securities available for sale for the years ended December 31,

2001, 2002 and 2003, were $1,674,272, $9,856,622 and $421,282 respectively. No sales of equity securities
occurred in 2001 2002 or 2003 Components of realized galns and losses are summanzed in the followmg

table:: =~ - . o |
‘ . ‘ 2001 2002 2003
Fixed matunty securities, ava1lable for sale: s 4 '
Gross realized gains ... G i, AR wee $47,180 _$450,72'4‘ - $21,476
Gross realized losses.............. P JUT co (2 373) (22,901) © —

‘Net realized ga.in on investments e . 344807 427823 $2l, 476

Changes in net unreahzed gains (losses) were $279 051 ($249 IOO) and $76, 070 for the years ended
December 31 2001 2002 and 2003 respect1vely

4. Policy Liabilities

Changes in the 11ab1l1ty for unpard pohcy clalms are summanzed as follows
: ’ Years Ended December 31,

- . oL o _ 2001 2002 2003
Unpald lfeclaims — January . R U S SR $2,119,151" $l,538,385 $1,645,065
Add claims incurred durmg the year related to: ‘ T '

“Current year . . ... O T, oo 6;577,441 ¢ 8,179,749 . 9,027,513

“Prioryears...... ... . ....... Cieeeoooo0 032,000 - 249,149 . 241,046

- Total incurred(1) ... ....ovveen... . .. 6609441 8428898 9,268,559 .
Less claims paid during the | year: S R ;} E | o -
On clzums 1ncurred dunng current year._ ........ .1 6,068,109 7,511,5_75 8,519,602
On clalms incurred dunng pnor Years. ... ......... 1,122,098 810,643 843,834
Total paid ... ... o L 7190207 8322218 9,363,436

Unpald life claims — December 31 e .‘; e . $1,538,385  $1,645,065 . $1,550,188

(1) Total incurred plus the change in the experience refund.for the year equals the amount shown on the
consolidated statements of income on line titled “Benefits, claims and settlement expenses.” Change
in the experience refund for the years ended December 31, 2001 2002 and 2003, were $317,049, $0
and $0, respectrvely

The amount of claims incurred during: the year related to the prior year are primarily ‘the result of the
number of deaths that occur late in the prior year, usually December, which are then reported early in the
following year, usually January.. This represents the normal lag associated with when a death occurs and .
when Global Preferred is notified of the. death and varies depending on the number of deaths occurring -

late in ‘any given year. These unpaid pohcy clalms are 1ncluded in the liability for future policy benefits on

the consohdated balance-sheets."

-y
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5. Reinsurance = - SR '.W . Co

~As of December 31, 2003 Global Preferred has seven reinsurance contracts and one retrocessron ‘
agreement. All policies reinsured under the reinsurance agreements are self-administered by the ceding life
companies. The ceding life companies provide Global Preferred with all information necessary for
processing the reinsurance, including claims.

reinsurance agreement, whereby World Financial Group will, for a period extending through June 8 2008,
use commercially reasonable best efforts to assist Global Preferred in attaining the opportunity to'reinsure
all insurance products sold by its agents for insurance companies with which World Financial Group has
selling agreements, other than Western Reserve Life Assurance Co. of Ohio (“Western Reserve”) and
Western Reserve’s affiliates. Additionally, the agreement provides that World Financial Group. will use
commercially reasonable best efforts to cooperate with Global.Preferred in its-negotiations to establish
reinsurance relationships with life insurance companies and provide certain benefits to the companies that
reinsure their business through Global Preferred.

GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continiéd)

In July 2001 Global Preferred and World Financial Group entered rnto an amended d1rected

el FR L
L A

Also in Iuly 2001, Global Preferred entered into the First Right Agreement with Western Reserve

that provides Global Preferred Re a first right 'to reinsure certain new products issued by Westérn Reserve
or its U.S. affiliates that-are sold by agents associated with World Financial Group. These rights
automatically extend for one-year renewal periods unless either party gives notice of termination 180 days
prior. to the expiration of the applicable-initial or renewal term. Under this agreement, Global; Preferred

possesses the followrng nghts to:

FES

« commence reinsurance of Freedom Elite Builder variable universal life insurance policies -and riders -
issued from January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2002 up to 20% on a coinsurance, and modified -
coinsurance basrs

commence reinsurance of any srngle life varrable universal 11fe insurance policies. and rrders 1ssued

. from January 1, 2003 through March 31, 2005 up to 20% on a comsurance and modrﬁed _
coinsurance basrs This contractual right is subject to certaln premrum productron requlrements

' _prospectrvely reinsure all new srngle life vanable umversal 11fe insurance p01101es up to 20% ona.
“monthly renewable term basis at 105% of premium rates otherwise available from certain

' commercial reinsurers. This nght extends through March 31 2006 and is subject to certain.
premium production requirements; and

» commence or increase reinsurance on: certain variable annutty policies- issued from January 1,-2003
through December 31, 2004 up to 40% on a coinsurance' and: modrﬁed coinsurance bas1s subject to
certain premium productron requrrements R !

In order to exercise its contractual rights under the Western Reserve agreements (a) certarn volumes

of.direct written variable annuity premiums-or variable universal life premiums issued: by Western Reserve
or its. U.S. affiliates must be achieved in the:previous calendar.year and. (b) Global Preferred must
demonstrate ““sufficient capacity,” which is defined as having unassigned invested securities and-anticipated
cash flows in a sufficient amount to meet expected reinsurance settlements for the ensuing two caléndar -
years with regard to the increased reinsurance..Global Preferred’s decision to exeréise its contractual rights
will be based on a number of relevant factors, including the attractiveness of the reinsurance rates -
prescribed by the agreement, the volume of business and Global Preferred’s available capital. Certain of
‘Global Preferred’s contractual rights would have expired at December 31, 2003 and thereafter, but have
been indefinitely extended to a date 90 days following receipt of written notice by either party. Western
Reserve has indicated to Global Preferred, through informal reports, that total premium production
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requirements were not met for the reinsurance of variable universal life policies issued in 2003 and 2004
and for variable annuity pol1c1es issued in 2004.

Effective January 2002, Global Preferred amended certain of its reinsurance agreements with Western
Reserve to:

. Increase.its relnsuranoe quota share percentage on variable annuity policies, which were issued from
January 1, 1999 through December 31, 2001, from 10% to 14%. The amendments also provided
“that Global Preferred reinsure 14% of certain new variable annuity policies issued from January 1,
2002; -

. Convert its reinsurance of Financial Freedom Builder variablé universal life insurance policies,
- issued from April 1, 2001 through December 31, 2001, from a monthly renewable term ba31s to a
' coinsurance and modified coinsurance basis; and ’

+ Begin reinsuring certain newly issued Freedom Elite Builder vanable universal lrfe insurance
policies issued from July 1, 2001 through December 31, 2001 on a coinsurance and mod1ﬁed
coinsurance basis.

The net elfect of all reinsurance agreements on prem1ums and polrcy revenues is as follows:
) "Years Ended December 31

: T 2000 - - 2002 -2003
 Reinsurance assumed. ... .. .. L 830993041 $32318207  $30,665,247
~ Reinsurance ceded ......... [ e P, (514,880) -~ (473,677) . (467 444)

Net premiums and policy revenues ...........:... $30,478,161  $31,844,530 - $30,197,803"

The net eﬁ"ect of all reinsurance agreements on benefits, clarms and settlemerit expenses is as follows
' ) ' Years Ended December 31, )

y . . , " 2001 © 2002 2})03 B
\ fReinsuranoe assumed. . ........... o - $6,299,510 . $8,3o8,898 2 $9,43l,944 .
Reinsurance ceded ........... .. ... ... il (7,118) 60,000 (163,385)
Net benefits, claims and settlement expenses. .. .. RN ©$6,292,392  $8,428,898  $9,268,559

The impact of reinsurance on life insurance in force is as follows (in millions):
- Lo . . Years Ended December 31,

Life insurance in force : : 2001 2002 2003

Direct ................. e P - = =

Assumed ....... R PR T P $9,082  $8451  $7,606
CCeded ...l DU U e L. (156)  (155).  (131)

Net .o, B S $8,926  $8,296  $7,475

»
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6. Deferred Acquisition Costs

' The amount of pohcy acqu151t10n costs deferred and amortlzed is as follows:
- Years Ended December 31,

‘ 2001 2002 2003
. Beginning of year. .. i e Lo $42.752.339°  $42,800,269 $49,850,309
Capitalized . Sl SRR Ceee R FERE 3,992,590 14,073,855 1,294,395
Amortized. .. ...... U U (3,944,660)  (7,023.815)  (5,536,839)
End of- year. e e B . $42,800,269  $49,850,309 $45,607,865

, The amendment of certain reinsurance -agreements with Western Reserve effective January 1, 2002
resulted in an increase in deferred acquisition costs capitalized of $8,120,168 in 2002.

7. Income T ;ix :

Under current Bermuda law, Global Preferred Re is not required to pay any taxes in Bermuda on
either income or capital gains, Global Preferred Re has received an assurance from the Minister of
Finance in Bermuda under the Exempted Undertaking Tax Protection Act 1966 of Bermuda that if any

: leglslatmn is enacted in Bermuda that would impose tax on profits or income, or on any capital asset, gain
or appre01at10n or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax, then the imposition of any such
tax will not be applicable to Global: Preferred Re o to any of Global Preferred’s operations or shares,
debentures or other obhganons until March 28, 2016.

Effective J anuary 1, 1996, Global Preferred Re made an 1rrevocable electlon to be treated as a
domestic insurance company for United States Federal income tax purposes under section 953(d) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). As a result of this “domestic” election, Global
Preferred Re is subject to U.S. taxation on its worldwide income as if it were a U.S. corporation. Global
Preferred determines its income tax expense and liability in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting
for Income Taxes.

Total iricome tax expenses (benefit) for the years ended Decernber 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003 were
allocated as follows: ' .

Years Ended December 31,
2001 2002 2003

Tax attributable to:
Income from continuing operatlons e $2,391,568 $788,730  $998,262

Unreahzed gains (losses) on securities avallable forsale § 94877 $(84,694) § 25,864

The federal income tax expense from continuing operations for the &/ears ended December 31, 2001,
2002, and 2003 is as follows: o

Years Ended December 31,

2001 . 2002 2003
Current ... S R $ 436,963 $ 17,081  $126,598
DefrTed . ... oo ten et 1,954,605 - 771,649 871,664

Total e $2,391,568  $788,730  $998,262
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The income tax expense from continuing operations for the years cnded December 31, 2001,-2002 and
2003 differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 34% to.income
before i income taxes as a result of the following: ' - . ~

Years Ended December 31,

i _ . 2001 2002 2003
-Combuted expected tax expense i el . $2,670,411  $784,178  $996,770
Small life insurance company deduction................. (269,976) — —
Other net ...l i SN ST (8,867) 4,552 " 1,492

Total .....iiiei i FORETIRIR ... $2391,568 $788,730  $998, 262

Dunng 2001, Global Preferred was able to beneﬁt from the “small hfe insurance company deductlon
available under Section 806 of the Code at rates less than. 34%.

Deferred income taxes reﬂ‘ect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying values
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and federal income tax purposes. The net deferred -

tax liability at December 31, 2002 and 2003 is composed of the following amounts: . s
‘ 200 - 2003
‘Deferred tax assets: -~ .. . : o
Alternative minimunt tax credlt ..... o .. .“. ............. % 77213 0§ 133811
Capltal losses reahzed in excess of galns. .".‘ ............ ceeeen ' — —

" Reserve differences . .'........... O 6,235,403 - 5,337,975
Net operating loss carry-forward . ........... e - 2,867,333 - .819,552
DAC tax capitalized ........... DU L 450453 463,410
Other............... T, e e 33,795 124,297 -

- Gross deferred tax aSSetS. ..o v vttt - 9,594,197 - 6,879,045
Deferred tax 11ab111t1es ' ) 4‘ ) : . ‘ )
Pohcy benefit reserves . . . e U e A 957,508 '556,{151‘
Deferred acqu1s1t10n COSES . oot SR, AT 16,949,105 15,506,674
Unrealized-gain on securities. avallable for sale ...... P - 42,306 68,170
Gross deferred tax hablhtles e i 17,948,919 16,131,295

Net deferred tax liabilities ................ e e $ 8,354,722 $ 9,252,250

There were no valuation allowances for deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2002 and 2003 since it
is management’s belief that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. This
assessment is made based on'the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable
income, and tax plannmg strategies. At'December 31, 2003, Global Preferred has net operating loss carry-
forwards for income tax purposes of $2.4 million; which begin to expire in 2018.

8. Related Party Transactions

Global Preferred issued a $5.0 million convertible note, due July 29, 2004, to Money Services, Inc., a
subsidiary of AEGON USA,.Inc. The note bears simple interest at a rate of 7.5% per year and is currently
convertible into 312,750 shares of Global Preferred common stock. If Money Services were to convert the
note, it would own approximately 7% of Global Preferred’s outstanding common stock as of December 31,
2003. Global Preferred has the option to redeem the note, in whole or in part, until July 29, 2004, In.order
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to redeem the: note before maturrty, Global Preferred must pay all principal, plus interest accrued from the
date .of the note through the redemption date ‘at a-higher effective interest rate of 9% per annum. World
Financial Group and Western Reserve are subsidiaries of AEGON USA, Inc. and therefore are entities
related to Money Services due to the common ownership.

In July 2001, Global Preferred entered into an agreement with World Financial Group, which requires
that World Financial Group will use.its commercially reasonable efforts to assist Global Preferred in
attaining the opportunity to reinsure all insurance products sold by its agents for insurance companies with
which’ World Financial Group has selhng agreements, other than Western Reserve and Western Reserve’s
affiliates. '

Global Preferred has four separate reinsurance agreements with Western Reserve that cover variable
universal life insurance and variable annuity policies issued by Western Reserve on or after various dates
after January 1, 1992 which were sold by the agents of World Financial Group and its predecessor. Also in
July 2001, Global Preferred entered into the First, ;Right Agreement with Western Reserve. The First
Right Agreement provrdes Global Preferred the right to reinsure certain policies issued by Western
Reserve or 1ts U. S affiliates which agents associated, wrth World Financial Group sell.

The hfe insurance companies for which Global Preferred provides reinsurance, pay commissions to the
agents of World. Financial Group for sales of life insurance and annuity, contracts reinsured by Global *
Preferred. As a result of such relatronshlps the interests of World Financial Group may conflict with
Global Preferred’s interests in negotlatlng remsurance agreements

Global Preferred occupled office space in Duluth, Georgia until October 2002 when Global-Preferred
moved to its current location. Western Reserve was the landlord on the space that Global Preferred
previously occupied. Global Preferred’s monthly rent on the former space was $3,482, plus its proportlonate
share -of the taxes.

World Flnancral Group, and its predecessor, provided corporate services to. Global Preferred. during
2001 and 2002. These services included computer network system maintenance, facilities maintenance,
security, mail services, utilities, postage, telephone and copier service. Global Preferred incurred $46 498
and $108,158 of costs for these services from World Financial Group, and its predecessor, for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. The majority of the increase in these costs in 2002
reflected the set-up and maintenance of a stand-alone computer network system for Global Preferréd.
Concurrent with Global Preferred’s move into its new office space, World Financial Group ceased
providing these services. :

Due to the relatlonshibs among Global Preferred, World Financial Group, Western Reserve, Money
Services and AEGON USA, «conflicts of 1nterest may arise with respect to- ex1st1ng and future business
dealings, 1nclud1ng : - :

 the terms of World F1nanc1al Group ] selhng agreements (1nclud1ng commission arrangements) and
Global Preferred s reinsurance relationships with life insurance companies;

+ agreements among Global Preferred, World Financial Group, Western Reserve, Money Services,
AEGON USA and their affiliates;

. potentiel) acq'uisitions Of"‘propert’ies or busine‘sses;
. potentlal drvestltures of propertles or busmesses and "

» the issuance of securities by- Global Preferred T
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+ In 1995, Global Preferred-Re entered into an agreement with International Advisory -Services, Ltd.
(“IAS”); formerly CFM Insurance Managers, Ltd. and a subsidiary. of IAS Global Captive Group, Ltd.;
which provides professional insurance management services to-interndtional companies operating in
Bermuda. C. Simon Scupham,-a director of Global Preferred and of Global Preferred Re, is a director of
IAS Global Captive Group. Pursuant to this agreement, IAS acts as the managing agent and the Principal
Representative -for Global- Preferred Re-in Bermuda:. This agreement is for an unlimited duration, but may
be terminated by either party,upon three months prior written notice or upon 30 days prior written notice
under specified circumstances. Global Preferred paid $60,000 in-fees during each of the years ended
December 31, 2001 2002 and 2003 pursuant to the agreement with IAS

" As-of December 31, 2003; S Hubert Humphrey, Jr. was the beneficial owner- of 20. 5% of Global
Preferred’s outstanding common stock. Effective December 28, 2001, Mr. Humphrey retired from the
board of directors and all of-the: positions he held with Global Preferred and with Global Preferred Re. .
Global Preferred agreed to-grant-to Mr. Humphrey, upon successful completion of a firm commitment, . .
underwritten registered public offering on or before December 31, 2003, options to purchase 100,000 shares
of Global Preferred.common stock."No such offering was completed on ‘or before" December 31, 2003 and
Global Preferred’s obligation to issue .such options exprred Do o Do ;

Global Preferred has written employment agreements with various executives. These agreements
govern employee conduct and Global Preferred’s obligation to compensate such key employees The
agreements expire December.31; 2004 or December 31, 2005 and are renewable by agreement of the
parties for additional one- year periods. . R A - :

9, Statuto‘ry Restrictions

Global Preferred Re is a Bermuda company registered as a long-term insurer under the Bermuda
Insurance Act 1978 (the “Insurance Act’ ’) and-as such-is subject to the restrictions of the Insurance Act.’
" Statutory assets and liabilities refer to those assets and liabilities recorded on the statutory balance sheet
requlred by the Insurance Act. Under the Insurance Act Global Preferred Re :

.rMust marntarn the requlred minimum solvency margin (the value of its long term business assets -
exceed the amount of its long-term business liabilities by at least $250,000) and is prohibited from

“ o ‘decldring-or paying dny dividends during any financial year ifit is in breach of its minimum

solvency margln or 1f the declaratlon or payment of such d1v1dends would cause it to fail to meet

¢ ’~'?such margm ’ :

s
PR

Is prohlblted w1thout the approval of the Authonty, from reducing its total statutory capital as set
. -out in.its' prev10us year’s financial statementsby 15% or more in a single financial year; - -

s required to.establish and mamtaln a segregated long- term busmess fund and

Is prohlblted from declanng or paylng a d1v1dend to any person other than a pollcyholder unless the
. value of the assets of its long-term business fund as certified by Global Preferred Re’s approved
‘actuary, exceeds the extent (as so certified) of the liabilities of Global Preferred Re’s long-term
‘business. The amount of any such dividend shall not exceed the aggregate of the excess referénced
ih the preceding sentence and other funds properly available for the payment of dividends, belng
funds arising out of its business, other than its long-term business.
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Global Preferred Re must comply with the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 (the- “Companies
Act”) regulating the declaration and payment of dividends and making distributions from'contributed -
surplus and reductions of capital. Global Preferred Re may not declare or pay a dividend, or make.a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing that: the company is;.’
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realizable value of -
the company’s assets would thereby be less than the aggregate. of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts. The Companies Act further regulates the return of capltal and repurchases
and redemptions of shares by Global Preferred Re. :

Global Preferred relies, and will continue to rely, primarily on funds retained at the holding company
level, dividends and other permitted payments, such as debt service payments, from Global Preferred Re to
meet ongoing cash requirements. As of December 31, 2002 and-2003; Global Preferred Re had total:
statutory capital“and surplus of $11.7 million and $22.6 million (estimated), respectively. For the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, Global Preferred'Re had statutory net incomé (loss) . of
$496,000, ($6.1 million) and $10.5 million (estimated), respectively. As of December 31, 2003, Global
Preferred Re had $7.4 million (estimated) available to distribute in dividends without seeking regulatory
approval, During 2003, Global Preferred Re paid no dividends to Global Preferred. -

10. Commltments and Contmgent Llabllltres

From time to time Global Preferred may be sub]ect to’ htlgatlon and arbrtratron in the normal course’
of business. Management does not believe that Global Preferred is a party to-any such pending’ litigation or
arbitration that would have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operatlons or cash
flows.

Global Preferred has obtained letters of credit in favor of unaffiliated insurance companies with whom
Global Preferred has reinsurance agreements. The posting of a letter of credit allows the ceding llfe
company to take statutory reserve credit for reinsurance ceded, which would otherwise not be avallable as
Global Preferred Re is not a licensed reinsurer by the ceding life company’s state of domicile. At-
December 31, 2003, the outstanding letters of credit totaled $5.85 million. The letters of credit were issued
by Global Preferred’s custodian and secured by Global Preferred’s investments held by the custodlan

In October 2002, Global Preferred entered into 2 lease agreement for office space in Duluth Georgla
The initial lease term, as amended, is twenty-four months, with the option to extend the term an
additional thirty-nine months, expiring in January 2008. If Global Preferred exercises the right to extend
the lease, the first three months of the extended term will be abated. Payments under this lease are
$122,177 annually through October 2004. The lease payments are subject to.an annual increase of -
approximately 3%. Total lease expense for the office space for the year ended December 31, 2003 was
$120,488.

The followmg is a schedule of future minimum lease payments as of December 31 2003

Year Endmg December 31, 0 ’ : ’ o R Lease Payments
2004 . I e $97,533’
2005 . e e e S - 123,937
2006........ SR R e e e ' 132,134 .
2007 . it S S U . 1136,048
Thereafter R ‘ 4,946

The monthly lease payments will be expensed on a straight-line basis for the life of the lease in
accordance with SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases.
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In October 2002, Global Preferred entered into an operating lease with ePlus, In¢. The lease consists
of three schedules for the lease of office furniture, copier and computer equipment, and telecommunica-
tions equrpment The term of each schedule began either December 31, 2002 or January 31, 2003 and
expires 36 months thereafter on either December 31, 2005 or January 31, 2006. Payments under this lease
- are $36,987 annually through the end of the lease. Total lease expense for the operating lease for year

- ended December 31, 2003 was $39,883.

Tnev following is at schedule of future minimum lease payments.as of December 31, 2003:

Year Ending December 31, o _ Lease Payments

2004....0....... R AR PRI AR $36,987

2005, .. EUUUUUUI P 36,987
2006 PP RPRESS 1,268

Liabilities for future pohcy benefits under modified coinsurance agreements equal reinsured policy
account balances on_the underlying life i insurance and annuity policies. With regard to the separate account
benefits reinsured on a modified coinsurance basis, liabilities are recorded as an offset to related assets as
the intentions and rights under the agreements with the ceding life companies meet the appropriate
conditions governing rights of setoff. Separate account benefits and related assets reinsured on a modified
coinsurance basis totaled. $245.2 m11110n and $281 8 million as of December 31, 2002 and 2003,
respectrvely

11. Current Maturities and Long-Term Debt .

At ‘D.ecember 31, 2002 and 2003, amounts payabie' for long-term debt were as follows, in summary:
v . : . 2002 2003

Long “Term Debt Convertrble Term Note — 7. 5% interest, principal :
and interest due at July 29,2004 ........... e $5,000,000 $ -

At December 31,2002 and 2003, -amounts payable for current maturities of long- -term debt were as
follows, m summary ; ‘ .

2002 2003
Current Maturmes of Long-Term Debt .
Convertible Term .Note — 7. 5% interest, pnncrpal and interest due : . S
CatJuly 29,2004 ... e e ST $ . — . $5,000,000 .

In July 1999, Global Preferred issued a $5 million, five-year convertible term-note to Money
Services, Inc. due on July 29, 2004. Money Services is a subsidiary of AEGON"USA, Inc. Proceeds of
. this note were used to reduce a portion of the outstanding principal balance on a line of credit with Money
- Services. Interest is payable at 7.5% per annum (except 4in' the event of redemption), on the 29th of each
succeeding January and July through and including July 29; 2004. Money Services has the right to convert
the outstanding principal balance-of this note into shares of Global Preferred’s common stock at any time.
Upon conversion, Money Services will receive 6,255 shares of common.stock for each $100 of the
outstanding principal amount of the note, which reflects the three-for-two stock split in 2001. Global
Preferred has the option to redeem the note, in whole or in part, between July 29, 2002, and July 29,
2004. To redeem the note before maturity, Global Preferred must pay all principal, plus interest accrued
from the date of the note through the redemption date at a higher effective interest rate of 9% per annum.
. As of December 31, 2002 and 2003, Global Preferred had an outstanding principal balance on the note of
$5 million and accrued interest of $158,219.
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12. Comprehensive Income

The follo{vmg table sets forth the amounts of other comprehensf\ie income (loss) along with' the
related tax effects allocated to other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2001 ]
2002 and 2003: ‘

. Tax - ..
Before-Tax (Expz:lse) " Net-of-Tax
Amount Benefit Amount
2001 S
Net unrealized holding gains arising during period . ... ... $ 323,858  $(110,I11) "'$7213,747.
Less: reclassn‘icatlon adJustment for | gams reahzed in net s ‘ T
COME « oo ettt 44,807 . (15,234) 29,573
Oth‘er"comprehensive income ......... ....... P $ 279,051  $ (94,877 $ 184,17;1 a
2002 ‘ . D ’ o
Net unreahzed holding losses ansmg dunng perlod, e $(676 923) $ 230 153 $1'(4:46,.770;)~ .
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains reahzed in net.. | ; e
dncome ...l e et e e .., 427,823 (145,459.)4‘ 282,364
Other comprehensive loss. e SO . $(249,100) $ 84,694 *$(164,406) **.
2003 o | S
Net unrealized holding gains arising during period........ -$ 97546 $ (33,166) $ 64,380
Less: reclas51ﬁcat10n adjustment for gams reahzed in net -
income, ... ... e N o 21,476 (7,302) - 14,174

Other comprehensive income ................ .. $ 76,070 $ (25,864) $ 50,206

13.. Segment. Reporfiné

Global Preferred defines reportable segments based on the nature of its reinsurance agreements and.
the accounting treatment used for the various reinsurance agreements. Based on this definition, two ..
reportable segments have been identified: non-universal life-type agreéments and universal life-type
agreements (as each is referenced in SFAS No. 97, Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises .
for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and Losses from the Sale of Investments;.
paragraphs 44 and 45). Global Preferred reinsures Certain variable universal life insurance policies:on a
renewable term basis, which are reported below as Non-Universal Life-Type Agreements and;-as such,
these revenues are classified as premium revenue. Renewable term reinsurance involves the reinsurance of
mortality risk whereby premiums are not directly related to the premium rates on the original plan-of. -
insurance. Global Preferred’s renewable term agreements are accounted for under SFAS No. 60; '
Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises, accounting principles. Global ‘Preferred reinsures-
variable ‘annuity contracts:and. certain other variable universal life insurance policies on a coinsurance and -
modified coinsurance basis, which are reported below as Universal Life-Type Agreements and, as such, “ .
these revenues are classified-as reinsured policy. revenues. Coinsurance involves the reinsurance of mortality
and investment risks on the same basis as.that of the underlying policies. The ceding lif¢ ‘companies and - -
Global Preferred share in these risks on a-pro rata basis: Global Preferred’s existing coinsurance and -
modified coinsurance agreements are accounted for under SFAS No. 97 accounting principles. .

J
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Items not directly related to thé: business segments and unallocated corporate items (i.e., other
income, interest expense on corporate debt and unallocated operating expenses) are shown separately,
consistent with Global Preferred’s internal measurement process. Segment assets reported include those
assets directly attributable to the reinsurance agreements such as reinsurance balances receivable, deferred
acquisition costs, policy loans, prepaid expenises, invested assets and cash. Cash and invested assets are
allocated to the agreements based upon statutory reserves, the letters of credit posted in support of the

statutory reserves held, statutory receivables and allocated surplus wh1ch Is con51stent with Global
Preferred’s current internal measurement process.

Year El‘l'dedlDecelﬁber 31, 2001 ’

Non-
L : . : ) Uni?el:'sél Universal .
Segment Reporting - ’ . Life-Type  Life-Type - Other Total
j v ' o ) . (Dollars.in thousands)
Premiums . ............... L Sieeeiiieeo... i $19240 08— 8 — $19 240
Reinsured -policy revenues ......... e e e — . 115238 — - 11,238
Benefits, claims and settlement expenses* ........... 7,833 871 . —_— .8,704
Reinsurance expense allowances, net ............. . 6,859 1ed2..  — 8,501
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs .......... 197 3,748 —. -3945
Underwriting profit .............0........ ..., 4351 4,977 — 9,328
Net investment income. ... .= ......... T 215 230 366 . 811
. Net realized gain on investments ................. - - — 45 45

Other expenses ............covvvivn... F L 123~ 216 1,991 2,330
Segment operating ihcome (Ios’s) before income tax 4,443 4,991 (1,580) 7,854
Income tax expense (beneﬁt) ........ e 1,353 1,520 (481) 2,392
Segment net incomé (loss) ......... o Lo $.3090  $3471  $(1,099) § 5462
Preferred dividends . . . .. RS o — 267 267
Segment net income (loss) .available to common . 7( o T

stockholders .. ..o oo $.3090  $3471 $(1,366) $ 5,195
Segment assets ......... BRSO .. $8615 . $46748  $12,490. $67,853

e

* Benefits, claims and settlement expensés include change in future policy benefits. -
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Segment Reporting

Premiums............... e
Reinsured policy revenues | )

Benefits, claims and settlement exp'enses* e

Reinsurance expense allowances, net

Amortizatidn of deferred acquisition costs .......... '

Underwriting profit .....:....... PR e
Net investment income. .......... e
Net realized gain on investments
Othier éxpenses ’

Segment operating income (loss) before income tax

* Income tax expense (benefit)

Seégment net income (loss) ~....... IR L

Segrhcnt assets

* Benefits, cléiirxs and settlement expenses include change in future

Ségm’ent Rep()fting -

Promiums . .. ........ovvvnnnnnn. P
Reinsured policy revenues
Benefits, claims and settlement expenses*...........
- Reinsurance expense allowances, net
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs ... .. ...

Underwriting profit ..................... ... ...,
Net investment income. . .. .. PO DU
Net realized gain on investments ........ e
Otherincome......... ..ot iniiniiin ..

Other expenses .

Segment operating income. (loss) before income tax

Income tax expense (benefit)

Ségment net income (loss)

. Year Ended December 31, 2002

. Non-
Universal Universal -
~ Life-Type Life-Type Other Total
s (Doliars in thousands) .
817985 $ — $§ — $17,985
T — 13,860 — 13,860
" 7,866 2,089" — 9955
" 6,319 2,199 — 8,518
232 6,792 — 7,024
3,568 2,780 ‘ — 6,348
124 276 342 742
_ — 428 428
142 280 4,790 5,212
3,550 2,776 (4,020) 2,306
1,213 949 (1,374) 788
$ 2,337 $ 1827 $(2,646) $ 1518
$ 6,021 $52,248 16,005 $74,274
poiicy‘ benefits.
Year Ended December 31, 2003

° Non-

Universal Universal .
Life-Type  Life-Type Other Total
(Dollars in thousands)
$17,401 $ — 5 —  $17,401

12,796 12,796

. 8,147 2,176 — 10,323
6042 2093 — 8135
250 5,287 — 5,537
2,962 3,240 — 6,202
14 207 186 407

— — 21 21

— — 63 63

167 344 3,251 3,762
2,809 3,103 (2,981) 2,931
956 1,057 (1,015) 998

$ 1,853 $ 2,046 $(1,966) $ 1,933
$ 5,601 $48,164 $25,519 '$79,284

Segment assets

* Benefits, claims and settlement éxpcnses include change-in future policy benefits.
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.Durihg 2001, 2002 and 2003, the percentages of total premiums and reinsured policy revenues that
relate to Western Reserve were 89%, 91% and 92%, respectively. The percentages of the total underwriting
profit that relate fo- Western Reserve for 2001, 2002 and 2003 were 86%, 96% and 95%, respectively.

Global Preferred estlmates that approx1mately 44% of vanable universal 11fe premiums and 33% of
variable annuity premiums, written through Western Reserve and sold by agents assocrated with World
Flnanmal Group, originated in California.

14. Capltal Infuswn

In August 2000, Global Preferred. closed its offeririg of Seriés A Preferred Stock, which resulted in
approximately $4 million of gross proceeds to Global Preferred. Global Preferred issued 266,047 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock in this offering.. The net proceeds were loaned to Global Preferred Re, which
were applied toward repayment of a line of credit with Money Services. The terms of the Series A
Preferred Stock provided for automatic conversion into common stock upon the earlier of (i) the closing

_of any Qualifying Sale of shares of common stock or (ii) January 1, 2002. A Qualifying Sale was defined
as net proceeds to Global Preferred of at least $10-million from the sale of its shares of common stock. On
January .1, 2002, 266,047 shares of Series A Preferred Stock issued were automatically converted into
399,074 shares of common_ stock. The conversmn reﬂected the 3 for-2 stock split effectwe in September
2001. :

In October 2002 Global Preferred withdrew the reglstratlon statement for its proposed initial public
offering of 9.5 million shares of common stock due to unfavorable market conditions. During the quarter
~ ended September 30, 2002, Global Preferred expensed-$1.7 million of deferred offering costs that were to

_be offset against the proceeds of the offering. The deferred offering costs paid in priér periods were
previously reported as an asset under- “prepaid expenses on the consolidated balance sheet:and the
expensing of those costs is currently shown as “costs of withdrawn offering” on the consolidated income
statement.

15. Stock Optlons v

In 2002, Global Preferred established the Global Preferred Holdings, Inc. Stock Incentive Plan (the
“Stock Incentive Plan”). The aggregate number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under
the Stock Incentive Plan is 1.5 million shares. Awards granted under the Stock Incentive Plan may be
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, options intended to qualify as “incentive stock options” o
nonqualified stock options. The term of the options, including vesting, exercise price and expiration date
are determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors at the date of the grant. No
options may be granted under the Stock Incentive Plan after July 30, 2012. The purpose of the Stock
Incentive Plan is to attract and retain experienced, knowledgeable employees and to align the interests of
these employees with Global Preferred’s stockholders.

Also-in 2002, Global Preferred adopted and the stockholders ratified the Global Preferred
Holdings, Inc. Directors Stock Optien Plan (the “Directors Option Plan”). This plan was subsequently
amended and restated by the Board of Directors, which amendment and restatement was ratified by the
stockholders in June 2003. The aggregate number of shares of common stock reserved for issuance under
the Directors Option Plan is 280,000 shares. Options granted under the Directors Option Plan generally
'vest over a 3 to 4 year period and the exercise price is not less than the fair value of the shares of
common stock subject to the options granted as of the date of grant, as determined by the Board of
Directors. No options may be granted under the Directors Option Plan after June 17, 2013. The purpose
of the Directors Option Plan is to attract and retain experienced, knowledgeable directors and to ahgn the
interests of Global Preferred’s directors with the stockholders.
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SFAS No. 123 requires-the development of an estimate of the fair value of options granted. While
Global Preferred believes that option pricing models, such as binomial and Black-Scholes, provide the best
estimate of the fair value of the options granted, these valuation models have limitations..In management’s
opinion, these models may not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of Global
Preferred’s stock options, because (i) Global Preferred’s employee and director stock options have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, (ii) thete is no active trading market in
Global Preferred’s capital stock and the stock therefore does not have a readily ascertainable fair market
value, and (iii) changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
In addition, options give the option holder the right, but not the obligation, to buy Global Preferred’s
common stock at a fixed price in the future regardless of the fair value of the common stock at the
purchase date, therefore, there is no guarantee that the options will ever have any tangible value. Global
Preferred has used a binomial option Valuatlon model to determine fair value of its employee and director

stock optlons

‘In May 2003, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors granted optlons to purchase an
aggregate of 170,688 shares of common stock to certain employees in order to retain employees due to
competitive market conditions and to provide additional incentive to such persons to increase the value of
Global Preferred’s stock. Following the stockholders’ ratification of the amendment to the Directors Option
Plan, in June 2003, the non-employee directors of Global Preferred were automatically granted options to
purchase 78,625 shares of Global Preferred’s common stock.

Options granted by the Company -currently expire no later than 10 years from the grant date and .
generally vest within 4 years. As of December 31, 2003, 118,876 of the unvested options would:
automatically become fully vested upon a change of control of the company. The exercise price of all
options outstanding as of December 31, 2003 is $10.46. Additional information with respect to stock option
plan activity is as follows: ¥ . - '

Outstanding Options
Shares Available Number of  Weighted Average

for Options Shares Exercise Price
) : (Shares in thousands)

December 31,2002 ... .o oviie e -~ 1,780.0 — . N/
CGIants . ... SR oo (2493) . 249.3 $10.46
-Cancellations ......:......... PR e L (3.9 $10.46 -

December 31,2003 .....ooounninn.. ceeieees o L3307 2454 $10.46

Options exercisable at: ‘

December 31,2002 ...... B . I~ = - N/A
December 31,2003 ......oooiiiiii 812 . $10.46

- These options will expire if not exercised pnor to thelr expiration dates, the latest of whlch is May
2013. No options have been exercised. - . .
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The fair value of options granted in 2003 reported above was ‘estimated :at the date of grant using a
binomial option valuation model. The following assumptions were used in determining the SFAS No. 123
expense associated with the stock option plans. The volatility used was 0%; the risk free interest rate was
3%; dividend yield was 0%; the gross director termination. rate was 0%; and the gross employee termination
rate was 20%. Options were assumed to be exercised at varying rates depending upon the excess of the fair
value of Global Preferred’s common stock modeled over the strike price of the option. These rates varied
from 0% where the excess of the fair value of the common stock over the strike price of the option was $0
to 34% per year when this excess was $8 or higher. The weighted average estimated fair value of employee
and director stock options grantcd dunng 2003 usmg SFAS No. 123 assumptlons was $0.24 and zero,
respectlvely .o o -

16. Deﬁned Contribution Pension Plans.

" Global Preferred‘ sponsors a defined contribution pension plan covering substantially all of its
employees. In 2001 and 2002, contributions and costs were determined as 50%' of an employee’s
contribution up to 6% of the employee’s. salary -(not to exceed a salary base per employee of -$170,000 in
2001-and:$200,000 in-2002). In 2003, contributions and costs were determined as 100% of an employee’s
contribution up to 4% of:the employee’s salary (not to exceed a salary base of $200,000 per employee)
The total costs were $8,938, $12,329 and $39,401 in 2001, 2002, and 2003, respectively.
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17. Parent Company Financial Information -

Balance Sheets
(Parent Company Only).

December 31,

. 2002 - 2003
ASSETS o
Investment in cornmon stock of sub51d1ary(1) ............. DU . $36,859,470  $38,722,535
Fixed matunty securities — available for sale (amortized cost of $12,523 and ' ‘v :
$498,810 for 2002 and 2003, respectlvely) ............................ 12,927 . 504,373
Cash and cash' equivalents .......................... e i 12,475,098 3,545,374
Investment inéomc dueandaccrued ......... .. ..o L319 . 3,509
Investment inéqrne due and adcrued — intcrcompany(l) ..... L S o 189,344 | 189,344
" Accounts _re‘c_e'j_véble ........... [ T o.215500 0 .- —
Intercompany receivables(l) ........... e PR e e . 2,152,529 - 1,484,708
Note receivable — intercompany (1) . ... T TP PR o 75;000,000 : 5,000,000
Prepaid EXPEISES . . ... vovvar e e et e - 872,648 516,182
Fixed assets (net of accumulated deprematlon of $240,439 and $336,817 for
2002 and 2003, respectively) ................. ... B 215,095 135,495
Deferrcdtaxbeneﬁt ....... e 940,433 862,591
Total Sets ... ve vt T e $48,934,363  $50,964,111
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities: ' ' v ) ' .
Accrued €xpenses and accounts payable ............. P $ 454289 § 498351
Accrued interest payable . . ........... ..o e 158,219 158,219
Current maturities of long-term debt...................... . . — 5,000,000
Long term debt ........ e e ‘ 5,000,000 —
Current income tax payable .................................... e — 2,065
Total 11ab1ht1es .................................... EEEETTRTRERI 5,612,508 5,658,635
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.001, 50,000,000 shares and 15,000,000 shares -
authorized for 2002 and 2003, respectively; 4,149,074 shares issued for
2002 and 2003 .. ... 4,149 4,149
Additional paid-in capital .......... ... i Loee. 23,326,026 23,326,026
Accumulated other comprehensive income. ...................... e, 82125 132,331
Retained earnings. ........ F PP 19,958,822 21,892,237
" Treasury stock, at cost (7,390 shares for 2002 and 2003, respectively) .- .. (49,267) (49,267)
Total stoqkholdcrs equity ....... e 43,321,855 45,305,476
$50,964,111

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... ..o S $48,934,363

(1) Eliminated on (;onsolidation
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Statements of Income -
" (Parent: Company Only)

Years Ended December 31,

‘ 2001 2002 2003 .
Revenues: : :
Net investment income ... ..... S N e $ 133575 $ 100,339 $ 24,626
Net realized ‘gain on investments . .:.............. P © 4904 56,088 —
Intercompany interest income(1) ......... L c.. 674298 473822 450,000
. Total revenue ................ . PUTRRTR L. 812777 630,249 474,626
Benefits and expenses: ' ‘ B ‘ o
 Operating expenses ........ ST U PR 1,259,273 © * (548,568)  (137,929)
Costs of withdrawn offering . .. N e, [ — 439,487 - —
Tnterest EXPense . .. ......voeen ... e e 375,000 375,000 375,000
~ Total benefits and expenses R 1,634,273 265,919 237,071
" Income (loss) before income tax ‘and equlty in undlstnbuted . L -
~ net income of subsidiaries . . ... e e e (821,496) 364,330 237,555
Income tax benefit (EXpEnSe) . ... e 274,269 '(125,877) (80,403)
" Income (loss) before equlty in undlstnbuted net income of ' o .
subsidiaries . ......... ... 0o e (547,227) .. 238,453 157,152
Equity in earmngs of sub51dxar1es. R e 6,009,808 - " 1,279,224 1,776,263
Net income . ... ..x e rn RSO el 85,462,581 81,517,677 $1,933,415
Preferred dividends ............... ... o it 267,104 + _ T

Net income avajlable to common stockholders ............ .. $5,195,477 $1,517,677 $1,933,415

" (1) Eliminated on consoiidation
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GLOBAL PREFERRED HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Statements of Cash Flows
(Parent Company Only)-

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income .. ........... T e
Less equlty in earnings of sub51d1arles ........... e Y

Income (Loss) before equity in undlstrlbuted net income of

subsidiaries
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Amortization and depreciation . ....................... .

Costs of withdrawn offering
Deferred. tax expense (benefit)
-Net realized (gain) loss on investments .. . ... e
Change in: o
Investment income due and accrued ................. .
Investment income due and accrued — intercompany (1)*
~ Accounts receivable
" Intercompany recelvables(l)
Prepaid expenses
Accrued expenses ‘and accounts payable . ..............
-Current income tax payable ., ............. .. ... ...,

th cash prov1ded by (used 1n) operatmg activities ...

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities . .. ......

Proceeds. from principal payments on mortgage-backed
securities of available-for-sale securities

Purchase of available-for-sale securities

Purchase of fixed assets..........covvivnnen . .

Purchase of common stock ... oovivin i

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities. .. .

Cash flows from financing activities:
Preferred dividends
Issuance of notes receivable — intercompany(1l) ..........
Prepaid expenses — costs of withdrawn offering
Costs of withdrawn offering

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ...........

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ................

(1) Eliminated on consolidation
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Years Ended December 31,

2001 2002 2003
$ 5462581  $ 1517,677  § 1,933,415
(6,009.808) _(1,279.224) . (1,776,263)
§ (547,227) § 238453 § 157,152
44,757 48922 96,378
= 439,487 —
(274,176) 125877 76,088
(4904) (56088) - —
(39316) 40873 (2,190)
104,111 11,875 —
— 7 (215500) 215,500
2418689  (1997411) © 667,822
L (49,115)  (751,036),  356,466"
. 451,778 (76,591) 44,062
(9.181) .. 1875 2,065
2005416 _(2,189264) _ 1,613,343
401,138 2,174,208 —
28817 110,891 12,522
(2676,584) .. —  (498810) -
(84,066) - (219928)  (16,779)
L _ (40,000)
(2320695) 2065171 (543,067)
(279,349) — —
2012479 1,087,550 —
(577,112) 577,112 —
(439,487 —
1156018 1,225,175 —
930,739 1,101,082 1,070,276
443277 1374016 2475098
S 1374016 $ 2475098 §$ 3,545,374




Bl Bicisrea
{/ referre
%% Holdings, Inc

Redefining Reinsurance.
Redefining Relationships.




